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1. CHAPTER 1: FOREWORD AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1.  EXECUTIVE MAYOR’S FOREWORD  

As the Executive Mayor of the Alfred Nzo District Municipality, I am also responsible for the Alfred Nzo 

Development Agency (or ANDA). Alfred Nzo Development Agency (ANDA) is a “Municipal Entity” of the 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality (ANDM) established through a Council Resolution in terms of Section 76 (b) 

(i) of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 (MSA).  The entity is mandated to act as a special purpose 

vehicle to drive economic development in the district.   

 

The Alfred Nzo District Municipality has developed a District Development Plan (DDP) to take us into 2030. 

It is a plan that not only provides a vision of the future but importantly, defines clear outcomes against which 

to measure progress.  

 

The overall purpose of the Alfred Nzo Vision 2030 District Development Plan (DDP) is to articulate the key 

long-term development priorities and how they are to be achieved in the District between 2019 and 2030, 

and beyond.  It outlines various strategic goals and priority actions/interventions to achieve the related 

desired district outcomes linked to the National Development Plan (NDP) and the Provincial Development 

Plan (PDP) Vision 2030. 

 

The Alfred Nzo Vision 2030 DDP has six (6) district level, strategic goals (fully aligned to the PDP that is 

currently being updated) with 6 priority economic sectors/value chains and various priority 

actions/interventions per goal, scheduled for implementation from 2019 onwards.  

 

Due to the nature of its work, the ANDA, in the main, supports two key strategic goals as defined by the 

DDP vision 2030, namely “Goal 5: Rural Development and an innovative and high-value agriculture sector”; 

and ‘’Goal 2: Capable democratic institutions’’.  

 

In 2019/20, the ANDA objectives responded to the DDP goals in several ways. Among others, it is by 

promoting SMME empowerment and transformation more especially under COVID 19 circumstances, by 

providing financial and non-financial support. Finally, the ANDA encourages the presence of effective and 

functioning of democratic, capable and accountable government institutions in order to drive the change 

that is needed towards 2030. This was done through the ANDM Council adoption of Multi-year Business 

Plan and SDBIP.   
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Future outlook of ANDA 

 

As the Executive Mayor of the Alfred Nzo District Municipality, I am aware of the requirements imposed on 

us by section 56 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, 32 of 2003, which dictates that the mayor of a 

municipality which has sole or shared  control over a municipal entity must guide the Municipality in 

exercising its rights and powers over the Municipal entity in a way-  

 

a) that would reasonably ensure that the municipal entity complies with this Act and at all times 

remains accountable to the municipality 

b) that would not impede the entity from performing its operational responsibilities  

 

In guiding the Municipality in the exercise of its rights and powers over the Municipal entity in accordance 

with subsection (1) which states that the mayor may monitor the operational functions of the entity, but may 

not interfere in the performance of those functions. Likewise, in the beginning of the 2019/20 financial year, 

ANDM approved a budget and Multi Year Business Plan for the Development Agency.  

 

As the Alfred Nzo District Municipality, it is our responsibility to use our policies, resources and institutions, 

such as the ANDA to bring about the necessary integration and focus in key strategic areas to unlock the 

overall District economic potential.  

 

I would like to commend the executive team and Board for their constant and valuable inputs, and their 

stewardship of the ANDA. 

 

Cllr S. Mehlomakhulu  

 

 

Exec Mayor: Alfred Nzo District Municipality  
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1.2. BOARD CHAIRPERSON’S FOREWORD  

 

Dear Colleagues, 

 

I write to you during probably the most uncertain economic and social times of our lives. During the first 

months of 2020, the world changed forever it seems. The 2019/20 financial year began with the emergence 

of the Alfred Nzo District economy from the grips of a devastating drought, only to end in the midst of an 

unprecedented global pandemic. During March 2020, almost every country in the world implemented travel 

restrictions and enforced lockdown or stay-at-home measures in order to curb the spread of the COVID-19 

virus. Before reaching our shores, the effects of the outbreak of COVID-19 were already being felt in various 

sectors of our economy as early as January 2020. 

 

In the financial year under review, some progress was achieved in trying to address some of the key 

strategic risks facing the entity. Amongst others, these strategic risks range from the inability to implement 

the mandate of the Agency, lack of stability in governance and leadership, questionable business continuity 

planning, limited visibility of the Agency etc. In the ensuing period, the ANDA is committed to achieving the 

appropriate balance between its various stakeholder groupings in the best interests of the organization and 

to be transparent and accountable by ensuring effective communication with its stakeholders. We believe 

that this is essential for building and maintaining our stakeholders’ trust and confidence. 

 

It is my firm belief that businesses in the Alfred Nzo had the strongest possible support network going into 

the COVID-19 crisis thanks to the small but immensely dedicated team at ANDA. ANDA has repeatedly 

proven that it is able to pull together stakeholders from across government and the economy in order to 

align support in a time of crisis. It is also my belief that our team will have a big impact on boosting economic 

recovery, as we emerge from the crisis. ANDA team works hard, not only to promote and facilitate resource 

mobilization, but also to strengthen the building blocks that enable the Alfred Nzo economy to grow. Despite 

the financial year ending in a crisis, this annual report highlights the hard work that the Agency put in to 

meet its targets during the year under review.  

 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has dug deep and has critically assessed both how our business is 

conducted, as well as our business processes, to ensure that our operations are stable and secure through 

the Covid-19 pandemic. These actions ensured that we will continue to operate successfully and efficiently. 

We have made the necessary financial adjustments accordingly. I wish to thank the management, all our 

staff, our suppliers and ANDM who have shown both loyalty and support in the many hard requests we 

made during the past year.  
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While we know that some of these initiatives could not go ahead after the National Government declared a 

State of Disaster, It is imperative that we do everything within our power to support recovery of every sector. 

On every level, ANDA has done exceedingly well to meet its objectives, and on behalf of the members of 

the Board, I would like to thank every staff member who worked harder than ever to achieve this.  

 

It is your support and vision and your remarkable commitment to growing the economy of the Alfred Nzo 

that enables ANDA to deliver on its targets and objectives year upon year. Your unwavering commitment to 

the people of the Alfred Nzo and your strong leadership and clarity of mind saw this District through some 

of its darkest days during the COVID-19 pandemic. We thank you for that. Lastly, I would like to thank our 

Chief Executive Officer, Ms Mandy Bambeni and the members of the ANDA Board. Your leadership in a 

time of great crisis has been an inspiration, and the Agency’s seamless adaption to the “new normal” has 

been a pillar of strength to business in Alfred Nzo District.  

 

 

Mrs N Mabude 

Chairperson of the Board 
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1.3. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S FOREWORD 

 

As we reflect on the 2019/20 financial year, I would like to take the opportunity to thank the Alfred Nzo 

Development Agency together with its parent municipality for affording me the opportunity to lead the 

administration of ANDA.  

 

The year 2019/20 has not been without its challenges both at governance level and at an administrative 

level. Through the leadership of the interim Board, ANDA engaged in a process that would result in a re-

positioned, re-imagined and re-engineered organisation geared to respond to challenges on unemployment, 

poverty and low levels of skill that continue to cripple the economy of ANDM. There is hope for a new dawn.  

 

There is an observed improvement in the overall performance of the organisation as reflected in the Annual 

Performance Report 2019/20 when compared to the previous year. And we certainly draw new strength 

from our improved audit opinion of 2018/19 and hope to maintain the opinion for the 2019/20. We could not 

be more reassured that despite the negative encounters we have been confronted with, we have all it takes 

to rise above and challenge the status quo. At the end of 2019/2020, financial year, we would have made 

giant strides towards filling-in of critical posts as one of the steps to set administrative wheels in motion 

towards acceleration of services to our communities. We know and we understand that for any institution to 

respond to the external environment, the appropriate organisational architecture must be in place to carry 

out the strategy.  

 

We are aware that much still need to be done and the communities of ANDM look upon us to lead the 

process towards changing the economic outlook of ANDM. We are grateful for the overwhelming support 

we have received from the parent municipality as led by the Honourable Executive Mayor of ANDM, Cllr 

Sixolile Mehlomakhulu.   

 

It is an honour and privilege that come with a huge responsibility, not only to turn the situation around but 

also set the Entity on the right path, towards a clean administration. To the management and staff, I know 

that change of leadership brings anxiety and uncertainty, but this time around we must be optimistic about 

the future, no matter how difficult the situation might be. 

 

As the Chief Executive Officer of the Alfred Nzo Development Agency, we are grateful to the board which 

comprises amongst others municipal managers from our various local municipalities, who selflessly 

contribute their time serving on the ANDM without any form of reward. 
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To every member of the ANDA team “ndibamba ngazo zozibini, ndiyabulela kuni magora nani magorakazi 

ako wethu”, you have displayed an incredible amount of dedication and hard work within a relatively short 

period. Most of all, you have demonstrated an overwhelming dedication to wanting to be part of something 

new that would come and change the lives of ANDM people.   

 

Closing the curtain on 2019/20 now gives way to a new institution that is committed to deliver on its promise. 

We call upon every investor from both within the private and the public sector space to not only watch this 

space but indeed to start recognising ANDA as the strategic development partner of choice. A new dawn is 

indeed upon us.  

 

I thank you.  

 

Ms. M Bambeni 

Chief Executive Officer 
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1.4. REPORTING ON THE IMPACT OF COVID-19 

 

The global pandemic of coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) was first reported on 31 December 2019 by 

the World Health Organisation (WHO) in Wuhan City, China. As the pandemic spread, governments around 

the world took unprecedented measures to limit the spread of the virus, ramping up health systems and 

restricting the movement of millions. In the final days of the financial year under review, on 15 March 2020 

the South African Government through its president, Cyril Ramaphosa declared a national state of disaster, 

implementing a strict lockdown and shutting borders to international travel.  

 

For an agency like ANDA, with almost every aspect of its mandate involving district economic activity, the 

COVID-19 pandemic almost changed everything. Yet the manner in which the Agency was able to adapt 

and pull together in the face of an unprecedented crisis has shown the depths of its resolve to support the 

economy of the Alfred Nzo.The COVID-19 pandemic has brought about a fast-moving and unexpected 

challenges, some of which ANDA existing controls weren’t prepared to handle. As such ANDA successfully 

developed incident management plans specific to this crisis, and we are now looking ahead. The current 

COVID 19 outbreaks have had severe economic consequences across the country, and it does not look like 

any country will be spared. This not only has consequences for the Alfred Nzo local economy, all of society 

is affected, which has led to drastic changes in how ANDA conducts its business.  

 

Moreover, the current economic system and mindset has also been guiding and shaping the COVID-19 

response and recovery strategies of governments, businesses and people in general. This can significantly 

perpetuate and repeat crises as we are treating their symptoms and not their roots. Today, ANDA Board, 

CEO, Management and staff are faced with overwhelming and competing challenges as they continue to 

navigate the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic in the organization. ANDA has taken actions to emerge 

from the pandemic stronger. The coronavirus outbreak has forced ANDA to re-evaluate how employees 

deliver relevant customer experiences, where they work, and how digital platform can be used to support 

ANDA business continuity through the crisis and beyond.  

 

ANDA as an organization has developed fit-for-purpose plan that will respond to the global health and 

economic environment changes that has come because of COVID 19. With the COVID-19 crisis, 

fundamental changes in supply chains are knocking ANDA off balance. Responding to the pandemic has 

highlighted the need for ANDA to accelerate the adoption of agile ways of working and supply chain 

transformation to help outmanoeuvre COVID 19 uncertainties.In the face of the COVID-19 crisis, leaders 

have had to act quickly to optimize their company’s resilience rebalancing for risk and liquidity, while 

assessing opportunities for growth coming out of the downturn. 
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1.5. VISION 

 

‘’ “Leading a rapidly growing economy that generates wealth for its people” 

 

1.6. MISSION 

 

To facilitate inclusive and innovative socio-economic growth through promoting sustainable enterprises 

development and implementation of high impact initiatives 

 

1.7. VALUE PROPOSITION 

 

‘’An effective and innovative promoter of integrated economic development initiatives that enhance 

stakeholder value” 

 

1.8. VALUES 

 

• Innovation  

• Partnership 

• Integrity 

• Accountability and transparency 

• Professionalism 

• Agility 

• Leadership 

1.9. MANDATE 
 

The mandate of the Agency is defined as follows: 

• Act as the operational arm of the Municipality for the purposes of implementing economic, social 

and environmental policies and projects within ANDM jurisdiction;  

• Develop the innovation and entrepreneurial potential and activity which supports and drives 

economic growth within ANDM jurisdiction;  

• To leverage public and private resources and support for development around opportunities which 

offer economic and development potential;  

• Acquire, develop and manage land and buildings necessary to provide public good, generate 

revenue towards self-sustainability and enable the Agency to achieve its stated aims and objectives; 
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• Acquire and exercise rights and duties, necessary for the furtherance of its objectives, and generally 

to perform such further functions as may be delegated or assigned to it by the Municipal Council 

from time to time 

 

1.10. ALIGNMENT OF THE MANDATE OF THE ENTITY WITH THE DDP AND IDP 
 

The District Municipality has in place a defined and adopted mandate for its Entity, ANDA. The strategic 

direction of ANDA in terms of key interventions is also informed by strategic documents such as the DDP 

vision 2030, IDP 2017/2022 and other strategic documents that influence economic development in our 

District. The ANDM DDP 2030 is a pioneering document that guides the District’s continuous inclusive socio-

economic growth towards a long-term goal; vision 2030.  

To achieve Goal 1 of the DDP 2030 which is to enable infrastructure network development within the District 

(ANDM DDP 2030: Page 11), the Agency is mandated to acquire, develop and manage land and buildings 

that are necessary to provide public good, generate revenue towards self-sustainability and enable the 

Agency to achieve its stated aims and objectives,. This goal is aligned with goal 2 of the ANDM IDP 2017-

2022  which is aimed at delivering basic service and empower communities of Alfred Nzo (ANDM IDP 2017-

2022:5.5).  

Goal 3 of the ANDM DDP 2030 aspires to see an innovative District and inclusive economic growth (ANDM 

DDP 2030: Page 11). To that effect, the Council mandated the Agency to develop the innovation and 

entrepreneurial potential and activity which support and drive economic growth within ANDM jurisdiction. 

Related to this, the ANDM DDP 2030 desires a high impact rural development for our District, especially in 

the field of agriculture.  

Further to that, environmental sustainability is at the core of both the ANDM DDP 2030 and ANDM IDP 

2017-2022 development framework. This then complements the basis of the core business of the agency; 

our mandate is orientated around accelerated inclusive socio-economic development as well as 

environmental sustainability. 

At the centre of ANDA’s mandate are good governance, sound financial viability and enhanced human 

capital which are also fundamental goals of both the ANDM DDP 2030 and ANDM IDP 2017-2022. 
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2. CHAPTER 2: LEGAL COMPLIANCE & GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

2.1. LEGAL SCOPE 

The Annual Report for Alfred Nzo Development Agency for the 2019/20 financial year has been prepared 

in terms of the section 121 of the MFMA which stipulates that,  

 

(1) Every municipality and every municipal entity must of each financial year prepare an annual report in 

accordance with this chapter.  The council of a municipality must within nine months after the end of a 

financial year deal with the annual report of the municipality and of any municipal entity under the 

municipality’s sole or shared control in accordance with section 129. 

 

(2) The purpose of the annual report is- 

a. To provide a record of the activities of the municipality or a municipal entity during the 

financial year to which the report relates; 

b. To provide a report on performance against the budget of the municipality or municipal 

entity for that financial year; and 

c. To promote accountability to the local community for the decisions made throughout the 

year by the municipality or municipal entity. 

 

In line with the requirements of section 121 (2), the Annual Report – 2019/20 presents a report on the 

activities of ANDA for the 2019/20 financial year. It further reports on how ANDA has undertaken budget 

implementation during the same financial year with the key objective of enhancing accountability to the local 

community of Alfred Nzo District Municipality and any other interested and affected stakeholder.  

 

(3) The annual report of a municipal entity must include- 

a. The annual financial statements of the entity as submitted to the Auditor-General for audit in terms of 

section 126 (2) 

b. The Auditor-General’s audit report in terms of section 126 (3) on those financial statements 

  

As required by section (126), the Annual Report of ANDA also includes the Annual Financial Statements of 

ANDA.  
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2.2. LEGISLATIVE BACKGROUND  

 

Alfred Nzo Development Agency is a “Municipal Entity” of the Alfred Nzo District Municipality (ANDM) which 

was established through a Council resolution in terms of Section 76 (b) (i) of the Municipal Systems Act 32 

of 2000 (MSA), which provides for a mechanism by which a municipality may provide a municipal service in 

its area.  

The Municipal Entity was further registered as a Private Company with the Registrar of Companies (CIPC) 

in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, and in line with Section 86 (B) (1) (a) of the Municipal Systems 

Act (MSA) number 32 of 2000, and was mandated to act as a special purpose vehicle to drive economic 

development in the entire District, to achieve the vision of the Alfred Nzo District Council as articulated in its 

long term and medium term strategic planning documents.  

The Municipality Entity delivers on its mandate through a Service Delivery Agreement (SDA) that is entered 

into between the Entity and its parent municipality.  The purpose of the SDA is to formalise and regulate the 

working relationship between the parent municipality and its Entity’s, according to service delivery provisions 

of the MSA, the Companies Act and the Municipal Finance Management Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA).  

2.3. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

 

The Municipal Entity is currently governed by an interim board of non-executive directors, which was 

appointed through a municipal council resolution that came into effect in November 2018. The board 

consists of 6 non-executive directors, together with 2 municipal representatives which are designated in 

terms of Section 93D (1) of the MSA to represent the Parent Municipality as non-participatory observers at 

Board meetings and to represent the shareholder’s rights and responsibilities. The Parent Municipality has 

a process in place that will ensure that a full-time board is appointed in due course. 

 

Section 93H (1) MSA poses the following expectations upon the Board of Directors of the Municipal Entity. 

 

The board of directors of a municipal entity must: 

a) To provide effective, transparent. accountable and coherent corporate governance and conduct 

effective oversight over the affairs of the municipal entity; 

b) To ensure that the Municipal Entity complies with all the applicable legislation and agreements; 

c) To communicate openly and promptly with the parent municipality, and 

d) To deal with the parent municipality in good faith. 
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It is worth noting that during the 2019/20 financial year, ANDA operated with an interim board of directors. 

Several unsuccessful attempts were initiated towards the recruitment of a full-time board by the Parent 

Municipality, as a result, the shareholder resolved to appoint an interim board constituted of 4 local 

municipality municipal managers and 2 members from the previous board. The purpose of appointing an 

interim board by the parent municipality was to ensure that whilst the parent municipality was recruiting a 

full-time board, the Entity would still be able to operate at a governance level through the interim board. The 

interim board has had 2 ordinary board meetings and 2 special meetings.  

 

The 2019/20 financial year has not been a year without challenges. Although the board is composed of 

skilled individuals with vast knowledge in local government administration, there were challenges 

experienced concerning the regular sitting of the Board due to their busy schedules as accounting officers.   

 

During the 2018/19 financial year, the interim board successfully led a process towards holding a strategic 

planning session in April 2019 to achieve the following objectives: 

 

• To Re-imagine role of ANDA in the next 10 years and beyond 

✓ Consider various scenarios that position ANDA as an SPV driving inclusive economic 

development in the region, aligned to implementing relevant key elements of the District 

Development Plan (DDP) Vision 2030 

✓ Consider a new and improved ANDA value addition to the future ANDM 

• To Develop a key high-level input to a new ANDA Multi-Year Business Plan 2019 – 2024  

• To Consider progress made and appropriate way forward against the ANDA’s Support Plan 

• To Table the budget for the 2019/2020 financial year 

• To Consider the status of the Development Agency in relation to the progress made on addressing 

Internal Audit (AI) and Auditor General’s findings (AG) which include developed Action Plan 

 

Indeed, the outcome of the board planning session alone has led to the significant improvement within a 

limited period which included some of the following key achievements:  

• Development of a new Multi-Year Business Plan (2019-2022) which represented development 

aspirations of the economy of Alfred Nzo’s goals of infrastructure and economic development that would 

translate into employment creation, skills development and income generation.  

• During the session, the parent municipality presented new considerations towards the mandate of the 

Entity, whilst appreciation was given to the significant progress made on the ANDA support plan that 
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was adopted by the Council of ANDM with the objective to implement immediate improvement plans in 

support of ANDA 

• The detailed status quo analysis which included an analysis into areas that would lead to an improved 

audit opinion helped significantly and effectively to ensure that the objective was achieved.  

 

Therefore, during the 2019/20 financial year, the Board endeavoured to deliver on the core mandate 

bestowed over the Entity in line with all applicable regulations and legislation, and in adherence to the best 

practise models and principles of good governance, as articulated in the King IV Code of Good Governance. 

In 2019/20, the board operated through the Audit and Performance Committee and was supported by the 

Risk Function of the Parent Municipality although a Committee was not in place. The trio of Audit Committee, 

Internal Audit and Risk Function had been established through a shared service with the parent municipality.  

 

The Board of Directors operated independently, impartially with separate authority from the Chief Executive 

Officer (CEO). The board led the process of organizational oversight whilst the CEO took responsibility for 

the operations of the organization including the supervision and management of staff. 

 

2.4. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE  
 

As already stated above, the Municipal Entity is currently governed by an interim Board of Directors, which 

was appointed by ANDM Council. The board is primarily responsible for amongst other things reviewing and 

setting policies of the organization, approving and determining the organizational structure of the 

organization, setting and approving the strategic direction of the organization, appointing, supervising and 

appraising the CEO, approving annual business plans and budgets, stakeholder relationships and 

evaluating the organization’s performance. Further to that, it is also responsible for reviewing and approving 

the Annual Financial Statements of the organization as well as ensuring that the dictates of the Municipal 

Finance Management Act are observed. The Board is also encumbered to providing regular reports 

(quarterly) to the Executive Mayor and the Council about the operations of the organization. 

 

The Board of Directors is independent, impartial and has a separate role and authority from the Chief 

Executive Officer (CEO). The Board is responsible for organizational oversight whilst the CEO is 

responsible for the operations of the organization including the supervision and management of staff. The 

relationship between the parent municipality and the Agency is governed through a Service Delivery 

Agreement.  
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The figure 2.4.1 below further depicts the relationship between the board, the parent municipality as the 

executive authority, and the Board as the accounting authority and accounting officer. 

 

Figure 2.4.1: Governance Framework 

 

2.4.1. ANDA BOARD MEMBERS AND COMMITTEES 

 

The ANDA Board is constituted of the following members of the Board as per the table below:  

Table 2.4.1.1: ANDA BOARD COMPOSITION 

 

INITIAL AND SURNAME CAPACITY  QUALIFICATIONS 

1. Ms N Mabude Interim Non-Executive Director Master of Arts (Education) 

2. Mr M. Mthimkhulu Interim Non-Executive Director LLB, Master of Public 

Administration  

3. Mr G.T Nota Interim Non-Executive Director BTech (Public Management) 

4. Mr L. Mahlaka Interim Non-Executive Director Master of Public Administration  

5. Mr M. Mlokothi  Interim Non-Executive Director N/A 

6. Ms L. Nonyongo Interim Non-Executive Director BA Human and Social Sciences 
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EXECUTIVE MAYOR 

MSA S93D(2)(a) 
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Collectively, the ANDA board of directors have a range of different skills and experience that they bring for 

the benefit of the Entity. These skills and experiences include accounting, finance, legal, business 

management, human resources and labour relations, marketing, and development management.  The board 

retains full and effective control of the company and monitors the implementation of the company’s strategic 

programmes by the executive management through a structured approach of reporting and accountability. 

It sets the strategic direction of the ANDA and monitors overall performance. 

2.4.2. ORDINARY AND SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS 

The tables above depict attendance meeting schedule for both the ordinary and special Board sessions.  

TABLE 2.4.2.1 ORDINARY BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE SCHEDULE 

BOARD MEMBER MEETING - 6/09/19 
 

MEETING - 10/12/19 
 

Ms N Mabude ✓  ✓  

Mr M. Mthimkulu ✓  -  

Mr G.T Nota -  -  

Mr L. Mahlaka ✓  ✓  

Dr. D Nakin -  -  

Ms L. Nonyongo ✓  ✓  

Mr L Bam (CFO)  ✓  ✓  

Ms M Bambeni (CEO) ✓  ✓  

Ms N Maloi (Exec Manager Programmes) -  ✓  

Ms Jika (Sokutu Attorneys Company Secretary) -  ✓  

Cllr NN Nqoko (Municipal Representative) -  ✓  

Ms D Mrwetyana (Exec Manager Programmes) -  -  

Mr Mlokothi  -  -  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



20 
 

TABLE 2.4.2.2: SPECIAL BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE SCHEDULE  

BOARD MEMBER MEETING 31/05/2020  MEETING 28/06/2020 

Ms N Mabude ✓  ✓  

Mr M. Mthimkhulu ✓  -  

Mr G.T Nota -  -  

Mr L. Mahlaka ✓  ✓  

Mr M Mlokothi  -  ✓  

Ms L. Nonyongo ✓  ✓  

Ms Jika (Sokutu Attorneys- Company Secretary) ✓  ✓  

Mr L Bam (CFO) ✓  ✓  

Ms M Bambeni (CEO) ✓  ✓  

Cllr NN Nqoko(Municipal Representative) ✓  ✓  

Ms D Mrwetyana-Zembe(Exec Manager CPS) ✓  ✓  

Ms N Maloi (Exec Manager Programmes) ✓  ✓  

 

 

 

2.4.3. AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

 

The committee which is a shared function of ANDM is constituted in terms of section 166 of the Municipal 

Finance Management Act, 56 of 2003. It is an independent body that reports to the Board of Directors to 

assist the board in discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding of assets, the operation of an adequate 

system of controls, risk management, governance processes and the preparation of accurate financial 

reporting and statements in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and accounting standards. 

The composition of the Audit and Performance Committee is outlined as follows:  

 

INITIAL AND SURNAME CAPACITY  QUALIFICATIONS 

1. Adv T.W Mgidlana   Chairperson: LLB, B Proc 

2. Mr. Z. Zulu Member  Master’s in Business 

Administration, Post Graduate 

Diploma in Business 

Management, Bachelor’s 
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TABLE 2.4.3.1: COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 

 

The Audit and Performance Committee’s responsibility is to assist the board in fulfilling its legal and fiduciary 

obligations with respect to matters involving risk management, accounting, auditing, financial reporting, 

internal control and financially related legal compliance functions. 

 

The Audit Committee is guided by its approved Charter which describes its roles and responsibilities. Within 

this context, the Audit and Performance Committee may consider any other matter referred to it by 

management, provided that such matters are legitimate and they fall within parameters set in the Audit 

Charter. 

The Audit and Performance Committee will consider, review, comment upon/ or make recommendations 

and advise as far as is necessary to the board on the following areas: 

• Internal Audit and other Audits,  

• The External Audit Function, 

• Risk Management,  

• Performance Management,  

• Information Technology (IT) Governance, 

• Dealing with Adequacy, reliability, and accuracy of financial reporting and information  

 

Although this committee experienced some challenges here and there, this was the most effective 

committee. The Audit and Performance committee has regularly considered submissions from 

Management.  

 

 

 

 

 

Degree in Business 

Technology, Diploma in Labor 

Economics.  

3. Ms. N. Mba 

(CA)(Resigned) 

Member BCom in Accounting, Certificate 

in Accountancy, Bachelor of 

Accounting Science, Financial 

Accounting and Auditing.  
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AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE SCHEDULE 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
MEMBER 

MEETING 
22/07/2019 
 

MEETING 
20/08/2019 
 

MEETING: 
21/09/2019 

MEETING: 
20/11/2019 

MEETING: 
27/01/2020 

MEETING: 
25/05/2020 

Adv T.W. Mgidlana ✓  ✓  ✓  -  ✓  ✓  

Ms N Mba  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  

Mr Z Zulu ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  

Mr S Nelani ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  

Mr Sokutu (Company 
Secretary) 

-  -  -  
✓  ✓  ✓  

Ms N Maloi (Exec 
Manager Programmes) 

-  -  -  
✓  ✓  ✓  

Ms D Mrwetyana-
Zembe(Exec Manager 
CPS  

-  -  -  
-  ✓  ✓  

Ms M Bambeni (CEO)  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  

Mr Kambula (Risk 
Manager) 

✓  ✓  ✓  
✓  ✓  ✓  

Ms O Sompa (Manager 
SCM) 

-  -  -  
-  ✓  ✓  

Ms Z Mketsu (Manager 
Finance) 

-  -  -  
-  ✓  ✓  

Mr L Bam (CFO) ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  ✓  

 

 

2.5. STRATEGIC RISK ASSESSMENT  

 

Implementation of effective risk management within the entity is regulated and guided by Section 62(1) © 

(i) of the Municipal Finance Management Act, which stipulates that the accounting officer of the entity is 

responsible for managing the financial administration of the entity and must for this purpose take all 

reasonable steps to ensure that the entity has and maintains effective, efficient and transparent systems of 

financial and risk management and internal control. 

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework provided a structured, dynamic and consistent 

approach to risk management. It is an integrated approach and recognises that effective risk management 

is critical to the achievement of strategic objectives and the long-term sustainable growth of the entity. The 

process was continuous and risks were updated throughout the year. The framework is in line with relevant 

standards, including ISO 31000, the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations (COSO) of the Treadway 

Commission Framework and the King IV Report. 

During the year under review, the board reviewed the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and 

internal control and conducted a robust assessment of the strategic risks affecting the entity’s strategic goals 

in line with its risk appetite. These activities met the board’s responsibilities in connection with risk 

management and internal control. 
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The aim of the risk appetite remained to highlight the risks that the entity was willing to take, as well as those 

that were unacceptable. The risk appetite included a series of risks that were aligned to the entity’s strategy, 

together with the risk parameters within which the employees were expected to work. Compliance with the 

risk appetite was monitored through the entity’s functional and frontline controls, including oversight and 

reporting mechanisms. The entity recognised that not all risks were controllable or foreseeable, and the 

response to such risks was having controls to lessen the impact to the business should they occur. 

The board conducted an assessment of the strategic risks, alongside the risk appetite, meeting the board’s 

responsibilities in connection with risk management and internal control detailed in King IV. Each of the 

strategic risks was assigned an owner, and a summary of principal risks and the mitigating controls was 

presented at every Audit and Risk Committee meeting.  

The board confirms that the entity’s risk management, mitigation and monitoring processes were effective 

in limiting the potential impact of risks on the business during the year under review. 

Approach to risk management 

The management of risks was at the core of the entity’s internal control environment. There was a risk 

management policy that defined how risks were expected to be identified, assessed and managed 

throughout the entity. Risks were assessed and quantified in terms of their impact and likelihood of 

occurrence, both before and after control mitigation. 

Assessing the inherent risk before control mitigation allowed the entity to review the relative impact of the 

existing controls by comparing the gross and net risk assessment. This also allowed the entity to avoid 

wasting resources on mitigating controls and actions which have a negligible impact on risk assessment. 

The impact of the risks was quantified across a range of factors, including financial, strategy, reputation, 

people, ability to perform services, regulation, safety, health and environment. The risk management policy 

includes defined criteria for each risk impact factor, supporting a consistent measurement approach. Risk 

management took place at all levels, providing an integrated bottom-up and top-down approach. Ultimately, 

the board was responsible for the entity’s risk and internal control framework. It sets out the decisions, and 

hence the level of risk that can be delegated to the executive management, departmental and operational 

management without requiring escalation. This was articulated in a series of the entity’s policies and 

delegated authority matrices, as well as the parameters within the approved risk appetite. 

The board was accountable to ensure that risks were effectively managed, and delegated to ensure the 

oversight of risk management to the Audit and Risk Committee in terms of two combined mandates: The 

committee reviews significant risks and their related mitigations and reports back to the Board at each 
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meeting. The committee also focuses on financial risks and reviews the effectiveness of the risk process. 

The Audit and Risk Committee monitored quarterly risk dashboard reports from the strategic and operational 

risk assessments. In addition, it had oversight of the risk dashboard along with a routine review of key 

controls identified to manage each risk and the sources of control assurance, providing an update to the 

board at each board meeting. The board obtained assurance over risks and risk management through the 

internal control framework. 

Annual risk workshops were held across the entity and identified risks were documented in a risk register 

and assessed based on the likelihood of occurrence and potential impact on the risk exposure of the entity. 

Mitigations were identified against each risk and the remaining residual risk was assessed based on defined 

criteria. The risks with the highest exposure attribution were presented to the executive management to be 

reviewed ahead of being submitted to the Audit and Risk Committee, and ultimately the board for review.  

 

Strategic risks and significant uncertainties 

 

9 Strategic Risks 

1. Lack of stability in governance and leadership;  

2. Ineffective supply chain management processes; 

3. Loss of stakeholder confidence in the entity; 

4. Inability to attract, develop and retain skilled staff; 

5. Inability to manage assets effectively; 

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
L

ik
el

ih
o

o
d

 

 
5 

    1 & 7 

     
4 

   2, 3, 6, 
8 & 9 

 

 
3 

   4 & 5  

 
2 

     

 
1 

     

 
 

 
1 

 
2 

 
3 

 
4 

 
5 

                                              Impact  
 

Risk Index Risk Magnitude 

20 – 25 
 

Extreme 

15 – 19 
 

High 

10 – 14 
 

Medium 

5 – 9 
 

Low 

1 – 4 
 

Insignificant 



25 
 

6. Inability to ensure financial sustainability; 

7. Unsatisfactory delivery and sustainability of programs and projects of the entity; 

8. Unethical behaviour (Fraud, theft and corruption); 

9. Failure to comply with legal and compliance requirements timeously 

 

The following table illustrates the entity’s risk, the likelihood of occurrence and impact at the 

inherent stage and current mitigations 

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigations 

Lack of stability in 
governance and 
leadership 

Almost 
certain 

Critical  

1. Appoint permanent Board members 

 

Ineffective supply chain 
management 
processes; 

Likely High  

1. Align ANDA training plan with ANDM training plan 
 
2. Propose dates for SCM trainings with ANDM 
 
3. Approach different stakeholders and render SCM 
training support for all employees 
 
4. Circulate, Workshop and implement SCM SOPs 
 
5. Develop and implement consequence management 
policy 
 
 

 

Loss of stakeholder 
confidence in the entity; 

Likely High 1. Communicate with district and Incorporate Agency 
communication and public relations in district 
communication plan; 
 
2. Develop a schedule/plan for participation in IGR 
structures 
 

Inability to attract, 
develop and retain 
skilled staff; 

Moderate Medium Develop a programme to review employee contracts 
from temporal to permanent 

Inability to manage 
assets effectively; 

Moderate Medium  
1. Engagements with security personnel to strengthen 
security 
 
2. Installation of CCTV Cameras 
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Inability to ensure 
financial sustainability; 

Likely High  
1. Motivate to the parent municipality using the tangible 
evidence i.e Audit opinion 
 

Unsatisfactory delivery 
and sustainability of 
programs and projects 
of the entity 

Almost 
certain 

Critical  
1. Benchmarking with other District Municipalities' 
Development Agencies 
 
2. Strengthen Subsidy/Grant Transfer & Payment 
Schedule terms in the SDA with the Parent Municipality 
for 2020/21 
 
3. Develop feasibility studies and Business Plan for high 
impact projects and source additional funding 

Unethical behaviour 
(Fraud, theft and 
corruption); 

Likely High  
1. Source and customise anti-corruption strategy and 
fraud prevention plan for the district 

Failure to comply with 
legal and compliance 
requirements timeously.   

Likely High  
1. Centralization of Legal services between the Agency 
and the ANDM 

 

In the financial year under review, the loss of stakeholder confidence has continued to be a challenge. Due 

to limited internal capacity, the entity has requested support from the Parent Municipality in a form of a 

shared service in relation to communication, marketing, public relations and stakeholder liaison. It is 

anticipated that during 2020/21 FY this will assist in regaining stakeholder confidence towards the entity. 

Furthermore, the entity will strongly participate in IGR structures of local municipality as part of rebuilding 

relationships with stakeholders.   

The Parent Municipality has further continued to extend the term of the current interim board of non-

executive directors whilst processes are underway for the appointment of the permanent board members. 

This is a deliberate effort to address the above stated risk or lack of stability in governance and leadership 

of the entity.  

Furthermore, due to limited financial resources, a number of mitigating measures could not be implemented 

in the 2019/20 FY. These are measures that would have tried to mitigate the risk of ineffective supply chain 

management processes as detailed in the risk mitigation plan. However, other efforts were implemented to 

try and improve SCM process, including recruitment of SCM manager,ensuring that all processes are 

followed for new procurement and that challenges relating to irregular and wasteful expenditure are being 

eliminated.   
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In an attempt to address the risk of failure to comply with legal and compliance requirements timeously, the 

entity has developed a compliance calendar/plan which is a guiding tool of the entity for compliance. The 

entity has further recruited a company Secretary who has a responsibility to advise the board on compliance 

matters.  

The entity has noted the risk of inability to attract, develop and retain skilled staff, hence the filing in of critical 

positions within the entity considering the improved and approved organogram. The vacancy rate has 

dropped significantly.  

During the 2019/20 FY, processes were initiated as a strategy to mobilise financial resources for the entity 

with the objective of improving the financial viability of the entity. Moreover, the initiative of mobilising 

resources for the entity has included in its scope the mobilization of non-financial resources aimed at 

enhancing available capacity within the entity to strengthen the conceptualization, planning and 

implementation of initiatives with the key objective of addressing sustainability among others. These efforts 

include submission of application for funding to SETA and initiation of a broader resource mobilization 

initiative. 
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3. CHAPTER 3: ALFRED NZO DISTRICT SOCIO – ECONOMIC PROFILE LOCATION 

 

The Alfred Nzo District is in the North-Eastern part of the Eastern Cape Province in South Africa, as 

shown in Figure 2 below. The District forms part of the Eastern Cape Province boundary with the Kwa-

Zulu Natal province and has strong functional linkages with KZN towns, such as Kokstad and Port 

Shepstone. The District borders the Kingdom of Lesotho to the north and the district of OR Tambo in the 

Eastern Cape and Harry Gwala District in Kwa-Zulu Natal(ANDM IDP 2017-2022). 

 

The N2 national corridor runs in a North-South direction and serves as the main access route to the 

district. It is also worth noting that there is a new access route called the N2 Wild Coast which is currently 

under construction and will run across the Mbizana Local Municipality in the district. Despite this strategic 

location of the area with the N2, the Alfred Nzo District has remained a peripheral economy to these two 

provinces. The district is constituted of Umzimvubu, Matatiele, Mbizana and Ntabankulu Local 

Municipalities. The district consists of 31 wards in Mbizana Local Municipality, 27 wards in Umzimvubu 

Local Municipality, 18 wards in Ntabankulu and 26 wards in Matatiele Local Municipality(ANDM IDP 2017-

2022). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Figure 1: Alfred Nzo in the Eastern Cape Province  

Source: ANDM IDP 2017-2022 
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3.1. DEMOGRAPHICS 

 

The following table indicates the demographic’s patterns of the Alfred Nzo District: 

Table 4.1: Demographics patterns of Alfred Nzo District 

Demographics 2011 2016 

Alfred Nzo Number Percent Number Percent 

Population 

Black African 

Coloured 

Indian or Asian 

White 

801,344 100.0 

794,382 99.1 

3,307 0.4 

1,132 0.1 

1,898 0.2 

867,864 100.0 

862,589 99.4 

3,647 0.4 

598 0.1 

1,030 0.1 

Population by home language 

Afrikaans 

English 

IsiXhosa 

IsiZulu 

Sesotho 

Other 

6,716 0.8 

18,090 2.3 

673,519 84.6 

9,954 1.2 

69,811 8.8 

18,237 2.3 

1,757 0.2 

3,427 0.4 

752,214 88.8 

5,631 0.7 

81,265 9.6 

2,507 0.3 
Number of households 

Households size 

187,183 

4.3 

195,975 

4.4 
Gender 

Male 

 

Female 

 

366,488 45.7 

 

434,857 54.3 

 

397,206 45.8 

 

470,658 54.2 
Population by age 

0 - 14 

15 - 34 

35 - 64 

65 + 

327,704 40.9 

264,442 33.0 

159,685 19.9 

49,514 6.2 

345,624 39.8 

340,753 39.3 

113,039 13.0 

68,448 7.9 
   Source: ANDM IDP 2017-2022 

 

The population dynamics of a district are of paramount importance in addressing the developmental 

needs of any society. The population growth, ageing population, migration and urbanisation all present 

important developmental challenges and opportunities that have direct and indirect implications for 

social, economic and environmental development.  



30 
 

 

 

Development Implications: 

These dynamics in the population structure affect macro-economic factors such as consumption, 

production, employment, income distribution and poverty. The changes in the population structure 

influence universal access to social services such as health, education, sanitation, water, food and 

energy. 

 

Proper planning for population dynamics will therefore ensure that the wellbeing of both the current and 

the future generation is promoted with the motive of advancing sustainable development. In analysing 

the population dynamics, it is essential to look at factors such as urbanisation, migration, fertility, 

mortality, life expectancy as well as the age structure of the population. This will provide insight to the 

living standards of the population and also indicate what policy options should be undertaken according 

to the socio-economic context. These factors will indicate the estimated number of people who are 

dependent on the government for transfers as well as the number of economically active people. These 

factors also play essential role in the efficient allocation of resources at all spheres of government. 

 

The analysis and results of this section were used by the development agency as critical status quo 

analysis that formed the basis upon which the Multi-Year Business Plan was developed and against 

which the annual report reflect any progress made towards the reduction of poverty and vulnerability 

among marginalized people in the District. 

 

The following lessons are derived from the demographics of Alfred Nzo District as stipulated in the ANDM 

IDP 2017-2022).: 

✓ According to Statistics South Africa, Alfred Nzo’s total population has grown from 801 344 

people in 2011 to 867 864 people in 2016 (See Table 1 above). This population of 867 864 

represents 12% of the Eastern Cape total population. 

✓ Between 2011 and 2016, the Alfred Nzo District population grew by 8.3%.  

✓ In 2016, the district has more female (470 658) than male (397 206), however, male population 

has grown faster at 8.4% than their female counterpart at 8.2%. 

✓ Between 2011 and 2016, the population growth was high in Mbizana at 13.5% and low in 

Ntabankulu at 3.9%. In Umzimvubu and Ntabankulu, the female population grew by 3.6%. 
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3.2. ECONOMIC PROFILE 

This section presents a brief overview of Alfred Nzo District’s economy. It looks at the structure and 

performance of the economy, its features, dynamics, potentials of key sectors, and economic trends. 

It includes a sectorial analysis and refers to selected key sectors which are major contributors to the 

economic activity of the district and drivers of the Alfred Nzo District economic growth. 

The economy of Alfred Nzo District is dominated by the public sector, accounting directly for 46% of 

the municipal economy, compared to 15% for the country as a whole. The business sector 

mainly trades and other services, while the productive economy (agriculture, manufacturing and 

construction etc.) is very small. Thus, the district economy is consumptive rather than 

productive(ANDM IDP 2017-2022).  

 

According to ANDM IDP 2017-2022, the total value-added of the Alfred Nzo District economy is 

about R50 billion a year. Formal employment is about 50,000 jobs and there are also about 27,000 

informal jobs. Matatiele LM has the largest economy and Ntabankulu has the smallest. 

 

About 90% of households in ANDM are poor. Unemployment is rife, particularly among the youth, 

and business employment is extremely small in relation to the working age population (and probably 

not showing much growth). Most households rely on social grants and remittances to avoid extreme 

hunger(ANDM IDP 2017-2022).  

 

Alfred Nzo IDP 2017-2022 acknowledges the following challenges facing the district: 

✓ High rate of unemployment; 

✓ High poverty rate; 

✓ Low income levels; 

✓ Skills shortage; 

✓ Slow average economic growth; 

✓ Transformation on the ownership of land is slow; 

✓ Slow delivery on Land Reform Programme; 

✓ Land use planning: sparsely distributed population and topography resulting in costly 

provision of services; 



32 
 

✓ Limited economic potential in rural areas/poor investment in the area due to land under the 

Traditional Authority (Communal Land Tenure); 

✓ Environmental health and management related issues; 

✓ High prevalence of HIV/AIDS; 

✓ Absence of tertiary education facilities; 

✓ Poor access to Health Care facilities; 

✓ High number of children headed households 

In light of the above socio-economic status analysis, ANDA has the responsibility of ensuring that the 

above socio-economic indicators improve.  

 

Table 7 below presents a summary of the selected key economic indicators for Alfred Nzo District as per 

ANDM IDP 2017-2022 

 

✓ In 2015, the total production (Output) of goods and services in Alfred Nzo was R18 671 

million. 

✓ The input cost (Intermediate consumption expenditure) used to produce those goods and 

service was R8 859 million. 

✓ The difference between Output and input (also called Gross Value Added) was R9 812 million. 

✓ 57% of GVA was used as Compensation of Employees (CoE) and 41% as Gross Operating 

Surplus (GOS) 

✓ The input cost accounts for 47% of total production output and the GVA for 53% 

 

  Table 7: Selected key economic indicators: Alfred Nzo, 2015 (R millions at constant 2010 prices) 

Municipality Real Gross Valued 

Added at basic  

Real Compensation of 

employees 

Real Operational 

Surplus 

Real output at basic 

prices 

Alfred Nzo 9,812 5,595 4,017 18,671 

Umzimvubu 

 

Matatiele 

 

Mbizana 

 

Ntabankulu 

2,728 1,640 1,041 5,096 

 

3,524 1,909 1,536 6,787 

 

2,663 1,508 1,098 5,139 

 

897 538 342 1,650 

Eastern Cape 210,006 118,328 87,165 469,860 

Source: ANDM IDP 2017-2022 
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GDP in Alfred Nzo District has grown dramatically between 2003 and 2007; it reached a peak of 6.7% 

growth in 2007. High performance was offseted by a recession in 2008/2009. Since then, growth in the 

district has stagnated above 2 percent. Overall, the district has performed above the province (See 

Figure 5).Figure 5: Alfred Nzo economic performance and trends: GDP growth rate between 1994 and 2015 

 

    Source: ANDM IDP 2017-2022 

 

Economic challenges in Alfred Nzo. 

 

The Alfred Nzo District has various economic challenges. The economy is highly dependent on the 

Government and community services sectors. This is an indication of limited private sector presence 

throughout the district. Another persisting challenge is how to achieve a more equitable distribution 

of economic development opportunities when a greater number of the population reside in less 

economically developed areas and experience an ever-deepening poverty cycle. Hence, the need to 

diversify the economy so that other productive sectors can be enhanced, especially sectors that have 

a direct impact on poverty, such as agriculture.  

 

The economy of Alfred Nzo District is dominated by the service sector, while productive sectors 

(agriculture, mining, manufacturing, construction, etc.) have remained very insignificant in terms of 

their contribution to the district GDP. This implies lack of local economic development initiatives in 

the district’s GVA sectors. However, the country and the district have a LED strategy in place which 

seeks to change the status quo of the district through the LED integrated efforts of various spheres 

of government.  
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4. CHAPTER 4: INSTITUTIONAL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY  

 

This section provides a summary of the institutional performance achievements, challenges and 

measures taken to improve performance during the 2019/20 financial year in line with the planned SDBIP 

targets.  

Table 4.1 Overall Performance  

Department  
Total No. 

of Targets 
Targets  

Achieved 

Targets  
Not 

Achieved 

% 
Achieved 

% 
Not 

Achieved 

Office of the Chief Executive 
Officer 

9 6 3 67 33 

Corporate Services 15 13 2 87 13 

Budget & Treasury Office  15 14 1 93 7 

Programmes 40 21 19 53 47 

Total 79 54 25 68% 32% 

 

• During the 2019/20 financial year, ANDA achieved 68% of the targets that had been set and approved 

in line with the SDBIP by the board, 32% of the targets that had been planned could not be achieved.  

• It is worth noting that the departments that performed well during the 2019/20 financial year are still 

input departments such as, the budget and treasury office, and the corporate services department.  

• The programmes department as an output department has also achieved two-thirds of the targets it 

had set to achieve.  

4.1. OVERVIEW OF THE CHALLENGES  

The operations of ANDA are constrained and/or threatened by some factors that operate in its authorising 

environment. The following are some of the challenges that impacted negatively on the performance of 

the entity: 

• ANDA budget is currently financed generally through a grant transfer from the parent municipality 

and grants from the SETAs. For at least past 3 financial years, ANDA has not been able to receive 
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an increase in its budget allocation from the parent municipality. This poses a challenge as the cost 

of operations has over the years continued to increase. Notwithstanding the directive given to ANDA 

to become self-sustainable and financially viable, given that company is able to generate its own 

revenue, ANDA is not profit-driven from business activities. This means there will always be a need 

for the district to invest in its entity and the  venture will be utilised as leverage for further investment 

attraction. ANDA’s financial instability poses a serious threat to the sustainability of the entity and its 

business operations.   

• ANDA has further demonstrated some weaknesses which might compromise its organisational 

performance. These challenges range from the fact that the institution has been under the guidance 

of the interim board for some time. Hence, from a compliance and a governance perspective, this 

poses a strategic risk to the entity.  

• By the end of the financial year under review, the full implementation of Municipal Standard Chart of 

Accounts (mSCOA) remained one of the biggest challenges facing the entity. ANDA was initially not 

mSCOA compliant as mSCOA compliance is a requirement set by the National Treasury but it is 

worth noting that ANDA is now mSCOA compliant.  

• ANDA Board currently operates through only one committee of the board, the Audit and Performance 

Committee. Other committees that should be in place include the HR committee, the Trade and 

Investment committee and the Social and Ethics committee.   

• There is still a need for the programmes department to improve the nature of initiatives that are 

implemented to ensure that for every initiative that is implemented, that initiative contributes towards 

the improvement of the economic indicators of ANDM as stated above.   

4.2. MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE  

• Although there were challenges experienced by the municipal entity during and at the end of the 

financial year, it is must be noted that various efforts have gone into trying to address those 

challenges. ANDA remains committed to improve on its good governance, accountability and its 

unqualified status from previous year.  

• There is an evident improvement in the alignment of a Multi-Year Business Plan, SDBIP and the 

Budget. This was in response to audit findings raised by internal audit. During the special budget 

adjustment that took place in June, ANDA utilised the opportunity to address critical issues that were 

raised by internal audit.  

• By the end of the financial year under review, ANDA had relatively filled vacancies of critical senior 

management positions.  
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• During the 2018/2019 audit, Auditor General raised issues regarding the Implementation of the 

Performance Management System.  In addressing this matter, the agency has revised its PMS 

framework which is aimed at improving the organizations’ Performance Management Process.  PMS 

Framework has been approved by the board with all other policies. 

5. CHAPTER 5: PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESSES 

 

ANDA Board approved PMS Framework for the agency which measures the implementation of the 

organization’s strategy. It is a management tool used to plan, monitor, measure and assess performance 

indicators to ensure efficiency, effectiveness and the impact of service delivery by the entity. PMS 

framework is the primary mechanism used to monitor, review and improve the implementation of the Multi 

Year Business Plan. It is also used to measure the progress made in achieving the objectives as set out 

in the Multi-Year Business Plan.  

 

The PMS process plan includes the following objectives that the system should in addition fulfill: 

• The system provides a mechanism for ensuring increased accountability between the local 

community, Executive Mayor, the Board of Directors and the entity’s management team. 

• It facilitates learning to enable the entity to improve delivery. 

• The system ensures that decision-makers are timeously informed of performance-related risks, 

so that intervention can be facilitated timeously, if necessary. 

• The system provides appropriate management information that will allow efficient, effective and 

informed decision-making, particularly on the allocation of resources. 

The annual process of managing performance at organizational level at ANDA involves the steps as set 

out in the diagram below: 
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Diagram 5.1: Organizational Performance Management System 

Source: ANDA PMS Framework 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In the period under review, the agency was faced with some limitations with regards to performance 

management process. Individual PMS could not be implemented in the agency. Even though there were 

limitations as specified above, the agency has undertaken to submit the reports to the board of directors 

and ANDM council respectively. Part of the interventions includes implementation of the Audit Action Plan 

recommendations to improve performance management and reporting. The annual process of managing 

the performance of the agency, therefore, include performance planning, measurement, analysis, 

reporting, performance reviews and performance auditing. 

 

It is obligatory for the Board of Directors in terms of the Systems Act to report to the council on the 

performance of the agency as follows: 

• Quarterly Performance Reviews as specified in Section 52(d) of the MFMA 

• Mid Term Performance Review as specified in Section 88 of the MFMA  

• Annual Performance Reviews as stipulated by section 46 of the MSA 

• Annual Reporting as per Section 121 of the MFMA 
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6. CHAPTER 6: PERFORMANCE AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Although we have structured ourselves to deliver the services required, we could not deliver in all 

instances due to a number of challenges which will be further outlined in this section. Nevertheless, we 

continuously strive to deliver on the objectives and targets approved by the ANDA Board.  

 

In 2018/19 financial year, ANDM approved an institutional Budget for ANDA. The institutional budget 

which was prepared in terms of Section 87 of the MFMA was supported by a Multi-Year Business Plan 

2019/20. In order to operationalise the Budget 2019/20 and the Multi-Year Business 2019/20 of the 

institution for the 2019/20 financial year, ANDA developed and approved an SDBIP 2019/20. The Annual 

Report for 2019/20 has been prepared in consideration of the ANDA planning documents as approved 

by the Board and the Parent Municipality. 

 

It is worth noting that during December 2019, ANDA implemented an early budget adjustment which was 

aimed at ensuring that the budget of ANDA remains cash-backed. Therefore, in line with those processes, 

an adjusted SDBIP 2019/20 and Adjusted Multi-Year Business Plan for 2019/20 was developed and 

approved by the board. Likewise, during June 2020, ANDA implemented a Special Budget Adjustment 

which was aimed at ensuring that the budget of ANDA also remains cash-backed. These adjusted 

documents became the final documents against which all financial and non-financial reporting would be 

based for 2019/20 financial year.  

 

As outlined above, ANDA provides service delivery to the people of ANDM in line with the mandate that 

was given to ANDA by the Parent Municipality. Furthermore, in conducting its business, ANDA has 

aligned its strategic direction to that of the IDP 2019/20 and DDP vision 2030 of the parent Municipality. 

The entity, therefore, is structured to respond to the following national KPAs: 

• Service Delivery and Infrastructure Development and Local Economic Development: these key 

performance areas are defined by projects that are cross-cutting and multi-disciplinary within the 

context of the mandate of the entity. Projects that fall within these KPAs seek to provide enabling 

infrastructure for economic development to take place whilst targeting sustainable job creation, skills 

development and income generation. These KPAs essentially represent the key and core business 

of ANDA as a service delivery arm of ANDM. The purpose of the KPA is to ensure that public 

businesses and non-governmental sector partners work collectively to create better conditions for 

sustainable economic growth and employment generation to improve quality of life for all. This KPA 

seeks to ensure a concerted effort to improve opportunities and the well-being of the rural poor 
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through the development and implementation of rural development strategies and as well as establish 

LED partnerships. It further seeks to ensure that conditions for responsible growth and development 

are created by promoting SMME development and driving of key sectoral functions as articulated in 

the Multi-Year Business Plan 2019/22.  

  

• Municipal Financial Viability: through its budget and treasury office, the municipality entity has 

established a department that is aimed at ensuring that the entity becomes financially viable and 

compliant in line with the governance requirements of the MFMA. The purpose of KPA is to lobby 

financial resources and manage income, revenue and agency debt, render supply chain management 

services and expenditure services, render financial planning, budgeting and revenue, and debt 

management services.  

• Municipal Transformation and Institutional Development: this KPA is fulfilled through a corporate 

services department that has been established within the entity to fulfil all related requirements. The 

purpose of the KPA is to render efficient and effective human resources management, administrative 

and ICT support services, render administrative support services, and ensure that the agency 

responds to the technological advancements for efficient and effective service delivery.  

• Good Governance: this KPAs is driven through the office of the CEO mainly through the Internal 

Audit and the Risk Function. It is worth noting that the scope of the office of the CEO is not limited to 

governance. However, the office is charged with ensuring that other KPAs of the entity are adequately 

implemented. The purpose of the KPA is to ensure a fully functional, accountable, responsive and 

financially viable agency administration to achieve the objectives of the development local state. 

 

 Table 6.1 below depicts the overall performance of the municipal entity during the 2019/20 financial 

year.  

Table 6.1 ANDA Overall Performance and 2018/19 Comparatives   

OVERALL PERFORMANCE AND COMPARATIVES   

 2019/20 2018/19 2017/18 

 

 
National 
KPA 

Depar

tment  

Total 

No. of 

targets 

Achieve

d 

Not 

Achieved 

% 

Achiev

ed 

% Not 

Achie

ved 

% 

Achieved 

% Not 

Achieved 

Achieved Not achieved 

Good 

Governa

nce and 

Public 

Participat

ion 

Office 

of the 

Chief 

Execut

ive 

Officer 

9 6 3 68% 32% 
 

60% 

 

40% 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 
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Municipal 

Transfor

mation 

and 

Institutio

nal 

Develop

ment 

Corpor

ate 

Servic

es 

 

15 

 

13 

 

2 
87% 13% 

 

86% 

 

14% 

 

82% 

 

18% 

Service 

Delivery 

and 

Infrastruc

ture 

Develop

ment and 

Local 

Economi

c 

Develop

ment 

Progra

mmes 

 

40 

 

21 

 

19 
53% 47% 

 

71% 

 

29% 

 

29% 

 

71% 

Municipal 

Financial 

Viability 

BTO 15 14 1 93% 7% 86% 14% 80% 20% 

Total 79 54 6 68% 32% 77% 23% 68% 32% 

 

• During the 2019/20 financial year, ANDA had a total of 79 targets that had been set to be achieved 

during the financial year. 54 of those targets were achieved and 25 of the targets were not achieved. 

Therefore, this signifies that ANDA achieved 68% of the set targets for the financial year and 32% of 

the planned targets for the financial year were not achieved.  

• The office of the CEO achieved 67% of the set targets and 33% were not achieved. This is an 

improvement of 7% as compared to 60% of the previous financial year.  

• The programmes department achieved 53% of the targets that had been planned and approved, 47% 

of the targets were not achieved. The performance of the programmes department declined as 

compared to the previous financial year 

• The budget and treasury office achieved 93% of its targets and 7% of those targets were not 

achieved. The budget and treasury office improved from the 86% during the 2018/19 financial year.  

• The corporate services department achieved 87% of its targets and 13% of the set targets were not 

achieved.  
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Table 6.2: Traffic Light Status of ANDA 

Traffic Light Status 2016/2017 

Performance 

2017/2018 

Performance 

2018/19 

Performance 

2019/20 

Performance 

Blue – Performance targets exceeded None None None None 

Green – Performance target met 81% 68% 77% 68% 

Red – Performance target not met 19% 32% 23% 32% 

 

Over the 3 past financial years including the 2019/20 financial year, there has been no evidence to support 

exceptional performance or performance that exceeded the set targets. Furthermore, it is worth noting 

that the overall performance of the entity has gone down from 77% in the 2018/19 to 68% in the 2019/20 

FY respectively. Hence, there is a demonstrated decline of 9% in overall institutional performance of the 

municipal entity as compared to the previous financial year. 
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7. CHAPTER 7: MUNICIPAL INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND 

TRANSFORMATION 

 

At planning stage, 15 targets were planned for this KPA,13 targets were achieved and two targets were 

not achieved due to targets that could not be successfully implemented during the financial year including 

the approval of policies and other related activities. A process is already underway to undertake the review 

of organisational policies. It is expected that this process will be concluded during the second quarter of 

the 2020/21 financial year. It is worth noting though that as a result of the recruitment of the executive 

manager corporate services during the financial year under review, the performance of the corporate 

services department improved from 86% overall achievement in the 2018/19 financial year to 87% for the 

financial year under review, 13% was not achieved.  

7.1. PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2019/20  

• The corporate services department displayed good overall performance during the 2019/20 

financial year despite the department operating without an executive manager for the first half of 

the financial year.   

• Through the efforts of a human resource practitioner, the department successfully led the process 

of recruiting and filling of critical senior positions which was much needed to lead the institution 

into a new dawn. 

 

7.1.1. CHALLENGES 

• Critical challenges for this department during the 2019/20 include the vacancy of the Executive 

Manager Corporate Services for the first half of the financial year. This meant that certain critical 

functions of the department could not be met.  

 

7.1.2. MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE 

• The recruitment of Executive Manager of programmes and corporate services. 

7.2. INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 

All ICT licences that were due for renewal during the 2019/20 financial period were renewed together with 

their service level agreements. It should be noted that the entity systems including softwares and 

applications have to be legit and licenced in compliance with ICASA regulations relating to ICT systems 

licencing. The entity’s ICT infrastructure is not running on latest technology or system version that should 

be maintained and supported regularly.  
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7.3. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

 

The Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998, (“the EEA”) applies in its entirety as the act championing 

employment equity and all matters related to prohibition and elimination of unfair discrimination and the 

measures designed to achieve fairness. It lists the following grounds into which unfair discrimination (i.e. 

discrimination not aimed to advance employment equity) may not take place: race, gender, sex, 

pregnancy, marital status, family responsibility, ethnic or social origin, colour, sexual orientation, age 

disability, religion, HIV status, conscience, belief, political opinion, culture, birth and language. 

 

The entity board approved the Employment Equity Policy on the 27 June 2019. The purpose of this policy 

is to address the issues of inequality within the Institution in line with Employment Equity Act number 55 

of 1998. In terms of addressing the affirmative issues on appointment, the entity has appointed 3 female 

senior managers out of 4 Positions that are on its approved organisational structure. Noteworthy to say 

that majority of workers within the institution are young women. The entity is in a process to review the 

employment equity plan to include targets that will inform recruitment going forward. 

 

7.4.  TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

During 2019/2020 Financial year, Corporate Services Department conducted a skills audit for all 

employees of the entity to close the skills gap in terms of performing their respective duties. Out of the 

skills audit conducted, the entity has since developed an Annual Training Plan for 2019/2020. The 

Annual Training Plan was not implemented due to limited budget of the entity.  Budget and Treasury 

Office is dependent on consultants; however, the long-term goal of the project is to capacitate and 

transfer skills within the department. The Agency has also received the approval of training on project 

management from SETA for 6 ANDA employees. 

.  
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8. CHAPTER 8: SERVICE DELIVERY AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AND 

LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

 

The Department is charged with driving Goal 1 and Goal 2 which is Sustainable Inclusive Economic 

Growth and Economic Infrastructure Development respectively. That being the case, the Department, 

therefore, is responsible for facilitating the implementation of the core business of the municipal entity. 

Although these goals’ key objective is to drive economic and infrastructure development, it must, however, 

be emphasised that all strategies will be implemented taking into account sustainability requirements 

including environmental sensitivity.  

 

In the beginning of the financial year, Programmes Department had (40) planned targets. The department 

achieved 53% of the targets that had been planned and approved, 47% of the targets were not achieved. 

This is a significant decline of overall performance from the previous financial year. Improvement in the 

performance of the Programmes Department remains a significant priority.  

 

8.1. CHALLENGES 

 

During the 2019/20 financial year, it has been observed that the overall performance of the KPA declined 

due to some factors which include the following: 

• Emfundisweni Development Centre is one of the development projects under the management 

of ANDA. During the 2019/20 FY, there was a community unrest which led to major adverse 

financial and service delivery changes in terms of planned projects and targets. ANDA had 

budgeted for and planned to implement a set of service delivery activities, however, due to 

service delivery unrest at Emfundisweni Development Centre, ANDA had to reallocate additional 

resources leaving others projects under-resourced. Furthermore, the community unrest 

adversely affected planned intervention by various SETAs which had committed to plough 

investment into the project.  

• The emergence of COVID-19 pandemic and its associated regulations have led to delays in 

implementing projects led through partnership with various SETAs. The Department of Higher 

Education and Training had made a commitment that SETAs would support Emfundiweni Skills 

Development and Resource Centre, although processes were underway to formally establish the 

partnerships between ANDA and various SETAs for skills programme implementation, the 

planned initiatives had to be put on hold due to the effects of COVID 19 pandemic.  
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• During the skills audit that was conducted in the Programmes Department during the 2019/20 

FY, it was identified that the department has a skills gap particularly as it relates to project 

management and other inherent skills that are meant to enhance the performance of the 

Department. 

• The entity in the past has been implementing projects that are not consistent with the mandate 

of the entity and are not of high impact in nature. This has resulted in a poorly perceived impact 

on the role of the development agency. 

• During 2019/20 financial year, limited funding resources have negatively affected the ability to 

implement services delivery projects designed to create employment, generate income and grow 

the economy. 

 

8.2. MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE 

• It is worth noting that in the year under review, ANDA through the leadership of the board and of 

the parent municipality intervened at Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre to create stability 

during the time of community unrest. Furthermore, ANDA has continued to manage relationships 

with the SETAs for the benefit of Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre and broader district 

community, notwithstanding the negative effects of the community unrests and the relationship 

of ANDA and SETAs including future prospects.  

• The entity has strengthened the capacity of the department through the recruitment of Executive 

Manager Programmes.  

• The entity applied for SETA services funding which was approved to implement project 

management for employed learners. The funding will be utilised to prioritise the training 

development for Programmes Department to enhance the skills and capacity for better delivery 

on project management.  

• To address the challenge relating to the nature of projects being implemented by the entity and 

also having consulted the planning documents, such as DDP 2030, IDP 2017/2022, Local 

Regional Development Strategy, ANDA has been able to identify key projects that meet the high 

impact criteria. As ANDA currently embarks on resource mobilization efforts, these are the 

projects that are presented to prospective funders. These projects are finding expression in the 

Multi-Year Business Plan 2019/2022 and were also part of the outcomes of the board’s Strategic 

Planning Session held in April 2019.  

• ANDA has embarked on a resource mobilisation process aimed at attracting potential funders for 

high impact projects 
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9. CHAPTER 9: MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND MANAGEMENT 

 

Municipal Financial Viability and Management is a goal that is driven primarily by the Finance Department. 

In the Budget and Treasury Department, there were 15 targets planned, 14 targets were achieved and 

one was not achieved. This department has done particularly well as it has only one target that was not 

achieved.  

 

There are however areas of improvement that need attention such as the implementation of planned 

objectives especially the legislated prescripts and systems suggested by National Treasury such as the 

implementation of an mSCOA compliant financial system. Payment of creditors within thirty days, the 

development and implementation of a fraud prevention plan and the development of standard operating 

procedures are still areas that need attention. 

 

9.1. FINANCIAL HEALTH OVERVIEW 
 
The Agency received a total grant of R 17 826 087.00 exclusive of VAT from the Alfred Nzo District 

Municipality and R 120 000.00 from rental income, R 31 144 from Other Income (mainly sale of tender 

documents) and received an interest of R 136 185 as interest from the agency’s accounts for the year 

2019/2020. 

 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

1.4.2 Alfred Nzo Development Agency - Table F2 Monthly Budget Statement - Financial Performance (revenue and expenditure) 
- M12 June 

Description 

2018/19 
Current 

Year 
2019/20 

              

Audited 
Outcome 

Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Monthly 
actual 

YearTD 
actual 

YearTD 
budget 

YTD variance 
YTD 

varian
ce 

Full Year 
Forecast 

R thousands               %   

Revenue By 
Source               

  
  

Property 
rates 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Property 
rates - penalties 
& collection 
charges 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   

Service 
charges - 
electricity 
revenue 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   

Service 
charges - water 
revenue 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   

Service 
charges - 
sanitation 
revenue 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   
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Service 
charges - refuse 
revenue 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   

Service 
charges - other 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Rental of 
facilities and 
equipment 

                  
–   

                 
96  

                
138  

                  
–   

                
120  

                 
88                   32  

36.4% 

                240  

Interest 
earned - 
external 
investments 

                
227  

                
153  

                
153  

                   
0  

                
136  

                
140                    (4) 

-2.9% 

                272  

Interest 
earned - 
outstanding 
debtors 

                  
–     

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   

Dividends 
received 

                  
–     

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Fines 
                  
–     

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Licences and 
permits 

                  
–     

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Agency 
services 

                  
–     

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Transfers 
recognised - 
operational 

           20 
000  

           24 
105  

           20 
500  

                  
–   

           17 
826  

           22 
096   

 

           35 652  

Other 
revenue 

                 
11  

                
249  

                 
61  

                  
–   

                 
35  

                
229             17 597  

7695.5
%                  69  

Gains on the 
disposal of PPE 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Total Revenue 
(excluding 
capital 
transfers and 
contributions) 

           20 
238  

           24 
603  

           20 
851  

                   
0  

           18 
117  

           22 
553              (4 436) 

-19.7% 

           36 234  

                    

 
 
Expenditure by 
Type               

  

  

Employee 
related costs 

             4 
613  

           11 
048  

           10 
798  

             1 
376  

           10 
834  

           10 
127                  702  

6.9% 
           21 657  

Remuneratio
n of Directors 

                
363  

                
200  

                
120  

                 
16  

                
102  

                
183                  (82) 

-44.6% 
                203  

Debt 
impairment 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Collection 
costs 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Depreciation 
& asset 
impairment 

                
178  

                  
–     

                 
26  

                 
78  

                  
–                    78  

 

                157  

Finance 
charges 

                 
88  

                 
70  

                 
20  

                   
1  

                 
21  

                 
64                  (44) 

-68.6% 
                 40  

Bulk 
purchases 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Other 
materials 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Contracted 
services 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Transfers 
and grants   3 479      6 055     2 454  

                 
43       2 383  5 550              (3 167) 

-57.1% 
             4 766  

Other 
expenditure 7 229     9 655    7 459  

                
188    7 158       8 850              (1 693) 

-19.1% 
           14 315  

Loss on 
disposal of PPE 

                  
–     

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Total 
Expenditure  15 949  27 028   20 851      1 649   20 576     24 775              (4 206) 

-17.0% 
           41 139  

                    

Surplus/(Defici
t) 4 288   (2 424) 

                  
(0)     (1 649)  (2 453)    (2 222)                (231) 

10.4% 
    (4 906) 

Transfers 
recognised - 
capital 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   



48 
 

Contributions 
recognised - 
capital 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  

                  –   

Contributions 
of PPE 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Surplus/(Defici
t) before 
taxation    4 288    (2 424) 

                  
(0)     (1 649)   (2 453)   (2 222)                (231) 

10.4% 

     (4 906) 

Taxation 
                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

  
                  –   

Surplus/(Defici
t) for the year 4 288      (2 424) 

                  
(0)  (1 649)  (2 453)    (2 222)                (231) 

  
       (4 906) 

 

Operational Expenditure 

 
 

• Employee salaries amounts to                     R 10 834 961 

• Remuneration of the board amounts to        R 101 500     

• Bank charges              R 21 235     

• Repairs and maintenance amounts to           R 57 245       

• Other operational expenditure amounts to   R 7 063 883 

 
Project Expenditure 
 
Project expenditure amounted to                      R 2 497 176 

 
           

9.2. OVERALL PERFORMANCE AS MEASURED AGAINST THE ENTITY’S MULTI-YEAR BUSINESS PLAN 

 

ANDA is funded by ANDM who is a sole shareholder and a parent municipality to the entity. This report 

aims to facilitate reporting and accountability in relation to municipal funding transferred to the 

development agency for service delivery implementation. 

 

1.4.3 ALFRED NZO 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY - 

BUDGET STATEMENT - 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE           

Vote Description 

2018/19 
Current 

Year 
2019/20 

              

Audited 
Outcome 

Original 
Budget 

Adjusted 
Budget 

Monthly 
actual 

YearTD actual 
YearTD 
budget 

YTD 
variance 

YTD 
variance 

Full 
Year 

Forecast 

R thousands               %   

Multi-Year expenditure                   

Insert programme/projects 
description 

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                    
–   

Msukeni Development 
Corporative   

                
200  

                
230  

                  
–                   207 

                
183  

                 
39  

21.4%                 
445  

Livestock & Poultry 
Production 

                
100  

                
100  

                
180  

                  
–                   175  

                 
92  

                
131  

143.0%                 
446  

Mfundisweni Skills 
Development and Resource 
Centre 

                  
–   

             
4 805    1 110  

                 
44                  1 233  4 405  

     (3 
432) 

-77.9% 

     1 946  
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Grain Production   
                
200  

                  
–   

                  
–                    80  

                
183  

               
(183) 

-100.0%                   
–   

Ludeke Dam 
                  
–   

                
200  

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

                
183  

               
(183) 

-100.0%                   
–   

Ntenetyana Dam 
                  
–   

                
200  

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

                
183  

               
(183) 

-100.0%                   
–   

Anchor projects (Fort 
Donald, Chicken Abbatoir, 
Mzimvubu Goat Project, 
Mfundisweni Trade Centre 

                
422  

                
200  

                
325  

                  
–                   324  

                
183  

                
259  

141.4% 

                
885  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

Capital multi-year 
expenditure sub-total 

                
522  

             
5 905     1 845  

                 
44                2 019  

             
5 413  

            
(3 552) 

-65.6%              
3 721  

                    

Single Year expenditure                   

Insert single year budgets 
and indicative estimates             

                  
–   

  
  

Furniture & Office Equipment                 
119  

                 
50  

                 
50  

                  
–                      53 

                 
46  

                
(40) 

-87.3%                 
100  

General Equipment 
                  
–   

                  
–     

                  
–                     –   

                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

Computer Hardware  
                
131  

                 
50  

                
545  

                  
–                   347 

                 
46  

                
362  

790.8%                  
50  

Motot vehicles 
                  
–   

                  
–   

                   
5  

                  
–                      5 

                  
–   

                   
2  

 

  

Software 
                 
92  

                 
50  

                 
10  

                  
–                    73 

                 
46  

                 
60  

131.7% 
  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

            
                  
–   

                  
–   

  
  

Capital single-year 
expenditure sub-total 

                
342  

                
150  

                
610  

                  
–                   478  

                
138  

                
385  

279.9%                 
150  

Total Capital expenditure 
                
864  

         6 
055     2 454  

                 
44                2 497  

        5 
550  

      (3 
167) 

-57.1%         3 
871  

                    

Funded by:                   

National Government 
                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                    
–   

Provincial Government 
                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                    
–   

Parent Municipality 
                
422  

             
6 055  

         2 
454  

                 
44          2 383  

        3 
532  

     (1 
149) 

-32.5%       11 
772  

District Municipality 
                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                  
–                     –   

                  
–   

                  
–   

                    
–   

Transfers recognised - 
capital 

                
422  

             
6 055    2 454  

                 
44          2 383  

        3 
532  

       (1 
149) 

-32.5%       11 
772  

Public contributions & 
Donations             

                  
–   

  
  

Borrowing             
                  
–   

  
  

Internally generated 
funds             

                  
–   

  
  

Total Capital Funding 
                
422  

             
6 055    2 454  

                 
44          2 383    3 532    (1 149) 

-32.5% 
11 772  

 

Liquidity Ratios 
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• Quick Ratio = Cash + Cash Equivalents + Short Term Investments + Current Receivables / Current 

Liabilities 

= R 707 389 + R 0.00 + R 202 357 / R 1 892 256 

= R 909 746 / R 1 892 256 

= 0.48  

The quick ratio is less than 1 meaning that the agency can struggle to pay off all its current liabilities with 

its current assets and have any current assets after that. 

• Quick Ratio = Total Current Assets – Inventory – Prepaid Expenses/ Current Liabilities 

= R 909 746 – R 0.00 – R 0.00 / R 1 892 256 

= 0.48 

The quick ratio is less than 1 meaning that the agency can struggle to pay off all its current liabilities with 

its current assets and have any current assets after that. 

• Current Ratio = Current assets / current liabilities 

= R 909 746/ R 1 892 256 

= 0.48 

The current ratio is less than 1 meaning that the agency can struggle to pay off its current liabilities with 

its current assets. 

Solvency Ratios 

• Debt to equity ratio = Total debts/owner’s equity 

= R 1 892 256/ R 1 205 344 

= 1.57 

NB: Equity is the municipal entity’s share of the total assets. 

Since the ratio is above 1, it implies that if the agency would be wound up,  the municipality, as the 

shareholder, would have to sell off some of its assets to cover its debts. 

• Equity Ratio = Total Equity / Total Assets 

 = R 1 205 344 / R 3 097 600 

= 0.39 
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Since the ratio is less than one it implies the total asset value part of the asset value is covered by 

creditors.     

• Debt Ratio = Total Liabilities / Total Assets 

= R 1 892 256/ 3 097 600 

 = 0.61 

A ratio less than 1 implies that the agency would be unable to pay all its current liabilities with its current 

assets it’s total assets can cover all its debts. 

9.2.1. CHALLENGES 

 

• Financial viability of ANDA remains a challenge. the BTO Department is thus charged with the 

responsibility to provide support and leadership towards the achievement of financial viability and 

revenue enhancement for the organisation.  

• There has been a negative effect as a result of Covid-19 pandemic on SETA contracts which 

predominantly requires structured classroom learning which now has additional regulatory 

requirements which must be adhered to during implementation.  

• During the 2019/2020 financial year, the entity had challenges in terms of mSCOA compliance up 

until the fourth quarter. 

• Development and strict implementation of standard operating procedures.  

9.2.2. MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE 

• A process is underway to ensure that ANDA becomes fully mSCOA compliant. The service 

provider to undertake the project has received all necessary appointments, and some major 

milestones have been achieved thus far including the successful integration of mSCOA compliant 

for ANDA and ANDM budget for the 2020/21 FY. 

• However, major significant progress is noted in terms of mSCOA compliance implementation 

where a process to consolidate the budget of the district with that of the entity was initiated and 

later concluded at the first quarter of 2020/2021. 

• Development of standard operating procedures remains as an area of improvement.  

• The parent municipality intervened by allocating an amount of R500 000.00 which was intended 

to finance COVID-19 supplies and services. This intervention was meant to support business 
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continuity. The COVID-19 supplies and services were successfully procured in the 4th quarter of 

2019/20 FY. 

• Financial viability is an organisational matter that continues to be dealt with throughout the 

organisation.  

 

9.3. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE  

 

The agency is in the process of minimizing irregular expenditure that has been incurred over the years in 

line with section 102 of the MFMA. Total irregular expenditure of ANDA for prior years (from 2013/2014 

to 2019/2020 Financial year) amount to R29 785 010.23. Investigations to establish recoverable and 

irrecoverable expenditure are on final stages in preparation for the board’s recommendation for write – 

off to council for irrecoverable expenditure. Consequence management will be taken on recoverable 

amounts.   

 

The irregular expenditure that has been incurred during the 2019/20 financial year amounts to R826 

607.72. The Irregular expenditure during the 2019/20 financial year has been incurred as a result of 

previously existing contracts that could not be terminated with immediate effect due to its nature. During 

the 2019/2020 financial year, the entity has cancelled most of the irregular contracts that are on the 

contracts register, only Vodacom Business is still irregular but the entity is in a process of appointing a 

service provider for telecommunication services to deal with irregular expenditure. 

 

For all the services that brought about irregular expenditure, namely, security services, 

telecommunications and Insurance services, there are formal tender processes underway.  
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10. CHAPTER 10: GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

The strategic objective of the CEO’s Office is to strengthen governance, reduce risk, increase the 

performance and efficiency level of the institution. The office of the CEO had 9 targets and out of all those 

planned targets, 6 Targets were achieved. The remaining three targets were not achieved.  

 

10.1. CHALLENGES 

• One of the challenges of the organisation is the absence of a full-time board of the entity 

• In terms of sub-committees of the board, there is only the Audit and Performance Committee in 

place. Other critical committees that should be in place were not established and functional during 

the 2019/20 financial year.  

• During the 2019/20 FY, there were also instances when there were delays in the implementation 

of extensions of the interim board which resulted in delays in the sitting of the board.  

• In the office of the CEO, there is also limited capacity to execute key functions such as 

communications and stakeholder relations management, risk management and the internal audit 

function.  

• Given the nature of the organisation, the CEO should be dedicating a large proportion of time to 

strategic issues such as resource mobilisation. However, due to limited capacity, more time is 

dedicated to operational issues and this could compromise intended outcomes of the 

organisation.  

 

10.2. MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE PERFORMANCE 

• ANDA has engaged the ANDM to provide support with regards to the recruitment of a full-time 

board. The district has a process underway towards the recruitment of a permanent board.  

• Due to limited available specialist capacity, ANDA requested a shared service from ANDM. ANDA 

has requested support in terms of risk function, internal audit function, and communications. This 

has assisted from a capacity point of view. However, in the medium to long term, the entity must 

have its own internal capacity.  

• The office of the Chief Executive Officer has 2 staff members (Programmes Officer, and Project 

Coordinator Planning and Reporting) who report directly to the Chief Executive Officer in terms 

of the organogram. 
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• The appointment of a full-time board will better enable the process of appointing sub-committees 

of the board. 

11. CHAPTER 11: KEY AREAS TO NOTE 

 

11.1. IMPROVING PERFORMANCE  

 

This section highlights key areas for improving performance.  

• The financial viability of the institution is still an area of concern. The entity depends mainly on the 

grant transfers from the parent municipality to manage its operations. There are however efforts that 

have been initiated to attract new funding for the institution, in particular, for the implementation of 

service delivery programmes.  

• The entity has not performed well regarding service delivery and impact, in terms  of economic growth, 

employment creation and income generation. However, processes are underway to address resource 

mobilisation which enhance project management capabilities including project planning.  

• The parent municipality is aware of the challenge pertaining to the appointment of the full-time board, 

a process is underway for the recruitment of the full-time board. 

• Efforts continue to be implemented towards the improvement of compliance matters, strengthening 

of internal environment systems and controls. The entity is now mSCOA compliant. 

 

11.2. ANTI- CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

 

The agency currently does not have a proper establishment of risk function in place. The entity has over 

the years relied on the parent municipality to provide this particular service. The Risk Management 

function is made on a shared service basis with the parent municipality. As such, the entity does not have 

an Anti-corruption and fraud prevention plan for the year under review. Fraud Risk assessment was 

conducted through a shared service basis through the circulation of risk register to identify high-risk areas 

that are prone to fraud along with mitigating strategies which give effect to the plan.   

  

 

. 
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12. CHAPTER 12: ASSESSMENT OF THE PERFORMANCE OF EXTERNAL SERVICE PROVIDER 

 

LEGEND:  

1 – Not meeting the standards (0-30%) 

2 – Meet some of the standards (30-50%) 

3 – Meet most of the standards (50-70%) 

4 – Meet all the standards (70-100%) 

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

SERVICE 

RENDERED 

SET TARGET OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

SET TARGET OF PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

MEASURE TAKEN 

TO IMPROVE 

PERFORMANCE 

RATING FOR 

CURRENT 

FINANCIAL 

YEAR 

COMMENTS 

/RECOMMENDATIONS 

DEPARTMENT: BUDGET AND TREASURY OFFICE 

UNIT: BUDGET PLANNING AND INVESTMENTS 

Imani Business 

Advisory Services 

Annual Financial 

Statements  

To facilitate 

submission of 

2018/19 AFS 

Meet all the 

standards 
N/A N/A 

N/A 4 N/A 

MUNSOFT Financial System 

Facilitate the 

conversion of 

ANDA 

database to be 

mSCOA 

complaint 

(mSCOA go-

live). By 30 

June 2020   

Meet all the 

standards 

Provision of municipal 

financial system for 

transacting 

Good 
N/A 4 N/A 

MUNSOFT Server upgrade 

Facilitate the 

conversion of 

ANDA 

database to be 

mSCOA 

complaint 

Meet all the 

standards 
N/A N/A 

N/A 4 N/A 
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LEGEND:  

1 – Not meeting the standards (0-30%) 

2 – Meet some of the standards (30-50%) 

3 – Meet most of the standards (50-70%) 

4 – Meet all the standards (70-100%) 

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

SERVICE 

RENDERED 

SET TARGET OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

SET TARGET OF PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

MEASURE TAKEN 

TO IMPROVE 

PERFORMANCE 

RATING FOR 

CURRENT 

FINANCIAL 

YEAR 

COMMENTS 

/RECOMMENDATIONS 

(mSCOA go-

live). By 30 

June 2020    

Imani Business 

Advisory 

Provision of 

Financial 

Services 

To facilitate 

submission of 

2019/20 AFS  

Meet all the 

standards 

To facilitate submission of 

2019/20 AFS  
 

N/A 4 N/A 

UNIT: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT  

Indwe Risk 

Services 

Business 

Insurance 

Facilitate 

updates to the 

portfolio of 

assets insured  

N/A 
Business Insurance 

Submitted claims 

are attended to. 
N/A 4 N/A 

Tracker Vehicle Tracker 
Fleet 

Management  
N/A 

Vehicle Tracker  N/A 4 N/A 

DEPARTMENT: COROPORATE SERVICES  

Vodacom 

Business 

Contract Phones 

and Internet 

To initiate and 

maintain 

Network 

Infrastructure 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 4 N/A 

Prestige Security 

Services 

 

Business 

Security Services 
N/A 

Meet some the 

standards 
N/A N/A N/A 2 N/A 
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LEGEND:  

1 – Not meeting the standards (0-30%) 

2 – Meet some of the standards (30-50%) 

3 – Meet most of the standards (50-70%) 

4 – Meet all the standards (70-100%) 

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

SERVICE 

RENDERED 

SET TARGET OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

SET TARGET OF PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

MEASURE TAKEN 

TO IMPROVE 

PERFORMANCE 

RATING FOR 

CURRENT 

FINANCIAL 

YEAR 

COMMENTS 

/RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

Konica Minolta 

Facilitate the 

servicing of the 

printing machine. 

Facilitate the 

servicing of the 

printing 

machine. 

Meet all the 

standards 
N/A N/A N/A 4 N/A 

DEPARTMENT: PROGRAMMES  

 

Umzimvubu 

Leather Craft 

 

Provision of 

cleaning services 

Procurement of 

cleaning 

material and 

cleaning 

services. 

Meet all the 

standards N/A N/A N/A 4 
N/A 

Emfundisweni 

Skills 

Development 

Centre  

Emfundisweni 

Business 

Support 

Provide 

financial 

support to 

Emfundisweni 

Skills 

Development 

centre 

Meet all the 

standards N/A N/A N/A 4 
N/A 

ATS Civils & 

Trading 

Fencing at 

Mbizana Chicken 

Abattoir 

Undertake 

Infrastructure 

Improvement 

Meet some of 

the standards N/A N/A N/A 2 
N/A 
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LEGEND:  

1 – Not meeting the standards (0-30%) 

2 – Meet some of the standards (30-50%) 

3 – Meet most of the standards (50-70%) 

4 – Meet all the standards (70-100%) 

NAME OF SERVICE 

PROVIDER 

SERVICE 

RENDERED 

SET TARGET OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2019/2020) 

SET TARGET OF PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

STATUS OF 

PERFORMANCE 

(2020/2021) 

MEASURE TAKEN 

TO IMPROVE 

PERFORMANCE 

RATING FOR 

CURRENT 

FINANCIAL 

YEAR 

COMMENTS 

/RECOMMENDATIONS 

 by 30 June 

2020 

DEPARTMENT: CEO’s OFFICE 

Siyathemba 

Sokuthu Attorneys 

Provision of 

Company 

Secretary 

Services 

N/A 
Meet all the 

standards  N/A N/A N/A 4 
N/A 

Tonise Attorneys Panel of lawyers 

Handling of Legal 

Matters For 

ANDA 

N/A 
Meet all the 

standards N/A N/A N/A 4 
N/A 

Dr Sugudhav-

Sewpersahd 

Attorneys 

Panel of lawyers 

Handling of Legal 

Matters For 

ANDA 

N/A 
Meet all the 

standards N/A N/A N/A 4 
N/A 

    
    

 

Thipa Attorneys 

Incorporated 

Panel of lawyers 

Handling of Legal 

Matters For 

ANDA 

N/A N/A 
N/A N/A N/A N/A 

N/A 
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13. ANNEXURE A: BOARD RESOLUTION REGISTER 

  

 

 

ANDA BOARD RESOLUTIONS REGISTER 2019/20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legend: No. of Resolutions 

Done/Approved 18 

Noted  10 

In progress  0 

Not done 1 

Total No.Resolution 29 
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ITEM  
NO. 

 

 
ITEM 

 
TASK 

 
RESOLUTION 

 
ACTION TAKEN 

RESPONSIBL
E  

PERSON 

 
REPORTING  

PERIOD 

 
STATUS 

 
 

 

 
BOARD MEETING HELD ON 06 SEPTEMBER 2019 

 

2. Applications for 

Leave of Absence                       

 

Reports of 
Absence and 
apologies  

1. The above listed leave of 

absence be approved 

accordingly.  

Leave of absence approved Chairperson Q1  
Implemented 

2. A letter be written to the 

parent Municipality regarding 

the continuous absenteeism 

of the Municipal Managers 

from local Municipalities. 

 

There was a meeting with 
the Executive Mayor. 

6.  Confirmation of 
Agenda 
 

Confirm the 
Agenda for the 
meeting 

1.In the near future, a CEO’s 

report be added into the 

agenda as to manage the 

length of the Agenda.  

 

CEO’s report has been 
added in subsequent 
meetings  

CEO  Implemented  

2. The agenda be confirmed 

with no further inputs 

The Agenda was confirmed  
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8.  CONFIRMATION 
OF PREVIOUS 
MEETING 
MINUTES  

Confirm the 
Previous Meeting 
Minutes 

1. Minutes of the 2nd 

Ordinary Board 

Meeting- 27 June 

2019 be confirmed as 

a true reflection of 

the proceedings of 

the meeting 

Minutes were confirmed  Chairperson  Q1 Minutes were 
confirmed  

10.1. DRAFT ANNUAL 
PERFOMANCE 
REPORT 2018/19 

Noting of the 
report 

1.It notes the ANDA Draft 

Annual Performance Report 

2018/19 FY 

Draft APR noted  CEO Q1 Report was 
noted 

10.2 ANDA DRAFT 
ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
2018/19 

Noting of the 
report 

1.It notes the Draft Annual 
Financial Statement of the 
Entity 2018/2019.  

 
 
 

Draft AFS noted  CEO Q1 Report was 
noted 

10.3 DRAFT 2018/19 
AUDIT 
STRATEGY 
 

Approval of the 
Strategy 

1.A Hybrid Audit methodology 

approach be adopted  

 

Implemented  CFO Q1 Approved 

2.It approves the 2018/19 

Audit Strategy with its hybrid 

approach recommendation. 

 

Approved  
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10.4 mSCOA 
COMPLIANCE 
REPORT 

Report was 
submitted for 
noting 

1.It approves that the Entity 

must be mSCOA compliant 

Approved  CFO  Q1  
Approved 

2.It further approves the 

migration of the entity from 

PASTEL to Munisoft financial 

Accounting system 

 

Approved  

3.It rescinds Regulation 32 

decision to appoint a Financial 

accounting system service 

provider-Munisoft for mSCOA 

compliance.  

 

Regulation 32 was 
rescinded accordingly  

10.5. ANDA 
RECRUITMENT 
PROGRESS 
REPORT 

Report was 
submitted for 
noting 

1.It notes the progress on 

recruitment of the Chief 

Financial Officer, Executive 

Manager Programmes, 

Executive Manager Corporate 

Noted  CEO Q1 Noted 
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Services, Finance Manager 

and SCM Manager Positions.  

10.6 ANDA QUARTER 
4 
PERFORMANCE 
REPORT 2018/19 

Report was 
submitted for 
approval. 

1.It approves the submitted 
quarter four report  

 

Approved CEO Q1 Approved 

10.7 QUARTER 4 

FINANCIAL 

REPORT 2018/19 

 

Report was 
submitted for 
approval. 

1.It approves the submitted 
quarter four financial report 

Approved  CEO Q1 Approved 

10.8 DRAFT ANNUAL 

REPORT ON THE 

IMPLEMENTATIO

N OF SCM 

2018/19 

Report was 
submitted for 
approval. 

1. It approves the Annual 

Report on the Implementation 

of SCM 2018/19.  

 

Approved CEO Q1 Approved 

10.9 DEVIATIONS 

REPORT 

Report was 
submitted for 
approval. 

1.It approves the Deviations 

as presented in the report 

subject to the SCM policy 

 
Approved  

CEO Q1 Approved 

10.10 
 

ANDA BOARD 

COMPLIANCE 

CALENDAR AND 

 1.It approves the Board 

Compliance Calendar  

 

Approved  CEO Q1 Approval 
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DELEGATIONS 

FRAMEWORK  

2.The Delegations framework 

needs to be reviewed to 

articulate specific delegation 

of duties and be submitted 

back to the Board for 

approval.                                   

 
 

The process of reviewing 
Delegation’s framework has 
been undertaken by 
management and the Board. 
Company Secretary to 
undertake final consolidation 
and resubmit for approval.  

1.The Compliance Calendar 

will serve as working guide 

which the full-time Board may 

amend.  

None 

10.11 REPORT ON 

MINIMUM 

COMPETENCY 

LEVELS 

Report was 
submitted for 
approval. 

1.It approves the Report as 

presented in the meeting.  

 

Approved  CEO Q1 Approved 

1.CEO needs to ensure that 

performance agreements are 

signed to comply with 

legislation 

 

Performance agreements 
are in place  
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1.Training plans needs to be 

developed for those that 

should undergo capacity 

building.  

Annual Training Plan is in 
place  

10.12 ANDA 

STRATEGIC 

PLANNING 

REPORT 

Report was 
submitted for 
noting and 
approval. 

1.It notes and approves 
ANDA Strategic Planning 
report 

Noted  CEO Q1 Approved 

10.13 ANDA SUPPORT 

PLAN 

PROGRESS 

REPORT 

Report was 
submitted for 
noting 

1.It notes the progress on the 

implementation of the ANDA 

Support Plan. 

 

Noted CEO Q1 Noted 

2.A more detailed report in 

relation to all the 

achievements of the Interim 

Board needs to be submitted 

Achievements of the interim 
Board were significantly 
covered in the Annual 
Report of 2018/19 

10.14 PROGRESS ON 

FUNDING 

OPPORTUNITIES 

The Report was 
submitted for 
approval 

1.It approves the ANDA 

Report on Funding 

Opportunities. 

Approved  CEO Q1 Approved 

10.15 ANDA 

BENEFICIARY 

The Report was 
submitted for 
approval 

1.It approves the ANDA 

Beneficiary Selection Policy 

 
 

Approved 
 
 

CEO Q1 Approved 
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SELECTION 

POLICY 

 

BOARD MEETING HELD ON 10 DECEMBER 2019 
 

3 APPLICATIONS 

FOR LEAVE OF 

ABSENCE 

Reports of 
Absence and 
apologies 

1.That the Company 
Secretary write to Mr Nota 
regarding his absence in 
meeting for the signature of 
the Chairperson. 
2.That meetings to be held on 
any day when members are 
available. 

A meeting was held and an 
issue was addressed in the 
meeting with the Parent 
Municipality  

Chairperson  Q2 Noted 

4 CONFIRMATION 

OF QUORUM 

Confirm the 
quorum for the 
meeting 

1.That the meeting should 
proceed with the current 
members. 
2.That the Board Charter to 
be amended to provide for the 
situation where the Board 
does not have a quorum. 
3.That the CS to provide a 
written submission to the 
Board advising of action to be 
taken when there is no 
quorum. 
4.Mr Mahlaka advised that the 
previous decisions of the 
Board needed to be 
regularised with the guidance 
of the CS. 

 Chairperson  Q2 Noted 
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7 CONFIRMATION 

OF THE AGENDA 

Confirm the 
Agenda for the 
meeting 

1.Agenda was adopted with 
amendments 

Noted  Chairperson  Q2 Noted 

8 CONFIRMATION 

OF THE 

PREVIOUS 

MEETING 

MINUTES 

Confirm the 
Previous Minutes 
of 06 September 
2019 

1.The minutes were 
confirmed as a true reflection 
of the meeting. 

Confirmed  Chairperson  Q2 Noted 

9.1 CEO’S REPORT: 

Office of the CEO; 

Corporate 

Services; 

Programmes; 

Budget and 

Treasury; 

Emfundisweni; 

SDBIP; 

Recruitment of 
Senior Managers 
and  
Increment for cost 
of leaving and 
shutdown. 
 

The report was 
submitted for 
noting. 

1.The Meeting noted that the 
Annual Report had been 
submitted. The report would 
be circulated for approval 

The reported was noted   Q2  



68 
 

9.2. QUARTER 1 

FINANCIAL 

REPORT 2019/20 

The report was 
submitted for 
noting 

The Board noted the Quarter 
1 Financial Report for 
2019/20 

    

9.3.  BUDGET 

ADJUSTMENT 

2019/20 

The Adjustments 
Budget was 
submitted for 
approval. 

Adjusted Budget and 
performance plan was 
suggested for approval. 
 

    

 Issues pertaining to 
compliance had to be 
checked and attended to  

10.2.  RISK POLICY / 

STRATEGY 

The policy was 
submitted for 
approval 

Proposal to be circulated to 
Board Members for due 
consideration. 

 

    

11.3. AUDIT 

COMMITTEE 

CHARTER 

The AC Charter 
was submitted for 
approval. 

Board members present 

made proposals 

    

It was resolved that the 

proposals be circulated to all 

Board members for approval. 

11.4. RISK BASED 

AUDIT 

The document 
was submitted for 
approval. 

Ms Nonyongo proposed 
noting and approval and 
seconded by Mr Mahlaka. 
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The document was to be 
circulated. 

 

BOARD MEETING HELD ON 31 MAY 2020 

6.  MULT-YEAR 

BUSINESS PLAN 

2020-21 

The document 
was submitted for 
approval. 

1. The document be amended 

as per inputs of the meeting 

by the CEO’s office. 

   Approved  

2. Risk was to be updated as 

per inputs of the meeting. 

3. Mr Mahlaka moved for 

adoption and was 

seconded by Mr 

Mthimkhulu. 

7. DRAFT BUDGET 

AND BUDGET 

The policy was 
submitted for 
approval. 

4. The policy was not 

approved CS was tasked 

   Budget Policy 
not approved 
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ADJUSTMENTS 

POLICY 2020-21 

 

 

with reviewing the 

document. 

5.  The Budget of 2020/21 

was approved. 

  Budget 
Approved 

8. PERFORMANCE 

MANAGEMENT 

Q3, 2019-20 

The Report was 
submitted for 
approval. 

6. The CEO was to seek 

guidance on resolving the 

issue around the Vodacom 

contract and a report was to 

be presented at the next 

meeting.  

 

   Approved  

7. The report was approved. 

 

9. DEVIATIONS The report was 
submitted for 
noting. 

8. The report was rejected 

and had to be presented 

again at the next meeting. 
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SPECIAL BOARD MEETING HELD ON 28 JUNE 2020 

 
 

6.  ANNUAL REPORT 

2018/19 (ROUND 

ROBIN) 

The Annual 
Report was 
submitted for 
approval by round 
robin in March 
2020 

The Report was approved • The CEO submitted that 

the Annual report was 

submitted to the Board in 

March and was circulated 

by round robin. 

• Submissions were 

received from Board 

Members 

• The report was also       

submitted to Internal Audit 

and various structures 

within the parent 

Municipality. 

 

CEO Q2 The Report 
was approved 
by the Board. 
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7.  MID-TERM 

REPORT 2019/20 

(ROUND ROBIN) 

The report was 
submitted for 
approval.by round 
robin in March 
2020 

The Report was approved 

with amendments  

 

• The CEO stated that the 

report had been submitted 

to the Board in March after 

it had gone to the various 

structures including the 

Audit Committee. 

 

CEO Q2 The Report 
was approved 

9. BOARD CHARTER 

(ROUND ROBIN) 

The Charter was 
submitted for 
consideration and 
approval by round 
robin in March 
2020 

The Board Charter was 

Approved 

CS advised that the Board 

Charter had been circulated 

and submissions received 

from members 

CS Q2 The Charter 
was approved 

10.  QUARTER 2 

REPORT (ROUND 

ROBIN) 

The Quarter 2   
approved was 
submitted for 
consideration and 
approval by round 
robin in March 
2020 

9. The Quarter 2 Report 

was approved  

The CEO submitted that the 

report had been circulated 

by way of round robin.  

Submissions had been 

received and had been 

incorporated into the Report. 
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14. ANNEXURE B: ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 2019/20 

Section 40 of the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 as amended outlines that a municipality must establish mechanisms to monitor and review its Performance 

Management System to measure, monitor, review, evaluate and improve performance of its organizational and departmental levels. During the financial year 

under review, ANDA developed and adopted its Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan, hence, quarterly performance reports on the implementation 

of ANDA projects and programmes as per approved Multi-Year Business Plan, Budget and SDBIP were produced at the end of each quarter. Section 46 (1) of 

the Municipal Systems Act 32 of 2000 as amended stipulates that a municipality must prepare for each financial year a performance report reflecting: 

 

1. The performance of the municipality and each external provider during that financial year; 

2. A comparison of the performance with target set for and performances in the previous financial year; and 

3. Measures taken to improve performance. 

 

The purpose of the Annual Performance Report is to provide a record of activities of the municipal entity’s performance during the financial year to which the report 

relates.  It is an assessment by the accounting officer of the entity’s performance against any measurable performance objectives set in terms of the service 

delivery agreement or other agreement between the entity and its parent municipality as required by the section 121 (4)(a) of the Municipal Finance Management 

Act. There has been an improvement under Corporate Services and Administration Department, Chief Executive Officer’s office, and Budget and Treasury, 

compared to the previous year.  

 

Notwithstanding challenges experienced by the Entity during 2019/20 financial year as indicated per Key Performance Indicator (KPI), Alfred Nzo Development 

Agency has achieved 68% (54 of 79 targets) in its performance. Strategies have been developed to address targets that have not been achieved and the agency 

expects further improvement in the coming financial year.  The Annual Performance Report is attached as an annexure to the Annual Report in line with section 

121 of the MFMA. It provides a detailed and performance report per project and per initiative that was implemented by ANDA during the previous financial year.
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3.7.1. PROGRAMMES DEPARTMENT 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Agriculture, Agro-processing and Forestry         

Business Plan Project  Agri-parks Programme 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.1 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.1 

Strategic Objective  To be recognised as the food basket of the region and markets beyond 

Annual Target 18/19 To supply production inputs equivalent to 40 ha, procurement of 6 signboards and 2 irrigation infrastructures by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19 Facilitated procurement of Inputs equivalent to 40 ha, Facilitated procurement of 6 signboards by 30 June 2019 

Annual Target 2019/20 

1.Participate in the implementation of Agri-parks Programme by 30 June 2020 through monitoring of 3 x previously supported projects 2. Participate in the implementation of Agri-parks 
programme by 30 June 2020 by participation in social facilitation of Agri-parks Programme 3. Participate in the implementation of Agri-parks Programme by 30 June 2020 through the 
development of MOU between ANDA and SANAMI 4. Participate in the implementation of Agri-parks Programme by 30 June 2020 through monitoring implementation of Agri-parks 
Programme 

Actual Performance 19/20 

1. Participated in the implementation of Agri-parks Programme by 30 June 2020 through monitoring of 2x previously supported projects 2. Participated in social facilitation of Agri-parks 
Programme by through visits to various farmers that had applied to be part of the Agri-Parks Programme. 3. Development of MOU between ANDA and SANAMI. 4. Monitored the 
implementation of Agri-parks Programme through project site visits to farmers that had been approved for participation in the Agri-Parks Programme 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

2 targets achieved; 2 targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  
The development of MoU between ANDA and SANAMI was not undertaken due to relocation of the identified location for the construction of the Silo by ANDM, as it was initially planned that 
the silo would be constructed at SANAMI and therefore an MOU would be developed between ANDA and SANAMI in this regard.  

Corrective Action  
Possibilities of any contractual agreement between ANDA and SANAMI will be explored in the next financial year when the Rapid Rural Transformation project commences. A target has 
been included in the 2020/21 SDBIP under the Rapid Rural Transformation Project for the signing of an SLA between SANAMI.  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

Performance for this project between the 2018/19 and 19/20 financial year has improved as more targets were set and achieved for 2019/20. ANDA collaborated and participated in the 
implementation of the ANDM Agri-Parks Programme. Participation in this project included monitoring of previous projects, participating in social facilitation of this project and undertaking of 
monitoring of the Agri-Parks Programme working together with the District.   

Amount/Budget R60 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R0.00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Attendance Registers; Monitoring Reports, MoU. 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of existing previously supported projects monitored, Number of social facilitation session participated on, Number of MOUs between ANDA and SANAMI developed 
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National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Agriculture, Agro-processing and Forestry         

Business Plan Project  Livestock Development  

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.2 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.2 

Strategic Objective  To be recognised as the food basket of the region and markets beyond 

Annual Target 18/19 Support for livestock programme by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19 Support for livestock programme undertaken, Supply and delivery of piggery feed undertaken for 3 projects by 30 June 2019 

Annual Target 2019/20 1. Provide two wool-growers associations with vaccination kits by 30 June 2020 2. Provide four poultry Cooperatives/SMMEs with feed and chicks by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 Two wool-growers associations provided with vaccination kits by 30 June 2020, four poultry Cooperatives/SMMEs supplied with feed and chicks provided by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

2 targets achieved; 0 targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  None 

Corrective Action  None 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None 

Amount/Budget R180 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R175 364.00 

Annual (Means of Verification)  Orders, Delivery Notes, Attendance Registers 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of wool-growers associations supported, Number of poultry cooperatives/SMMEs provided with feed and chicks 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Property and Infrastructure Development  

Business Plan Project  Revitalization and maintenance of old ANDA properties - Msukeni Development Centre  

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.3.1 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.3.1 

Strategic Objective  To facilitate the provision of adequate infrastructure and property development 

Annual Target 18/19 None  

Actual Performance 18/19 None  
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Annual Target 2019/20 1. Renovation of Msukeni premises by 30 June 2020 2. Development of Business Plan by 30 June 2020 3. Procurement of Msukeni Conference Facility Equipment by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 Renovation of Msukeni premises undertaken, Development of Business Plan completed. Procurement of Msukeni Conference Facility Equipment’s undertaken by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

3 Targets Achieved, 0 Targets Not Achieved   

Reason for Variance  None  

Corrective Action  None  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None  

Amount/Budget R230 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 198 9880.00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Appointment Letters, Delivery notes and Orders, Terms of Reference, Business Plan 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI 
Number of Conference Facilities Renovated, Number of Business Plans Developed, Number of Projectors, air conditioners and security gate procured and installed, number of PA systems 
procured. 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Property and Infrastructure Development  

Business Plan Project  Revitalization and Maintenance of Old ANDA properties - Mfundisweni Development Centre  

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.3.2 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.3.2 

Strategic Objective  To facilitate the provision of adequate infrastructure and property development 

Annual Target 18/19 None 

Actual Performance 18/19 None 

Annual Target 2019/20 

1.Upgrade of Electricity and Security at Emfundisweni by 30 June 2020,2. Procurement of 1X electric signboard and 3 x directional sign by 30 June 2020.3 Monitor erection of fencing, 
installation of 1x sprinkler irrigation system and refurbishment of Emfundisweni Silo to be undertaken by ANDM. 4.Undertake electrification of sewing block by 30 June 2020. 

Actual Performance 19/20 
Electricity and security upgrade undertaken at Emfundisweni by 30 June 2020, Procurement of 1X electric signboard and 3 x directional signs were not undertaken.  Erection of fencing, 
installation of 1x sprinkler irrigation system and refurbishment of Emfundisweni Silo not monitored. Electrification of sewing block was undertaken by 30 June 2020. 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

2 Targets achieved / 2 Targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  
The district municipality did not undertake the erection of fencing, installation of 1x sprinkler irrigation system and refurbishment of Emfundisweni Silo due to delays in the implementation of 
the project by the Service Provider. Therefore, the Agency had nothing to monitor in terms of its planned target.  In March 2020, the entity had requested SEDA Mt Ayliff to assist in terms of 
marketing material in the form of signboards and Direction signs, however, process could not be implemented due to operations that were halted as a result of COVID 19 regulations  
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Corrective Action  
As the form of remedial action, the entity will continue to support Emfundisweni, however, intervention will be pitched at a high impact level targeting the entire facility of Emfundisweni 
Development Centre  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None  

Amount/Budget R225 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R169000.00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Appointment Letters, invoices, Delivery notes 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI 
Number of upgrades of Electricity and Security undertaken, Number of electric signboards and Directional signs Procured. Monitor erection of fencing, Number of sprinkler irrigation systems 
installed and Number of Emfundisweni Silos refurbished by ANDM. Number of sewing blocks electrified 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Property and Infrastructure Development  

Business Plan Project  Revitalization and Maintenance of Old ANDA properties -Umzimvubu Goats Project 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.3.3 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.3.3 

Strategic Objective  To facilitate the provision of adequate infrastructure and property development 

Annual Target 18/19 None 

Actual Performance 18/19 None 

Annual Target 2019/20 1.Cleaning of Umzimvubu goats abattoir site twice per annum by 30 June 2020, 2. Separation of 2x Metre Boxes between ANDA&SANAMI by 30 June 2020. 

Actual Performance 19/20 Umzimvubu goats abattoir site cleaned once by 30 June 2020, Separation of 2x Metre Boxes between ANDA&SANAMI not undertaken by 30 June 2020. 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 targets achieved / 2 targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  
The cleaning of Umzimvubu goat abbatoir was only undertaken once by the department, in the second instance, the target was undertaken by Corporate Services Directorate, Separation of 
metre boxes between ANDA & SANAMI was affected by the assessment that was undertaken by Eskom which revealed high cost.  

Corrective Action  Separation of metre box between ANDA&SANAMI Targets will be budgeted for in the 2020/2021 mid-year adjustment subject to the availability of funding.  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None 

Amount/Budget R40 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 29 500,00 

Annual (Means of Verification)  2x Orders, Invoices 
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Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of times per year that Umzimvubu goats abattoir premises was cleaned, Number of metre Boxes Installed and separated 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Property and Infrastructure Development  

Business Plan Project  Revitalization and Maintenance of Old ANDA properties - Mbizana Chicken Abbaitor  

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.3.4 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.3.4  

Strategic Objective  To facilitate the provision of adequate infrastructure and property development 

Annual Target 18/19 None  

Actual Performance 18/19 None  

Annual Target   2019/20 1.To Undertake 1x conditional infrastructure assessment in partnership with DRDAR by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 1x Conditional infrastructure assessment undertaken by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 target achieved / 0 targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None 

Amount/Budget R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Infrastructure Assessment report  

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of Infrastructure Needs Assessments completed 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Enterprise Development and Support services  

Business Plan Project  Business Development Support- Emfundisweni Skills Development 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.4.1 



79 
 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.4.1 

Strategic Objective  Increase the contribution of small enterprises to the growth of the ANDM economy and transfer skills to the unemployed.  

Annual Target 18/19 Provide financial and non-financial support to 31 SMMEs by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19 Financial and Non-financial support provided to 31 SMMEs by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 2019/20 

1. Signing of one Service Level Agreement (SLA) between ANDA and Emfundisweni by 30 June 2020,2. Payment of Electricity for outstanding fee, Reconnection fee, and Security fee by 30 
June 2020;  3. Provide financial and non-financial support for Emfundisweni Skills Operations for 12 months by 30 June 2020,4. Develop 4 x Business Plans for Emfundisweni business units 
by 30 June 2020; 5. Develop Terms of Reference for Emfundisweni Advisory Committee by 30 June 2020, 6. Procure baking stock for Emfundisweni  bakery by 30 June 2020. 7. Provide 
support with office equipment for Emfundisweni Skills Development centre by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 

Service Level Agreement (SLA) between ANDA and Emfundisweni  signed by 30 June 2020, Payment of Electricity for outstanding fee, Reconnection fee, and Security fee paid by 30 June 
2020;  Financial and non-financial support for Emfundisweni Skills Operations provided for 12 months  by 30 June 2020, Development of 4 x Business Plans for Emfundisweni business units 
was not undertaken by 30 June 2020; Terms of Reference for Emfundisweni Advisory Committee were developed by 30 June 2020, Baking stock for Emfundisweni  bakery procured by 30 
June 2020 ) Support with office equipment for Emfundisweni Skills Development centre provided by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

6 Targets achieved / 1 target not achieved  

Reason for Variance  
The entity had requested ECDC and SEDA for the support of Emfundisweni business units in terms of development of business plans, however, the target was not done because after SEDA 
had gone to site for an assessment, the project was put on hold due to COVID 19.  

Corrective Action  
The target will be actioned during the 2020/21 FY as per the 2020/21 SDBIP. ECDC and SEDA have also been engaged to assist in the development of 4 business plans for Emfundisweni 
Business Units 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The entity has introduced more support for Business Development Support- Emfundisweni Skills Development project compared to the previous FY. 

Amount/Budget R1 109 585.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 1 018 694,30 

Annual (Means of Verification) Signed SLA Document, Proof of payment of electricity to Eskom, Payment Approvals and 4 x Business plans; Appointment letter; Terms of Reference for PAC 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of SLA signed, Monthly support provided, Electricity connected, Number of Business plans developed, Office equipment provided                 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Enterprise Development and support services  

Business Plan Project  Business Development Support – SMME 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.4.2 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.4.2  

Strategic Objective  Increase the contribution of small enterprises to the growth of the ANDM economy and transfer skills to unemployed 

Annual Target 18/19 Provide Financial or non-financial support to 31 SMMEs by 30 June 2019 
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Actual Performance 18/19 Financial or non-financial support to 31 SMMEs provided by 30 June 2019 

Annual Target 2019/20 1. To Provide Financial or non-financial support to 12 SMMEs by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 Financial or non-financial support provided to 19 SMMEs by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The performance between the 2018/19 and 19/20 financial year has improved, this has come as a result of dedicated efforts in resource mobilisation working with different stakeholders. 

Amount/Budget R 0,00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Company Registration Certificates 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of SMMEs supported;  

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Enterprise Development and Support services  

Business Plan Project  Skills Development - Emfundisweni Special Programmes/ Service SETA  

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.5.1 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.5.1 

Strategic Objective  Increase the contribution of small enterprises to the growth of the ANDM economy and transfer skills to the unemployed  

Annual Target 18/19 Increase Revenue Base by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19 Increased Revenue Base by 30 June 2019 

Annual Target 2019/20 
1.Undertake 5 x learnership for 192 unemployed learners; 2. Undertake 6 Apprenticeship programmes for 90 unemployed learners; 3. Implement 1 Learnership for 7 employed leaners by 30 
June 2020; 4. Undertake Short Skills programme for 350 Learners by 30 June 2020; 5. Award 20 bursaries for unemployed and employed learners by 30 June 2020.  

Actual Performance 19/20 
5 x learnerships for 192 unemployed learners were not undertaken, 6 Apprenticeship programmes for 90 unemployed learners were not undertaken, 1 Learnership for 7 employed leaners 
was not undertaken, Short Skills programme for 350 Learners were not undertaken, 20 bursaries for unemployed and employed learners have been awarded.  

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved / 4 Targets not achieved  
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Reason for Variance  

The non-achievement of the targets is largely due to community Instability and shut down of electricity by Eskom at Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre. Further to that, ANDA received 
a letter from Service Seta postponing the commencement of all learnership programmes to the 2nd of May 2020 although the actual implementation of the project did not commence due to 
COVID 19.   

Corrective Action  

The Entity will engage with Service Seta to get their implementation plans for learnership programmes which were affected by COVID- 19 regulations. All the targets for this project will be 
deferred to the next financial year. The Target now finds expression in the 2020/21 SDBIP. Even the project did not commence as expected, a number of activities have been undertaken e.g. 
2 x Learnership Commencement letters awarded for 97 unemployed Learners, 1 x Learnership Commencement letter for 7 employed Learners awarded, Short Skills Programme awarded to 
SDP by 30 June 2020 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The performance between the 2018/19 and 19/20 financial year has dropped due to Emfundisweni Community uprising which created an instability at the centre. Payment of Electricity for 
outstanding fee, Reconnection fee as well as establishment of Emfundisweni Advisory Committee are measures which were taken to improve performance between 18/19 and 19/20 FY.             

Amount/Budget R 0,00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Appointment letters; Learner Attendance Registers; Implementation plan; Assessment Report; Moderation Report; Commencement letter;  

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of   learners trained; Number of Bursaries awarded. 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Enterprise Development and support services  

Business Plan Project  Skills Development-Discretionary Grant: Service SETA  

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.5.2 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.5.2 

Strategic Objective  Increase the contribution of small enterprises to the growth of the ANDM economy and transfer skills to the unemployed  

Annual Target 18/19 To implement 3 Training Programmes by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19  11 Training Programmes implemented by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 2019/20 1.Undertake Learnership and apprenticeship programmes for 85 unemployed learners by 30 June 2020. 

Actual Performance 19/20 Learnership and apprenticeship programmes for 85 unemployed learners not undertaken by 30 June 2020. 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 target achieved / 1 target not achieved  

Reason for Variance  

Community Protest and shut down of electricity by Eskom at Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre. The electricity power shut down by Eskom at Emfundisweni Skills Centre has also 
resulted in a stand-still of all planned activities to be implemented at the centre. ANDA further received a letter from Service Seta postponing the commencement of all learnership 
programmes to the 1st of April 2020. Due to COVID 19 pandemic and regulation, the training could not commence during April until regulations were adjusted to allow for economic business 
operations.   
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Corrective Action  
Engage with Service Seta to get their implementation plans for learnership programmes which were affected by COVID- 19 regulations programmes. All the targets for this project will be 
deferred to the next financial year. The Target now finds expression in the 2020/21 SDBIP.  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The performance between the 2018/19 and 19/20 financial year has dropped due to Emfundisweni Community uprising which created an instability at the centre. Payment of Electricity for 
outstanding fee, Reconnection fee as well as establishment of Emfundisweni Advisory Committee are measures which were taken to improve performance between 18/19 and 19/20 FY.             

Amount/Budget R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Appointment letter, Learners Attendance Registers, implementation plan, Advert to recruit learners 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of Unemployed learners Trained 

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Enterprise Development and Support Services  

Business Plan Project  Skills for District Economic Development Programme-NSF 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.5.3 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.5.3 

Strategic Objective  Increase the contribution of small enterprises to the growth of the ANDM economy and transfer skills to the unemployed  

Annual Target 18/19 None 

Actual Performance 18/19 None 

Annual Target  1. Undertake learnership programme on mixed farming for 250 unemployed learners by 30 June 2020.  

Actual Performance 19/20 Learnership on Mixed Farming not achieved by 30 June 2020.  

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 targets achieved / 1 target not achieved  

Reason for Variance  

The commencement of training for 250 beneficiaries was delayed as a result of COVID - 19 Regulation that resulted to National shut down 

Corrective Action  
 Follow up with the NSF with regards to the signing of the MoA already signed by ANDA. The implementation of the project in its entirety will commence in 2020/21 and has been included in 
the SDBIP for 2020/21 with related targets.  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None 

Amount/Budget R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 
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Annual (Means of Verification) Appointment letter, Attendance Register, implementation plan, Assessment Report, Moderation Report, Commencement letter, monitoring report, Advert, and minutes of inception meeting 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of unemployed learners Trained  

  

National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Agriculture Agro-processing and Forestry  

Business Plan Project  Skills Development - Rapid Rural Transformation: W&R SETA 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.5.4 

SDBIP Reference  7.1.5.4  

Strategic Objective  To transfer skills to the Unemployed and SMME's 

Annual Target 18/19 None 

Actual Performance 18/19 None 

Annual Target 2019/20 
1.To train and mentor 440 SMME Agri-Business Owners on level 1WRSETA AET as well as level 3 WRSETA Informal Small Business Practise Learnership by 30 June 2020., 2. To train and 
mentor 30 Learners on WRSETA level 3 Packaging and Handling by 30 June 2020., 3. To train and mentor 30 Learners on Bakery Programme by 30 June 2020., 4. To train and mentor 30 
Learners on Butchery Programme by 30 June 2020. 

Actual Performance 19/20 
Training and mentoring of 440 SME Agri-Business Owners on level 1WRSETA AET as well as level 3 WRSETA Informal Small Business Practise Learnership, 30 Learners on WRSETA level 
3 Packaging and Handling, 30 Learners on Bakery Programme, 30 Learners on Butchery Programme was not undertaken by 30 June 2020. 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 Targets achieved / 4 targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  
The project did not commence due to the delays in the approval of the funding for the project 

Corrective Action  
Follow-up with W&R SETA regarding the approval of funding. All the targets for this project will be deferred to the next financial year. The Target now finds expression in the 2020/21 SDBIP. 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None  

Amount/Budget R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Assessment Report, Learners contracts, Leaners Attendance Register, Commencement letter, MOA 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of unemployed learners Trained  
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National KPA Local   Economic   Development    

Section Name Enterprise Development and support services  

Business Plan Project  Resident Fashion Designer- Emfundisweni: FP & M SETA 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.1.5.5 

SDBIP Reference  3.7.1.5.5 

Strategic Objective  To transfer skills to the Unemployed and SMME''s  

Annual Target 18/19 None 

Actual Performance 18/19 None 

Annual Target  

1.Facilitate accreditations for Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre with FP&M SETA) by 30 June 2020 2. Train 50 beneficiaries on garment manufacturing by 30 June 2020.3. Facilitate 
funding for garment manufacturing and New Venture Creation; 4. Facilitate procurement of two Service Providers for the implementation of skills development on garment manufacturing 5. 
Facilitate Recruitment of beneficiaries by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 

Accreditation for Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre with FP&M SETA) facilitated by 30 June 2020, Training of 50 beneficiaries on garment manufacturing not undertaken; Funding for 
garment manufacturing and New Venture Creation facilitated; Procurement of two Service Provider not achieved, Recruitment of beneficiaries facilitated.  

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

3 targets achieved/ 2 targets not achieved   

Reason for Variance  The commencement of training for 50 beneficiaries and contracting of Skills Development Providers did not materialized due to COVID - 19 Regulation that resulted to National shut down  

Corrective Action  

Follow-up with FP & M SETA regarding the Funding Commitment letter; The implementation of COVD -19 work place precautional measures that will enable reopening of business activities 
including the Agency. All the targets for this project will be deferred to the next financial year  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None 

Amount/Budget R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Attendance Register, Proof of accreditation, Monitoring report, MOU signed, Recruitment of beneficiaries; Funding facilitated, SLA Document for recruitment of Service Providers 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of accreditations received, Number of Signed MOUs; Number of Beneficiaries recruited, Number of Project SLAs signed 
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3.7.2. DEPARTMENT OF CORPORATE SERVICES AND ADMINISTRATION  

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name Human Resource Management 

Business Plan Project  Policy Development 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.1 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.1 

Annual Target 18/19 To review and facilitate the adoption of agency policies by 30 June 2019  

Actual Performance 18/19 34 Agency Policies were reviewed and adopted by 30 June 2019 

Annual Target 2019/20 1.To review and facilitate the adoption of organisational policies by the Board of Directors by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 
The Review of the Organisational Policies was undertaken and completed, But Organisational Policies are yet to be adopted by the Board of Directors by 30 June 2019 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 Targets achieved; 1 Target not achieved 

Reason for Variance  
Organisational Policies were not adopted by the Board of Directors due to the fact that after the reviewal process was completed and submitted to the Board for adoption on the Board 
meeting that was held on the 28 June 2020, The Board deferred Policies to Company Secretary for vetting 

Corrective Action  Organisational Policies will be resubmitted for adoption by Board in the 2020/21 FY. The SDBIP 2020/21 has been updated in that regard.  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

All ANDA Employees including Management were workshopped, while actively participating in the reviewal process of the Organisational Policies. 

Budget Amount  R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Proof of Submission, Board Resolution 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of policies reviewed and adopted by the Board of Directors 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name HR and Payroll 

National KPA Municipal Transformation and Organizational development  

Business Plan Project  VIP Payroll 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.2 
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SDBIP Reference  7.2.2 

Annual Target 18/19 To run 12 processed payrolls by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19 12 payroll runs and processed by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 2019/20 1.12 payroll runs processed by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 12 payroll runs processed by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target Achieved, 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  N/A  

Corrective Action  N/A  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None 

Amount/Budget R10 797 878.00 

 Actual Expenditure  
R10 797 878.00 

Annual (Means of Verification)  12 Monthly Payroll Listing Reports, 12 Month Payroll payslips 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of payroll runs processed 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name Human Resource Management 

Business Plan Project  Organogram Review 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.3 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.3 

Strategic Objective  Organisational efficiency  

Annual Target 18/19 To facilitate the review and adoption of Organogram by 30 June 2019  

Actual Performance 18/19 Review and adoption of organogram facilitated by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 2019/20 1.To facilitate review and adoption of 1 x organogram by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 Reviewal and adoption of 1 x organogram was facilitated 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  N/A 
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Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

Organogram was circulated to all directorates for reviewal purposes and it was further workshopped to all entity employees for inputs. The organogram was further presented to the relevant 
entity committees before it was presented to the board for adoption. There has been tremendous improvement in consultation which has come as a result of integrated efforts by all 
directorates. Organogram will further be reviewed in line with relevant job description through job evaluation process that has been advertised by the entity. 

Amount/Budget R0,00 

 Actual Expenditure  R0.00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Proof of Submission to the Board  

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of 2019/2020 organograms adopted by the board of directors 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name Human Resource Development 

Business Plan Project  Skills Development 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.4 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.4 

Strategic Objective  Effective and Efficient workforce 

Annual Target 18/19 N/A 

Actual Performance 18/19 N/A 

Annual Target 2019/20 1. To identify skills gap and develop training plan by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 Skills gap was identified and training plan was developed by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The entity conducted a Skills Audit questionnaire which aimed at identifying Skills gaps. The Skills Audit questionnaire process was followed by the development of Annual Training Plan 
which was then submitted to the office of the CEO for approval 

Budget Amount  R0.00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Skills Audit Questionnaire and Proof of Submission of Annual Training plan to CEOs Office 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 
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Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Skills Audit conducted 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name ICT  

Business Plan Project  ICT Management 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.5 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.5 

Strategic Objective  Software, Hardware and Licensing Maintenance 

Annual Target 18/19 N/A 

Actual Performance 18/19 N/A 

Annual Target 2019/20 1.To upgrade Hardware and Software with valid Licences by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20  Hardware and Software upgraded valid Licences 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target Achieved, 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

N/A 

Budget Amount  R560 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R504 631.00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Confirmation Note forms, Order for Software Licences maintenance 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Software and hardware upgraded 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name Administration 

Business Plan Project  Records Management 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.6 
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SDBIP Reference  7.2.6 

Strategic Objective  Organisational efficiency  

Annual Target 18/19 
To develop, review and approve 1 manual general filing system by 30 June 2019  

Actual Performance 18/19 
Records Management Policy with General filing system was developed, reviewed and approved by 30 June 2019 

Annual Target 19/20 1.To develop 1 manual general filing system by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 

Draft Manual general filing system was developed but sufficient information still needed to be acquired on the different available manual general filing system layouts in order to find the 
suitable filling system for the Entity 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 Targets achieved; 1 Target not achieved 

Reason for Variance  The non-execution of most of the targets in the project was due to the fact that the Entity never had a filling system. The entity had to first benchmark from relevant institution e.g. DSRAC  

Corrective Action  

The Department will complete the Draft Manual general filing system, conduct staff workshop on Manual general filing system and then submit it to the Office of the CEO for approval.  

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The Department has experienced a drop in performance of this particular project as compared to the previous financial year, this is due to absence of the full time Executive Manager of the 
Department in the first half of the financial year. The entity has therefore recruited Executive Manager of the Department whom only resumed her duties at the beginning of the 3rd quarter 
of 2019/20 FY.  

Amount/Budget R0,00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Adopted general filing system document 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of manual general filing systems developed 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name  Institutional and Individual Performance Management  

IDP Project  Performance Management System 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.7 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.7 

Strategic Objective  Increase the performance and efficiency level     
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Annual Target 18/19 To produce and Submit 7 Reports by 30 June 2019 entailing (4 x Quarterly Performance Report, 1x Mid-term performance report, 1 Annual Peerformance Report, 1x Annual Report)   

Actual Performance 18/19 7 Reports produced and submitted by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 19/20 
1.Submit 3x Quarterly Performance Reports to the Office of the CEO BY 30 June 2020, 2. To submit 1x Multi Year Business Plan 2020/21 to the Office of the CEO BY 30 June 2020, 3. To 
submit SDBIP 2020/21 to the Office of the CEO by 30 June 2020, 4. To submit Institutional Mid-Term Performance Report to the Office of the CEO by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 
3x Quarterly Performance Reports, 1x Multi Year Business Plan 2020/21, SDBIP 2020/21 and Institutional Mid-Term Performance Report submitted to the Office of the CEO by 30 June 
2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

4 Targets achieved; 0 Targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

The entity has in place an approved PMS Policy which aims at measuring performance of the Entity in implementation of the organization’s strategy. The Entity also took note of AG 
comments on the Organisational Performance and further worked to improve performance management of the Entity as advised by the Auditor General. The Entity has recruited Project 
Coordinator responsible for planning and reporting, a critical aspect which was previously overlooked within the Institution.  

Budget Amount 0 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of Verification) Proof of Submissions 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI 
Number of Multi Year Business Plans submitted, Number of SDBIPs submitted and Number of Institutional Mid-Term Performance Report submitted, Number of Quartely Performance 
Reports submitted 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name Auxiliary Services 

Business Plan Project  CLEANING MATERIAL 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.8 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.8 

Strategic Objective  Organisational efficiency  

Annual Target 18/19 To clean 2 Buildings on a daily basis by 30 June 2019 

Actual Performance 18/19 2 Buildings cleaned on a daily basis by 30 June 2019 and Cleaning Material was procured  

Annual Target 19/20 
1. Procure Cleaning Material 4 times by 30 June 2020,2. Procure COVID 19 Cleaning supplies and services by 30 June 2020, 3. Procure and implement Cleaning Services by 30 June 
2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 Cleaning Material, Cleaning Services and COVID 19 Cleaning supplies and services were procured by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

3 Targets achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 
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Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

None  

Budget Amount R689 656.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R149 764.14 

Annual (Means of Verification) Orders and delivery notes of cleaning materials and COVID 19 suppliers and services 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Cleaning Material procured 

  

National KPA Municipal Institutional Development and Transformation 

Section Name Administration 

Business Plan Project  PRINTING AND STATIONERY 

Business Plan Reference 3.7.2.9 

SDBIP Reference  7.2.9 

Strategic Objective  Organisational efficiency  

Annual Target 18/19 N/A 

Actual Performance 18/19 N/A 

Annual Target 19/20 1.Procure Stationery quarterly by 30 June 2020 2. Service Printing Machine 3 times by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 19/20 
Stationery was procured. Printing Machine was serviced 3 times by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

2 Targets Achieved, 0 Targets not achieved.  

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to improve 
performance between 18/19 
and 19/20 FY 

N/A 

Amount Budget  R 200 000,00 

 Actual Expenditure   R166 054.09 
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Annual (Means of Verification) Orders and delivery notes of Stationery and Meter Count list for Maintenance and Servicing of the Machine  

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of times machine is serviced; Number of times stationery is procured 

3.7.3. BUDGET AND TREASURY OFFICE (BTO) 

  
National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name  SCM 

Business Plan Project Procurement Projects 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.1 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.1 

Strategic Objective  Increase, protect and diversify ANDA funding base 

Annual Target 18/19 
To Produce 4 Implementation of the Supply Chain Management policy reports by 30 June 2019 dealing with (12 x deviations, 12 x irregular expenditure, 12 x contract register, 12 x orders issued 
less than R30 000, 12 x orders issued less than R200 000, 12 x bids awarded above R200 000, 4 x updated supplier database, 4 x progress with implementation of procurement plan, 4 x sitting of 
bid committees)  

Actual Performance 
18/19 

4 Implementation of the Supply Chain Management policy reports produced  by 30 June 2019 dealing with (12 x deviations, 12 x irregular expenditure, 12 x contract register, 12 x orders issued 
less than R30 000, 12 x orders issued less than R200 000, 12 x bids awarded above R200 000, 4 x updated supplier database, 4 x progress with implementation of procurement plan, 4 x sitting of 
bid committees)  

Annual Target 19/20 

1.To Produce 4X Quarterly Implementation of the Supply Chain Management policy reports by 30 June 2020 dealing with (deviations, irregular expenditure, contract register, orders issued less 
than R30 000, orders issued less than R200 000, bids awarded above R200 000, updated supplier database, progress with implementation of procurement plan, sitting of bid committees) 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

4X Quarterly Implementation of the Supply Chain Management policy reports produced by 30 June 2020 dealing with (deviations, irregular expenditure, contract register, orders issued less than 
R30 000, orders issued less than R200 000, bids awarded above R200 000, updated supplier database, progress with implementation of procurement plan, sitting of bid committees) 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  none  

Corrective Action  none  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

none  

Amount/Budget R0 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Annual Report on Implementation of SCM policy 
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Submitted POE (Y/N) Yes 

Annual KPI Number of Quarterly Implementation of SCM policy Reports produced 

  

National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name  SCM 

Business Plan Project Asset Management 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.2 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.2 

Strategic Objective  Increase, protect and diversify ANDA funding base 

Annual Target 18/19 
To produce 4 Asset Management Reports by 30 June 2019 dealing with (12 x fixed asset register, 12 x purchase listing (additions), 4 x asset verification reports, 12 x updates to the portfolio of 
assets insured)  

Actual Performance 
18/19 

 4 Asset Management Reports produced by 30 June 2019 dealing with (12 x fixed asset register, 12 x purchase listing (additions), 4 x asset verification reports, 12 x updates to the portfolio of 
assets insured)  

Annual Target 2019/20 
1.To produce 4X Quarterly Asset Management Reports by 30 June 2020 dealing with (fixed asset register, purchase listing (additions), asset verification reports, updates to the portfolio of assets 
insured) 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

4X Quarterly Asset Management Reports produced by 30 June 2020 dealing with (fixed asset register, purchase listing (additions), asset verification reports, updates to the portfolio of assets 
insured) 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  none  

Corrective Action  none  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

none  

Amount/Budget R0 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Annual Asset Management Report 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Quarterly Asset Management Reports produced 

  

National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name  SCM 

Business Plan Project Fleet Management 
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Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.3 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.3 

Strategic Objective  Increase, protect and diversify ANDA funding base 

Annual Target 18/19 To produce 12 Fleet Management Reports by 30 June 2019  

Actual Performance 
18/19 

12 Fleet Management Reports produced by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 2019/20 1.To produce 4 Quarterly Fleet Management Reports by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

4 Quarterly Fleet Management Reports produced by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  none  

Corrective Action  none  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

none  

Amount/Budget R10 000 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Annual Fleet Management report  

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Quarterly Fleet Management Reports 

  

National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name  SCM 

Business Plan Project Inventory Management 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.4 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.4 

Strategic Objective  Increase, protect and diversify ANDA funding base 

Annual Target 18/19 To produce Four (4) Inventory Management Reports by 30 June 2019 dealing with (12 x monthly issue note listing, 4 x inventory count, 4 x inventory reconciliation)  

Actual Performance 
18/19 

Four (4) Inventory Management Reports produced by 30 June 2019 dealing with (12 x monthly issue note listing, 4 x inventory count, 4 x inventory reconciliation)  
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Annual Target 2019/20 1.To produce 4 Quarterly Inventory Management Reports entailing issue note listing, inventory count, inventory reconciliation by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

4 Quarterly Inventory Management Reports entailing issue note listing, inventory count, and inventory reconciliation produced by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  none  

Corrective Action  none  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

none  

Amount/Budget R0 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Annual Inventory Management Report 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Quarterly inventory reports produced 

  
National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name FINANCE 

Business Plan Project 
Budget & Reporting 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.5 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.5 

Strategic Objective  Increase, protect and diversify ANDA funding base 

Annual Target 18/19 
To produce 22 Deliverables by 30th of June 2019 consisting of (1 x ANDA set of AFS,12 x Sec 87 reports (budget vs actual expenditure), 1xSec 88 Mid-tern report, 4 x budget developed & 

implemented in terms of s87, 4x Quarterly Financial Reports)  

Actual Performance 
18/19 

22 Deliverables produced by 30th of June 2019 consisting of (1 x ANDA set of AFS,12 x Sec 87 reports (budget vs actual expenditure), 1xSec 88 Mid-tern report, 2 x budget developed & implemented 

in terms of s87, 2x Quarterly Financial Reports)  

Annual Target 2019/20 
To produce 1 x ANDA Draft set of AFS by 30th of June 2020 2. To produce 12 x Sec 87 reports (budget vs actual expenditure by 30th of June 2020 3. To produce 1 x Sec 88 Mid-term report by 

30th of June 2020, 4. To produce 4 x Quarterly Financial Reports,5. To produce 1x Budget 2020/21 by 30th of June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

1 x ANDA Draft set of AFS produced by 30 June 2020,12 x Sec 87 reports (budget vs actual expenditure) produced by 30 June 2020, 1 x Sec 88 Mid-term report produced by 30 June 2020, 4 x 

Quarterly Financial Reports produced by 30 June 2020, 1x Budget 2020/21 produced by 30 June 2020 
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Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

5 Targets achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  None 

Corrective Action  None 

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

None 

Amount/Budget 1 310 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 1 301 917,50 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

1 x ANDA set of AFS,12 x Sec 87 reports (budget vs actual expenditure), 1 x Sec 88 Mid-term report, 4 x Quarterly Financial Reports, 1x Budget 2020/21 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of deliverables produced 

  

National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name FINANCE 

Business Plan Project Financial Information Systems 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.6 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.6 

Strategic Objective  Ensure Financial System is up and running and able to produce sound financial reporting 

Annual Target 18/19 None 

Actual Performance 
18/19 

None 

Annual Target 2019/20 
1.To be 100 % mSCOA compliant by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

The entity is 17% in process of being mSCOA compliant. During the current FY, the entity only managed to accomplish 2 out of 12 Milestones set for the implementation of the project. 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 Targets achieved; 1 Target not achieved  

Reason for Variance  

Conversion of ANDA database to be mSCOA compliant requires a completion of 12 project milestones. By the end of 30 June 2020, 2 milestones have been completed, which are project setup 
and internal kick-off and Project kick-off and information gathering. Due to COVID 19 National Lockdown Regulations, this project could not be completed since movement was prohibited 
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Corrective Action 
All project milestones will be completed within the targeted period on Quarter 1 of 2020/2021 financial year. 

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

The process for the procurement of the server for an upgrade has been conducted and it is in the process of being installed 

Amount/Budget R450 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 57 500.00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

mSCOA implementation Plan, (mSCOA Progress Reports) 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of mSCOA progress reports produced & submitted. 

  

National KPA Financial viability and financial management 

Section Name  Finance  

Business Plan Project Revenue & Expenditure  

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.3.7 

SDBIP Reference  7.3.7 

Strategic Objective  Ensure Financial System is up and running and able to produce sound financial reporting 

Annual Target 18/19 6 Compliance reports to be submitted to ANDA Board of Directors by 30 June 2019  

Actual Performance 
18/19 

6 Compliance reports submitted to ANDA Board of Directors by 30 June 2019  

Annual Target 2019/20 
To produce 1x Annual Cash & Investment report by 30 June 2020, 2. To produce 6 x VAT reports by 30 June 2020, 3. To produce 12 x PAYE by 30 June 2020, 4. To produce 12 x Bank 
Reconciliation by 30 June 2020, 5. To produce 12 x Creditors Reconciliation by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

1x Annual Cash & Investment report produced by 30 June 2020, 6 x VAT reports produced by 30 June 2020, 12 x PAYE produced by 30 June 2020, 12 x Bank Reconciliation produced by 30 
June 2020, 12 x Creditors Reconciliation produced by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

5 Targets achieved; 0 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  None 

Corrective Action  None 

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 19/20 
FY 

None 
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Amount/Budget R 0,00 

 Actual Expenditure  R 0,00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

 Annual Cash & Investment report, VAT reports, PAYE, Bank Reconciliation, Creditors Reconciliation  

Submitted POE (Y/N) Yes 

Annual KPI Number of deliverables produced 

3.7.4 Office of the Chief Executive Officer 

  

National KPA Good Governance and Public Participation  

Section Name  Compliance, Planning and Reporting 

Business Plan Project Sitting of Board Meetings, Monitoring, Evaluation and Reporting 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.4.1 

SDBIP Reference  7.4.1 

Strategic Objective  
To Strengthen Governance, Reduce Risk, Increase the performance and efficiency level 

Annual Target 18/19 
Hold 4 Ordinary and 4 Special ANDA Board Meeting. Hold 1 Strategic Planning session. Submit 4 Quarterly Performance and Financial Reports to the Board and ANDM. Approve Final Budget for 
2019/20 Financial Year. Submit ANDA SDBIP 2019/20 to the Board and ANDM by 30 June 2018/19 

Actual Performance 
18/19 

Held 2 Ordinary and 6 Special ANDA Board Meeting. Held 1 Strategic Planning session. Submitted 1 Quarterly Performance to the Board. Submitted 2 Quarterly Performance Report and Financial 
report to ANDM. Approved Final Budget for 2019/20 Financial Year. Submitted ANDA SDBIP 2019/20 to the Board and ANDM. Submitted Adjusted Budget 2018/19, Adjusted Multi-Year Business 
Plan 2019/19 and Adjusted SDBIP 2018/19 to the Board. Mid-Term report submitted to the Board.  

Annual Target 2019/20 
1.Hold 4 Ordinary and 1 Special ANDA Board Meetings by 30 June 2020 2. Have 1 Approved ANDA Final Multi-year Business Plan 2020/21 and SDBIP 2020/21 by 31 May 2020, 3. Submit 4 
Quarterly Performance and Financial Reports to the Board and ANDM by 30 June 2020. 4.Have 1 Approved Final Budget for 2020/21 Financial Year by 31 May 2020. 5.Submit ANDA banking 
details to ANDM by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

2 Ordinary and 2 Special ANDA Board Meetings held by 30 June 2020. 1 Approved ANDA Final Multi-year Business Plan 2020/21 and SDBIP 2020/21 produced by 31 May 2020, 4 Quarterly 
Performance and Financial Reports submitted to the Board and ANDM by 30 June 2020. 1 Approved Final Budget for 2020/21 Financial Year produced by 31 May 2020. ANDA banking details 
submitted to ANDM by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

4 Targets achieved; 1 Target not achieved 

Reason for Variance  The delays in the sitting of the Board, caused by delays in the extension of the Board 

Corrective Action  Appointment of the full time Board  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 
19/20 FY 

The appointment of the interim Board for the period longer than three months has brought about slight stability in relation to the sitting of Board Meetings which was previously affected appointment 
of interim Board for the period less than six months or three to be precise.  
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Budget Amount  R120 000.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R107 000.00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Attendance Registers, Proof of submissions, Approved Final Budget for 2020/21 Financial Year. Approved Multi Year Business Plan 2020/21, Meeting Minutes of Board meetings, ANDA SDBIP 
2020/21 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI 
Number of Ordinary and Special board meetings held, Number of Multi-year business plans and SDBIPs approved, Number of Quarterly Performance and Financial Reports submitted to the Board 
and ANDM, Number of Final Budget for 2020/21 approved, Number of banking details submitted to ANDM  

  

National KPA Good Governance and Public Participation  

Section Name Communications Unit  

Business Plan Project  Communications Policy  

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.4.2 

SDBIP Reference  7.4.2 

Strategic Objective  Promotion of Public Participation through implementation of communication policy  

Annual Target 18/19 N/A 

Actual Performance 
18/19 

N/A 

Annual Target 2019/20 1.Facilitate approval of Draft Communication policy by 30 June 2020, 2. Attend 2x DCF Meetings by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

The Review of the Communications Policy was undertaken and completed with the review of all other Organisational Policies, but it is yet to be adopted by the Board of Directors by 30 June 2019. 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

0 Targets achieved; 2 Targets not achieved 

Reason for Variance  

Communications Policy is part of the Organisational Policies which were not adopted by the Board of Directors due to the fact that after the reviewal process was completed and report submitted to 
the Board for adoption on the Board meeting that was held on the 28 June 2020,  

Corrective Action  
ANDA is in a process of procuring service provider to develop Communications Strategy in which the scope of work also includes development of Communication related Policies.  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 
19/20 FY 

N/A 

Amount/Budget R 0,00 
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 Actual Expenditure  R0.00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Attendance Registers for DCF Meeting and Draft Communication Policy  

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of Communication Policies approved 

  

National KPA Good Governance and Public Participation  

Section Name Internal Audit and Risk Management Unit  

Business Plan Project  Risk and Internal Audit Shared Services 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.4.3 

SDBIP Reference  7.4.3 

Strategic Objective  To Strengthen Governance, Reduce Risk and Increase the performance and efficiency level 

Annual Target 18/19 N/A 

Actual Performance 
18/19 

N/A 

Annual Target 2019/20 1.To Monitor Strategic and Operational risk register by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

Strategic and Operational risk register has been monitored by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  N/A 

Corrective Action  N/A 

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 
19/20 FY 

N/A 

Amount/Budget R0.00 

 Actual Expenditure  R0.00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Approved Strategic and Operational Risk Register; Meeting Minutes; Board Resolution 

Submitted POE (Y/N) N 

Annual KPI Number of strategic and operational risk registers monitored 
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National KPA Good Governance and Public Participation  

Section Name  Internal Audit and Risk Management Unit 

Business Plan Project Audit Action Plan 

Business Plan 
Reference 

3.7.4.4 

SDBIP Reference  7.4.4 

Strategic Objective  To Strengthen Governance and Reduce Risk  

Annual Target 18/19 N/A 

Actual Performance 
18/19 

N/A 

Annual Target  1.To update the Audit Action Plan by 30 June 2020 

Actual Performance 
19/20 

Audit action plan has been updated by 30 June 2020 

Number of Targets 
achieved/Not achieved 

1 Target achieved; 0 Targets not achieved  

Reason for Variance  None  

Corrective Action  
None  

Measures taken to 
improve performance 
between 18/19 and 
19/20 FY 

None  

Amount/Budget 
R 0,00 

 Actual Expenditure  R0.00 

Annual (Means of 
Verification) 

Updated Audit Action Plan 

Submitted POE (Y/N) Y 

Annual KPI Number of Audit Action Plans updated  
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General Information 

1 

 

 

 

 

Country of incorporation and domicile                               South Africa 

 

Nature of business and principal activities                        Carrying out the promotion and implementation of the local 
economic development initiatives and investment promotions 
in Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

 

Registered office                                                                   ERF 1400 

Ntsizwa Street 

Mount Ayliff 

4735 

 

Business address                                                                  ERF 1400 

Ntsizwa Street 

Mount Ayliff 

4735 

 

Postal address                                                                       Private bag X511 

Mount Ayliff 

4735 

 

Controlling entity                                                                   Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

 

Bankers                                                                                  First National Bank 

 

Auditors                                                                                  Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA)
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 

 

 

 

 

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate accounting 
records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included 
in this report. It is the responsibility of the accounting officer to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly 

present the state of affairs of the municipal entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash 
flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 

 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 

(GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 

 

The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

 

The accounting officer acknowledges that she is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by 
the municipal entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the accounting 
officer to meet these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error 
or deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These 
controls are monitored throughout the municipal entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in 
ensuring the municipal entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The 
focus of risk management in the municipal entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk 
across the municipal entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the municipal entity endeavours to minimise it by 
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined 
procedures and constraints. 

 

The accounting officer is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of 
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or deficit. 

 

The directors have reviewed the municipal entity’s cash flow forecast for the year to 30 June 2021 and, in the light of this review 
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the municipal entity has or has access to adequate resources to continue 
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

 

The municipal entity is wholly dependent on the Alfred Nzo District Municipality for continued funding of operations. The annual 
financial statements are prepared on the basis that the municipal entity is a going concern and that the Alfred Nzo District 
Municipality has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtail materially the scale of the municipal entity. 

 

Although the accounting officer is primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the municipal entity, they are supported by the 
municipal entity's internal auditors. 
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 

 

 

 

On the 15th of March 2020 His Excellency President Cyril Ramaphosa declared a national state of disaster in terms of the Disaster 

Management Act and the Country was placed on an initial 21-day lockdown. Furthermore, the Minister of Cooperative Governance 

under Section 3 of the Disaster Management Act 2002 (Act no 57, of 2002) in terms of 1) Section 27(1) of the Act, further declared 

a national state of disaster. On the 1st of May 2020 the Republic of South Africa moved to Level 4 of lockdown and  certain 

designated sectors were permitted and required to return to work whilst adhering to strict preventive Covid-19 protocols in order 

to curb and contain the spread of the virus. The municipal entity received a Covid-19 relief grant from the parent municipality, 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality for the acquisition of Covid-19 supply and services. Further more the Minister of Finance issued a 

Ministerial Exemption in terms of section 177(1) (b) of the MFMA on 05 August 2020, exempting municipalities and municipal 

entities from submitting their annual financial statements and related reports for auditing at the end of August 2020. 

 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 6 to 42, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the accounting officer on 20 October 2020. 

 

 

 

 

Mandy N Bambeni 

Chief Executive Officer



6 

Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Audit  and Performance Committee Report 

 

 

 

 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 30 June 2020. 

 

Audit and performance committee members and attendance 

 

The audit and perfomance committee consists of the members listed hereunder and should meet at least 4 times per annum as 
per its approved terms of reference. During the current year 5 meetings were held. 

Name of member                                                                      Date of Appointment 
Advocate Thandwefika Mgidlana (Chairperson)                        01 August 2018 to date 
Mr Zweli Zulu                                                                              01 August 2018 to date 

Ms Nosipho Mba CA (SA)                                                          01 August 2018 to 30 June 2020 

 

Audit and performance committee responsibility 

 

The Audit and performance committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 166(2)(a) of the 

MFMA. 

 

The Audit and performance committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit and 
performance committee charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its 
responsibilities as contained therein. 

 

The effectiveness of internal control 

 

Audit Committee considered and assessed Internal Audit Reports on the effectiveness of Internal Controls and made 

recommendations to management, the Board and Council in line with reporting requirements. Quality of In year reports were 

reviewed by Audit Committee and recommendations were made to management in line with the  MFMA and Municipal Budget 

and Reporting Regulations. 

 

Review of annual financial statements 

The  audit and performance committee has: 

 reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report, with the Auditor- 
General and the Accounting Officer; 

    reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa's management report and management’s response thereto; 

    reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices; 

    reviewed the entities compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; 

    reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Audit  and Performance Committee Report 

 

 

 

 

The audit and performance committee concur with and accept the Auditor-General of South Africa's report on the annual financial 

statements, and are of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the 

report of the Auditor-General of South Africa. 

Internal audit 

 

The audit and performane committee is satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively and that it has 
considered the risks pertinent to the entity and its audits. 

 

 

Chairperson of the Audit and Performance Committee 

 

 

 

Date:
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Director's Report 

 

 

 

The directors submit their  report for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

 

1.      Review of activities 

 

Main business and operations 

There has been no material change in the nature or conduct of the municipal entity's business during the period under review. 

The financial statements adequately disclose the results of the operations for the period under review and the state of the 

municipal entity's affairs at 30 June 2020 

There has been no material fact or occurrence since the end of the period under review on which we consider it necessary to 
report. 

 

2.      Going concern 

 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 

basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 

liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business as Alfred Nzo Development 

Agency is funded 100% by Alfred Nzo District Municipality with no intension to stop in the near future . 

 

3.      Subsequent events 

The accounting officer is not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year. 

 

4.      Share capital / contributed capital 

There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the municipal entity during the year under review. 

5.      Auditors 

Auditor-General South Africa (AGSA) will continue in office for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 

6.      Board 

 

The directors of the entity during the year and to date of this report are as follows: 

Name                                                              Nationality 
Mvula Mtimkulu                                               South African 
Ntombile Mabude                                            South African 
Luvuyo Mahlaka                                              South African 
Luleka Nonyongo                                             South African 
Tobela Nota                                                     South African 

Damain Nakin                                                  South African           Resigned 31 December 2019 
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

Director's Report 

 

 

 

 

Vuyo Mlokothi                                                  South African           Appointed 1 January 2020 

 

 

7.      Company Secretary 

 

Siyamthemba Sokulu Attorneys Inc.



10 

Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020 

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                  Note(s)           2020                 2019 

 

Assets 

 

Current Assets 

Receivables from exchange transactions                                                                                 2                 202 357            174 157 

VAT receivable                                                                                                                        30                            -              45 683 

Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                      3                 707 389            723 527 

909 746            943 367 

 

Non-Current Assets 

Investment property                                                                                                                 37             1 800 000                        - 

Property, plant and equipment                                                                                                 4              2 143 351         1 958 893 

Intangible assets                                                                                                                       5                   97 317              73 262 

4 040 668         2 032 155 

Total Assets                                                                                                                                            4 950 414         2 975 522 

 

Liabilities 

 

Current Liabilities 

Payables from exchange transactions                                                                                  6&23           1 113 438         1 763 264 

VAT payable                                                                                                                            31                618 982                        - 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts                                                                                 18                166 001            166 002 

SARS payable                                                                                                                         38                            -              79 057 

Bank overdraft                                                                                                                          3                             -              24 879 

1 898 421         2 033 202 

Total Liabilities                                                                                                                                       1 898 421         2 033 202 

Net Assets                                                                                                                                               3 051 993            942 320 

 

Share capital / contributed capital                                                                                            7                        100                   100 

Accumulated surplus                                                                                                                                3 051 993            942 321 

Total Net Assets                                                                                                                                     3 052 093            942 421
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                  Note(s)           2020                 2019 

 

Revenue 

 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Rental income                                                                                                                                              120 000              83 478 

Other income                                                                                                                                                 31 144                8 043 

Interest received                                                                                                                       8                 136 185            115 308 

Total revenue from exchange transactions                                                                                            287 329            206 829 

 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies                                                                                               9            17 826 087       19 011 995 

Debt Forgiveness                                                                                                                     36                  89 078                        - 

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions                                                                               17 915 165       19 011 995 

Total revenue                                                                                                                         10           18 202 494       19 218 824 

 

Expenditure 

Employee related costs                                                                                                           11          (10 834 961)       (8 934 871) 

Depreciation and amortisation                                                                                                 12               (345 167)          (308 648) 

Lease rentals on operating lease                                                                                            39                            -             (23 825) 

General Expenses                                                                                                                   13            (3 448 023)       (4 782 193) 

Audit fees                                                                                                                                 15               (810 612)       (1 257 356) 

Repairs and maintenance                                                                                                        16                 (57 245)            (34 651) 

Project Expenditure                                                                                                                 14            (2 019 176)       (2 741 487) 

Total expenditure                                                                                                                                (17 515 184)     (18 083 031) 

 

Gain on disposal of assets                                                                                                                                      -                5 463 

Surplus for the year                                                                                                                                   687 310         1 141 256



 

 

Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

Statement of Changes in Net Asset 

 

 

Figures in Rand 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Share capital / 
contributed 

capital 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Accumulated 
surplus 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total net 
assets

 

Balance at July 1, 2018                                                                                                                                                                                                              100             (10 696)            (10 596) 

Changes in net assets 

Prior year adjustment                                                                                                                                                                                                                        -           (188 239)          (188 239) 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets                                                                                                                                                                     -           (188 239)          (188 239) 
Surplus for the year                                                                                                                                                                                                                           -         1 141 256         1 141 256 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year                                                                                                                                                                        -            953 017            953 017 

Total changes                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    -            953 017            953 017 

 

Opening balance as previously reported                                                                                                                                                                                     100            942 321            942 421 

Balance at July 1, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                              100            942 321            942 421 

Changes in net assets 

Adjustments                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      -           (377 638)          (377 638) 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets                                                                                                                                                                     -           (377 638)          (377 638) 
Surplus for the year                                                                                                                                                                                                                           -            687 310            687 310 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year                                                                                                                                                                        -            309 672            309 672 

Contributions                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     -         1 800 000         1 800 000 

Total changes                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    -         2 109 672         2 109 672 

Balance at 30 June 2020                                                                                                                                                                                                            100         3 051 993         3 052 093 



9 

 

 

Cash Flow Statement 

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                  Note(s)           2020                 2019 

 

 

Cash flows from operating activities 

 

Receipts 

Grants                                                                                                                                                     17 826 087       19 011 995 

Interest income                                                                                                                                            136 185            115 308 

Rent received                                                                                                                                                80 870                        - 

Other receipts                                                                                                                                                31 144            121 250 

18 074 286       19 248 553 

 

Payments 

Employee costs                                                                                                                                     (10 434 421)       (8 649 214) 

Suppliers                                                                                                                                                 (7 136 100)     (10 223 062) 

Bank charges                                                                                                                                               (21 235)            (22 927) 

(17 591 756)     (18 895 203) 

Net cash flows from operating activities                                                                            17                482 530            353 350 

 

Cash flows from investing activities 

 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment                                                                             4                (399 840)          (445 577) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment                                                             4                             -            141 998 

Purchase of other intangible assets                                                                                         5                  (73 950)            (69 949) 

 

Net cash flows from investing activities                                                                                                (473 790)          (373 528) 

 

 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                                                                             8 740             (20 178) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                                                                            698 649            718 827 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                                                              3                 707 389            698 649
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 

Budget on Cash Basis

 

 

 

Figures in Rand

Approve
d 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget  Actual amounts 
on comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

Reference

 Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Rental income                                            96 000              42 000            138 000            120 000             (18 000)         28.1 

Other income                                                  500              60 000              60 500              31 144             (29 356) 

Interest received - investment                 152 960                        -            152 960            136 185             (16 775)         28.2

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 

249 460            102 000            351 460            287 329             (64 131)

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies         35 317 500      (14 817 500)      20 500 000       17 826 087        (2 673 913)         28.3 

Debt Forgiveness                                                -                        -                        -              89 078              89 078

Total revenue from non- 
exchange transactions 

35 317 500      (14 817 500)      20 500 000       17 915 165        (2 584 835)

Total revenue                                    35 566 960      (14 715 500)      20 851 460       18 202 494        (2 648 966) 

Expenditure 

Employee related costs                     (10 797 878)                       -      (10 797 878)     (10 834 961)            (37 083) 

Depreciation and amortisation                             -                        -                        -           (345 167)          (345 167)         28.4 

Audit fees                                             (1 434 000)        1 300 000           (134 000)          (810 612)          (676 612)         28.5 

Repairs and maintenance                      (130 000)                       -           (130 000)            (57 245)             72 755          28.6 

Project Expenditure                           (14 360 716)      11 906 500        (2 454 216)       (2 019 176)           435 040          28.7 

General Expenses                               (9 084 366)        1 749 000        (7 335 366)       (3 448 023)        3 887 343          28.8 

Total expenditure                            (35 806 960)      14 955 500      (20 851 460)     (17 515 184)        3 336 276 

Surplus before taxation                       (240 000)           240 000                        -            687 310            687 310

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

(240 000)           240 000                        -            687 310            687 310
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Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 

1.      Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance 

Management Act (Act 56 of 2003). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where offsetting is either required or permitted by a Standard of 
GRAP. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 
financial statements, are disclosed below. 

1.1    Presentation currency 

These annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipal entity 
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (R000). 

1.2    Going concern assumption 

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipality entity will continue to 
operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 

1.3    Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Municipal Entity's accounting policies, which are described below, management is required to make 

judgement, estimates and assumption that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the 

disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 

historical experiences and other factors that are considered to reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the 

basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  

Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.  Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and 

future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Impairment testing 

The recoverable amounts of  individual assets have been determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations and fair 
values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the 
assumption may change which may then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying 
value of  tangible assets. 

The municipal entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of 
expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in use of the 
tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. 

 

Taxation 

Effective interest rate 

The municipali entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows. 
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1.4    Investment property 

 

is property (land or a building – or part of a building – or both) held (by the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) held 
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for: 

    use in the production or supply of goods or services or 

    sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

1.4    Investment property (continued) 

 

Recogition 

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that are 

associated with the investment property will flow to the entity, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be 

measured reliably. 

At initial recognition, the municipality measures investment property at cost including transaction costs once it meets the definition 

of investment property. However, where an investment property was acquired through a non-exchange transaction (i.e. where it 

acquired the investment property for no or a nominal value), its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. The cost of self-

constructed investment property is the cost at date of completion. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when 

there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to owner occupied property (property, plant and equipment), the 

deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an 

investment property, the municipality accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and 

equipment up to the date of change in use. The cost of Day to Day servicing of investment property is recognised in the statement 

of Financial Performance as incurred. 

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of 

acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement 

Where  is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a 

replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 

derecognised. 

Cost model 

Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Land is not depreciated. Investment properties are written down as a result of impairment, where considered necessary. 

Depreciation begins when the asset is available for use. Depreciation is calculated on the depreciable amount, using the straight-

line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Components of assets that are significant in relation to the whole asset 

and that have different useful lives are depreciated separately. Investment property includes land held with an indefinite use. 

This land is recognised at fair value on the date of recognition 

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less estimated residual value  over the useful life of the property, which is as 
follows: 

Item                                                                                                          Useful life 
Property - land                                                                                          indefinite 
Property - buildings                                                                                   30 years 

 

Derecognition 
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Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal 
of investment property is the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised 
in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal. 

Compensation from third parties for investment property that was impaired, lost or given up is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the compensation becomes receivable. 

 

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property 

to owner occupied property (property, plant and equipment), the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value [or 

carrying amount if cost model is used] at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, 

the entity accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of 

change in use.The municipal entity separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain investment property in the notes to 

the financial statements . The municipal entity discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, 

in the notes to the annual financial statements 

 

1.4    Investment property (continued) 

Impairments                                                                                                                                                                             

The municipal entity  tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether 

there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an Investment Property 

is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss 

is charged to the Statement of Financial Performance.An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount 

does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognised. A reversal of the 

impairment is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

 

1.5    Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 

production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during 

more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

    it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and 

    the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired 
item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
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Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included 

in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation 

arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the definition of 
property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment  which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The useful lives of 
items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

 

Item                                                                                                          Depreciation method         Average useful life 

Buildings                                                                                                   Straight line                          30 years 

 

1.5    Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Furniture and fixtures                                                                               Straight line                          10 years 
Motor vehicles                                                                                          Straight line                          7 years 
Office equipment                                                                                      Straight line                          2-5 years 
Computer equipment                                                                                Straight line                          5 years 

 

Depreciation on assets other than land is calculated using the straight line method, to allocate their cost less their residual values 
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  The depreciation method used reflects the pattern in which the assets' future 
economic benefits or service potential are expected to be consumed by the Municipal Entity.  Each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. The depreciation 
rates are based on the following estimated useful lives. 

 

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is ready for its intended use.  Assets held under finance leases are 
depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.  
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset. Incomplete construction work is stated at historical cost. Depreciation only commences when the asset is ready for use. 
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic 

benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised.  Gains are not classified as revenue.  
Gains or losses are calculated as the difference between the carrying values of assets. 

 

 

Assets which the group holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities, are 
transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are 
recognised as revenue.  All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow 
statement. 
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Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired, lost or given up is included in 
surplus or deficit when the compensation becomes receivable. 

 

1.6    Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes are classified and recognised as intangible assets. 

 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 

 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 
whether the entity intends to do so; or 

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 
transferable or separable from the municipal entity or from other rights and obligations. 

 

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in 
the form of a contract. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the municipal entity; and 

    the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

 

1.6    Intangible assets (continued) 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.  The cost of an intangible asset is the purchase price and other costs attributable 

to bring the intangible asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the 

Municipal Entity, or where an intangible asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the cost shall be its fair value as at the 

date of acquisition.  Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Intangible assets acquired separately or internally generated are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation is calculated on cost, using the straight-line method, over the useful lives of the assets, which is estimated to be 3 
years upon initial recognition.  Where intangible assets are deemed to have an indefinite useful life, such intangible assets are not 
amortised. 

Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service 
potential expected from the use of the asset.  The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an intangible asset is 
determined as the difference between the net disposals proceeds and the carrying value and is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Performance. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 

 

1.7    Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of 

another entity. Financial instruments are classified into three categories namely, financial instruments at fair value, financial 

instruments at amortised cost or financial instruments at cost.  The Municipal Entity determines the classification of its financial 

instruments at initial recognition. 
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A financial asset is: 

    cash; 

    a residual interest of another entity; or 

    a contractual right to: 

-       receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 

-       exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 
favourable to the entity. 

 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 

    deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 

    exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity. 

Classification 

 

The municipal entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement 
of financial position or in the notes thereto: ` 

 

Class                                                                                                  Category 

Receivable from exchange transactions                                    Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Cash and cash equivalents                                                        Financial asset measured at cost 

 

The municipal  entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the 
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 

Class                                                                                                  Category 

Payables from exchange transactions                                       Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

Initial recognition  

 

1.7    Financial instruments (continued) 

 

The municipal  entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the municipal 
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

The municipal entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 
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Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The municipal  entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 

 

The municipal  entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair 
value]. 

 

The municipal entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the 
municipal  entity analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The 
municipal  entity accounts for that part of a concessionary loan that is: 

 a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, 
where it is the issuer of the loan; or 

    non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan. 

 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

 

The municipal  entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories: 

    Financial instruments at fair value. 

    Financial instruments at a mortised cost. 

    Financial instruments at cost. 

 

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 

Fair value measurement considerations 

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the 

municipal entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish 

what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal operating 

considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing 

parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash flow 

analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market participants to price the instrument 

and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices obtained in actual market transactions, the entity 

uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on 

entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with 

accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial instruments. Periodically, the municipal entity calibrates the valuation 

technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without 

modification or repackaging) or based on any available observable market data. 

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on 
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. 
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Gains and losses 

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is recognised in 
surplus or deficit. 

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process. 

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets 

 

1.7    Financial instruments (continued) 

The municipal entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or 

group of financial assets is impaired. 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the 
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of 
the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by adjusting an 
allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost 
would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is 
recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Financial assets measured at cost: 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not 
measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at 
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 

Derecognition 

 

Financial assets 

The municipal  entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 

The municipal entity derecognises a financial asset only when: 

    the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived; 

 the municipal entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset; or 

 the municipal  entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
has transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose 
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the municipal entity : 

 

-       derecognise the asset; and 

-       recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 
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The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred on the 
basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair values at that 
date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is recognised in surplus 
or deficit in the period of the transfer. 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Financial liabilities 

The municipal  entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 
extinguished  i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived. 

An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as 
having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of 
the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and 
having recognised a new financial liability. 

1.7    Financial instruments (continued) 

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus 
or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another municipal  entity by way of a non-exchange transaction 
are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers). 

 

1.8    Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases where substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of an asset are 
transferred to the Municipal Entity.  Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the 
lessor are classified as operating leases. 

 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

 

1.9    Share capital / contributed capital 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of a municipal entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. 

 

1.10  Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Remuneration to employees is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance as the services are rendered, except for 
non-accumulating benefits which are only recognised when the specific event occurs. 

The costs of all short-term employee benefits such as leave pay, are recognised during the period in which the employee 
renders the related service. 

Leave pay 

Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees subject to certain conditions as outlined in the Municipal 
Entity's leave policy. The liability is based on the total accrued leave days at year end and is shown as a provision in the Statement 
of Financial Position. 
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1.11  Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities 

Provisions are recognised when: 

    the municipal entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 

 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and 

    a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 

reporting date.Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the 

expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

 

1.11  Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities (continued) 

 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the municipal 
entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 
does not exceed the amount of the provision. 

 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating surplus (deficit). 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 

    has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 

-       the activity/operating unit or part of an activity/operating unit concerned; 

-       the principal locations affected; 

-       the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 
terminated; 

-       the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 

-       when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
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    necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 

    not associated with the ongoing activities of the municipal entity 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 26. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 

it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 

instrument. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

The municipal entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the 

obligation can be made. 

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an 

outflow of resources may be probable are: 

    financial difficulty of the debtor; 

    defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 

 breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the 

ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and 

 a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on 

the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

Where a fee is received by the municipal entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, 

it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is 

charged and the municipal entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an municipal entity recognises the 

obligation at the higher of: 

 

1.11  Provisions and contingent assets and liabilities (continued) 

    the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; 

and 

 the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance 
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. 

 

1.12  Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 
outflow of cash. 

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 

 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial 
statements, if both the following criteria are met: 

 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or 
building maintenance services); and 

 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary 
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded. 
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1.13  Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

The Municipal Entity recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the Municipal Entity and when specific criteria have been met for each of the municipalities' activities 
as described below.  The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale 
have been resolved.  The Municipal Entity bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, 
the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.  Furthermore, services rendered are recognised by reference to 
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer 
returns, stock rotation, price protection, rebates and other similar allowances. 

 

Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue that accrued to the Municipal Entity directly in return for services 
rendered / goods sold, the value of which approximates the consideration received or receivable. 

 

Service Received In-kind 

Services in kind are recognised at its fair value when it is significant to the operations and/or service delivery objectives and 
when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential will flow to the entity and the fair value of the assets 
can be measured reliably.  If the services in-kind are not significant to the operations and/or service delivery objectives and/or 
do not satisfy the criteria for recognition, only the nature and type of services in-kind received during the reporting period is 
disclosed. 

 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 

    the municipal  entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 

 themunicipal  entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

    the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
municipal entity; and 

    the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Rent received 

Revenue from the rental of facilities and equipment is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease 
agreement. 

 

1.13  Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Interest 

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis. 
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1.14  Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Debt Forgiveness 

Revenue arising from debt forgiveness is measured at the carrying amount of the debt forgiven. 

Conditional grants 

Conditional grants recognised as revenue to the extent that the Municipal Entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions 
or obligations embodied in the agreement.  Where the agreement contains a stipulation to return the asset, other future economic 
benefits or service potential, in the event of non-compliance to these stipulations and would be enforced by the transferor, a liability 
is recognised to the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met.  Where such requirements are not 
enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the transferor has never enforced the requirement to return the 
transferred asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when breaches have occurred, the stipulation will be 
considered a restriction and is recognised as revenue. 

Unconditional grants 

Conditional grants recognised as revenue to the extent that the Municipal Entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions 
or obligations embodied in the agreement.  Where the agreement contains a stipulation to return the asset, other future economic 
benefits or service potential, in the event of non-compliance to these stipulations and would be enforced by the transferor, a liability 
is recognised to the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met.  Where such requirements are not 
enforceable, or where past experience has indicated that the transferor has never enforced the requirement to return the 
transferred asset, other future economic benefits or service potential when breaches have occurred, the stipulation will be 
considered a restriction and is recognised as revenue. 

Interest earned on grants received and invested is treated in accordance with grant conditions.  If it is payable to the funder it is 
recorded as part of the creditor and if it is the Municipal Entity's interest it is recognised as interest earned in the Statement of 
Financial Performance 

1.15  Offsetting 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the Statement of Financial Position only when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amount, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 

1.16  Comparative of actual information to budgeted information 

 

The annual budget figures have been prepared in accordance with the Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulations, 2009.  A 
comparative of actual to budged amounts are reported in a separate additional financial statement, called the Statement of 
Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts.  Explanatory comment is provided in the notes to the Statement giving motivations 
for over- or under spending on line items where it is found to be material. 

 

The budgeted figures are those approved by the Parent Municipality Council at the beginning and during the year following a 
period of consultation with the public as part of the Integrated Development Plan.  The budget is prepared and approved on an 
accrual basis by nature classification.  The approved budget covers the period from 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. 

 

In general, a difference of 10% or more is considered material, although the surrounding circumstances are taken into account if 
it could influence the decisions or assessments of the users of the financial statements in determining whether a difference 
between the budgeted and actual amount is material. 
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1.17  Current year comparatives 

When the presentation or classification of items in the Financial Statements is amended, prior period comparative amounts are also 
reclassified and restated, unless such comparative reclassification and / or restatement is not required by a Standard of GRAP.  
The nature and reason for such reclassifications and restatements are also disclosed. 

Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year, the correction is made 
retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly. Where there has been a change 
in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year 
comparatives are restated accordingly. 

The presentation and classification of items in the current year is consistent with prior periods. 

 

1.18  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is defined in section 1 of the MFMA as follows: 

“fruitless and wasteful expenditure” means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable 
care been exercised. 

According to section 125(2)(d) of the MFMA, the Municipal Entity is  required to disclose all Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
identified. This entails disclosure in the notes to the financial statements once identified. Once fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
is identified, processes of Recovery/Write-off by Council in terms of section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA must occur. 

 

Identification 

Every expenditure item is reviewed before payment is made to identify whether it meets the definition of fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure.  Where an expenditure item is identified as fruitless and wasteful expenditure, it is recorded in the fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure register. 

 

Council decision and accounting treatment. 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure reported to the entity's parent municipality mayor and municipal manager by the Board is in 

turn reported to council  and council refers it to the Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) for investigation and 

recommendation to council. Where MPAC after investigation, recommends to council to certify the fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure as irrecoverable and write - off, the fruitless and wasteful expenditure is disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements as certified and written - off by council as irrecoverable. Where MPAC determines after investigation, that the 

fruitless and wasteful expenditure must be recovered from the relevant official, the fruitless and wasteful expenditure is 

recognised as an asset (debtor) in the statement of financial position and also disclosed in the fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

note as fruitless and wasteful expenditure incurred in the current financial year. 

 

External Reporting 

The Board of the Municipal Entity promptly informs the mayor and municipal manager of the entity's parent and Auditor General 
in terms of MFMA section 102 of: 

(a) particulars of the expenditure; 

(b) any steps that have been taken- 

(i) To recover or rectify such expenditure; and 

(ii) To prevent a recurrence of the expenditure. 
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1.19  Irregular expenditure 

 

Irregular expenditure is defined in section 1 of the MFMA as follows: 

“irregular expenditure”, in relation to a Municipal Entity or municipal entity, means— 

(a) expenditure incurred by a Municipal Entity or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a 
requirement of this Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of section 170; 

(b) expenditure incurred by a Municipal Entity or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a 
requirement of the Municipal Systems Act, and which has not been condoned in terms of that Act; 

(c) expenditure incurred by a Municipal Entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Public 

Office-Bearers Act, 1998 (Act No. 20 of 1998); or 

(d) expenditure incurred by a Municipal Entity or municipal entity in contravention of, or that is not in accordance with, a 
requirement of the supply chain management policy of the Municipal Entity or entity or any of the Municipal Entity’s by-laws 
giving effect to such policy, and which has not been condoned in terms of such policy or by-law, 

but excludes expenditure by a Municipal Entity which falls within the definition of “unauthorised expenditure”. 

 

 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 
of 2003), the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000), or the Public Office Bearers Act, 1998 (Act 20 

of 1998), or in contravention of the Municipality entity's Supply Chain Management Policy. Irregular expenditure excludes 
unauthorised expenditure. 

 

According to section 125(2)(d) of the MFMA, the Municipal Entity is  required to disclose all irregular expenditure identified. This 
entails disclosure in the notes to the financial statements once identified. Once irregular expenditure is identified, processes of 
Recovery/Write-off by Council in terms of section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA must occur. 

 

Identification 

Every expenditure item is reviewed before payment is made to identify whether it meets the definition of Irregular expenditure. 
Where an expenditure item is identified as Irregular expenditure, it is recorded in the Irregular expenditure register. 

 

Council decision and accounting treatment 

Irregular expenditure reported to the entity's parent municipality mayor and municipal manager by the Board is in turn reported to 
council  and council refers it to the Municipal Public Accounts Committee (MPAC) for investigation and recommendation to council. 
Where MPAC after investigation, recommends to council to certify the Irregular expenditure as irrecoverable and write - off, the 
Irregular expenditure is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as certified and written - off by council as irrecoverable. 
Where MPAC determines after investigation, that the Irregular expenditure must be recovered from the relevant official, the 
Irregular expenditure is recognised as an asset (debtor) in the statement of financial position and also disclosed in the Irregular 
expenditure note as irregular expenditure incurred in the current financial year. 

External Reporting 

The Board of the Municipal Entity promptly informs the mayor and municipal manager of the entity's parent and Auditor General 
in terms of MFMA section 102 of: 

(a) particulars of the expenditure; 

(b) any steps that have been taken- 
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(i) To recover or rectify such expenditure; and 

(ii) To prevent a recurrence of the expenditure. 

1.20  Related parties 

Individuals as well as their close family members, and/or entities are related parties if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, 
to control or jointly control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and/or operating 
decisions.  Management is regarded as a related party and comprises the Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer and all other managers reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer or as designated by the Chief Executive 
Officer. 

 

1.21  Events after reporting date 

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the 
date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

    those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); 

and 

1.21  Events after reporting date (continued) 

 those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting 
date). 

 

The municipal entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting 
date once the event occurred. 

The municipal entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate 
cannot be made in respect of  all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

 

1.22. New standards and interpretations 

 

1.22.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 

In the current year there were no new standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial period and that are 
relevant to the operations of the municipal entity. 

1.22.2 Standards and interpretations early adopted 

The municipal enity  has  not early adopted any new standards and interpretations 

1.22.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

The municipal entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published: 

GRAP 104  (revised): Financial Instruments 

Following the global financial crisis, an number of concerns were raised about the accounting for financial instruments. This included 
that (a) information on credit losses and defaults on financial assets was received too late to enable proper decision- making, (b)  
using fair value in certain instances was inappropriate, and (c) some of the existing accounting requirements were seen as too rules 
based. As a result, the International Accounting Standards Board amended its existing Standards to deal with these issues. The 
IASB issued IFRS Standard on Financial Instruments (IFRS 9) in 2009 to address many of the concerns raised. Revisions were 
also made to IAS in Financial Instruments; Presentation and the IFRS Standards on Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The 
IPSASB issued revised International Public Sector Accounting Standards in June 2018 so as to align them wth the equivalent IFRS 
Standards. 
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The revisions better align the Standards of GRAP with recent international developments. The amendments result in better 
information available to make decisions about financial financial asets and their recoverability, and more transparent information 
on financial liabilities. 

The most significan changes to the Standard affect: 

Financial guarantee contracts issued 

Loan commitments issued 

Classification of financial asets 

Impairment of financial financial assests 

 

New standards and interpretations (continued) 

Disclosures 

The effective date of the amendment is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. The municipal entity expects to adopt the amendment 

for the first time when the Minister sets effective date for the amendment. It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact 

on the municipal entity's annual financial statements. 

Guideline: Guideline on Accounting for Landfill Sites 

The objective of this guideline is to provide an overview of the legislative requirements that govern landfill sites, accounting for 
land in a landfill, accounting for the landfill site asset, accounting for the provision for rehabilitation, closure, end-use and 
monitoring, other consideration, and annexures with terminology, summary of guidance from other standard setters and references 
to pronouncements used in the Guideline 

The effective date of the guideline is not yet set by the Minister of Finance 

The adoption of this standard will not have impact on the results of the municipal entity's annual financial statements. 

 

Guideline: Guideline on the Application of Materiality to Financial Statements 

The objective of this guideline is to provide the definition and characteristics of materiality, the role of materiality in the financial 
statements, identifying the users of financial statements and their information needs, assessing whether information is material, 
applying materiality in preparing the financial statements, and appendices with references to the conceptual framework for general 
purpose financial reporting and references to pronouncements used in the guideline. 

 

The effective date of the guideline is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

 

The municipal entity  expects to adopt the guideline for the first time when the Minister sets the effective date for the guideline 

. 

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact on the results of the municipal entity, but may result in more disclosure 
than is currently. 

 

 

 

 



28 

Alfred Nzo Development Agency SOC Limited 

(Registration number 2008/009093/08) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 

 

 

 

GRAP 1 (amended): Presentation of Financial Statements 

Amendments to this Standard of GRAP, are primarily drawn from the IASB’s Amendments to IAS 1. 

The summary of amendments are as follows: 

Materiality and aggregation 

The amendments clarify that: 

information should not be obscured by aggregating or by providing immaterial information; 

materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements; and 

even when a Standard of GRAP requires a specific disclosure, materiality considerations apply. 

 

Statement of financial position and statement of financial performance 

The amendments clarify that the list of line items to be presented in these statements can be disaggregated and aggregated as 
relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these statements. 

 

Notes structure 

The amendments add examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify that understandability and comparability should 
be considered when determining the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the notes need not be presented in the order 
listed in GRAP 1. 

 

Disclosure of accounting policies 

New standards and interpretations (continued) 

Remove guidance and examples with regard to the identification of significant accounting policies that were perceived as being 
potentially unhelpful. 

An economic entity applies judgement based on past experience and current facts and circumstances. 

The effective date of this amendment is for years beginning on or after April 1, 2020. 

This standard will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the municipal entity when it becomes effective 

GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements 

The objective of this standard is to prescribe the accounting and disclosure requirements for investments in controlled entities, 
joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements. 

It furthermore covers definitions, preparation of separate financial statements, disclosure, transitional provisions and effective 
date. 

The effective date of the standard is for the year beginning on or after July 2020 financial year. 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has not acquired any investments to date and will therefore not be immediately affected 
by the Standard when it is required to apply it. 
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GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

The objective of this Standard is to establish principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial 
statements when an entity controls one or more other entities. 

 

The effective date of the standard is for the year beginning on or after Julyl 2020 financial year. 

 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has not acquired control over any entity to date and will therefore not be immediately 
affected by the Standard when it is required to apply it. 

 

GRAP 36: Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 

The objective of this standard is to prescribe the accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures and to set out the 
requirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates and joint ventures. 

Transitions from GRAP 8 to 36 will result in transactions which were previously accounted for as joint controlled entities now 
being classified as joint ventures. The accounting treatment, however will remain the same. 

The effective date of the standard is for the year beginning on or after 1 July 2020. 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has not acquired any investments to date and will therefore not be immediately affected by 
the Standard when it is required to apply it. 

 

GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements 

The objective of this standard is to establish principles for financial reporting by entities that have an interest in arrangements that 
are controlled jointly (ie joint arrangements). 

Transitions from GRAP 8 to 37 will result in transactions which were previously accounted for as joint controlled entities now 
being classified as joint ventures. The accounting treatment, however will remain the same.. 

The effective date of the standard is for the beginning on or after 1 July 2020. 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has not acquired control over any entity to date and will therefore not be immediately 
affected by the Standard when it is required to apply it. 

 

GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 

 

The objective of this standard is to require an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial statements 

 New standards and interpretations (continued) 

evaluate: the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in controlled entities, unconsolidated controlled entities, joint 
arrangements and associates, and structured entities that are not consolidated; and the effects of those interests on its financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows. 

The effective date of the standard is for the beginning on or after 1 July 2020. 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has not acquired any interest in any entity to date and will therefore not be immediately 
affected by the Standard when it is required to apply it. 
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GRAP 110 (as amended2016): Living and Non-Living Resources 

The objective of this standard is to prescribe the: recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements for living 

resources; and disclosure requirements for non-living resources 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 1 July 2020. 

The Alfred Nzo Development Agency has not acquired control over any entity to date and will therefore not be immediately affected 
by the Standard when it is required to apply it. 

 

GRAP 18 (as amended 2016): Segment Reporting 

Segmentsare identified by the way in which information is reported to management, both for purposes of assessing 

performance and making decisions about how future resources will be allocated to the various activities undertaken by the 

municipality. The major classifications of activities identified in budget documentation will usually reflect the segments for which 

an entity reports information to management. 

Segment information is either presented based on service or geographical segments. Service segments relate to a 

distinguishable component of an entity that provides specific outputs or achieves particular operating objectives that are in line 

with the municipality’s overall mission. Geographical segments relate to specific outputs generated, or particular objectives 

achieved, by an entity within a particular region. 

The subsequent amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Segment Reporting resulted from editorial and other changes to the 

original text have been made to ensure consistency with other Standards of GRAP. 

The most significant changes to the Standard are: 

General improvements: An appendix with illustrative segment disclosures has been deleted from the Standard as the National 
Treasury has issued complete examples as part of its implementation guidance. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2020. 

This standard will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the municipal entity when it becomes effective. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand                                                                                                                                          2020                 2019 

 

 

2.      Receivables from exchange transactions 

 

Sundry debtors                                                                                                                                              70 807              42 607 

Lungisani Farmers Corp                                                                                                                                45 000              45 000 

Other receivables                                                                                                                                          85 752              85 752 

Other debtors                                                                                                                                                      798                   798 

202 357            174 157 

 

3.      Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

 

Bank balances                                                                                                                                               41 130                        - 
Short-term deposits                                                                                                                                     666 259            723 527 

Bank overdraft                                                                                                                                                         -             (24 879) 

707 389            698 648 

 

Current assets                                                                                                                                             707 389            723 527 

Current liabilities                                                                                                                                                      -             (24 879) 

707 389            698 648 
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The entity had the following bank accounts 

`  

Account number / description                  Bank statement balances                                    Cash book balances 

30 June 2020   30 June 2019   30 June 2018   30 June 2020   30 June 2019   30 June 2018

FNB BANK - Main Account - 

62215290355 

FNB BANK - Livestock Account 

- 62238128351 

FNB BANK - SMME Account - 

62238128517 

FNB BANK - Tourism Call 

Account - 62238128781 

FNB BANK - Fruit & Veg Call 

Account - 62238129094 

FNB BANK - Woodcluster Call 

Account - 62238129804 

FNB BANK - ANDA Reserve 

Fund Account - 62238130231 

FNB BANK - Grain Call Account 

- 62238127949 

FNB BANK - Cut Flower Call 

Account - 62238128129 

FNB BANK - Resource 

Mobilisation  Call Account - 

62723836360 

FNB BANK - Capacity Building 

Call Account - 62723833621 

FNB BANK - Commercial NFS 
Account - 62822669620 

41 130             (24 879)             17 839              41 130             (24 879)             17 839 

 

1 882                3 707                3 724                1 882                3 707                3 724 

 

2 682                2 751            546 731                2 682                2 751            546 731 

 

1 026                1 186                1 337                1 026                1 186                1 337 

 

1 145                1 298                1 444                1 145                1 298                1 444 

 

1 170                1 321                1 466                1 170                1 321                1 466 

 

645 313            706 384              69 768            645 313            706 384              69 768 

 

2 421                2 505              71 672                2 421                2 505              71 672 

 

2 066                2 169                2 268                2 066                2 169                2 268 

 

1 167                1 103                1 044                1 167                1 103                1 044 

 

 

2 174                1 103                1 039                2 174                1 103                1 039 

 

5 213                        -                        -                5 213                        -                        -

Total                                                        707 389            698 648            718 332            707 389            698 648            718 332
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4.      Property, plant and equipment 

 

2020                                                                   2019

Cost / Accumulated Carrying value        Cost / Accumulated Carrying value

Valuation depreciation 
and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Valuation depreciation 
and 

accumulated 
impairment

Buildings                                                                                                                                                 1 725 992           (287 665)        1 438 327         1 725 992           (230 132)        1 495 860 

Furniture and fixtures                                                                                                                                 217 740           (183 351)             34 389            211 940           (161 915)             50 025 

Motor vehicles                                                                                                                                            294 626           (241 812)             52 814            294 626           (279 612)             15 014 

Office equipment                                                                                                                                        350 597           (318 039)             32 558            321 302           (301 802)             19 500 

Computer equipment                                                                                                                              1 119 646           (534 383)           585 263            773 146           (394 652)           378 494 

Other property, plant and equipment                                                                                                           25 692             (25 692)                       -                7 447               (7 447)                       - 

Total                                                                                                                                                        3 734 293        (1 590 942)        2 143 351         3 334 453        (1 375 560)        1 958 893 
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Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020 

Opening 
balance 

Additions    Reassessment  Depreciation          Total

Buildings                                                                                                                                                                          1 495 860                        -                         -             (57 533)        1 438 327 

Furniture and fittings                                                                                                                                                             50 025                5 800                         -             (21 436)             34 389 

Motor vehicles                                                                                                                                                                      15 014                        -               79 889             (42 089)             52 814 

Office equipment                                                                                                                                                                  19 500              29 295                         -             (16 237)             32 558 

Computer equipment                                                                                                                                                          378 494            346 500                         -           (139 731)           585 263 

Other property, plant and equipment                                                                                                                                             -              18 245                         -             (18 245)                       - 

1 958 893            399 840               79 889           (295 271)        2 143 351
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4.      Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019 

Opening 
balance 

Additions        Disposals      Depreciation          Total

Buildings                                                                                                                                                                     1 553 393                        -                        -             (57 533)        1 495 860 

Furniture and fittings                                                                                                                                                       71 219                        -                        -             (21 194)             50 025 

Motor vehicles                                                                                                                                                                 73 939                        -                        -             (58 925)             15 014 

Office equipment                                                                                                                                                             42 884                6 250                        -             (29 634)             19 500 

Computer equipment                                                                                                                                                     183 427            431 880           (141 998)            (94 815)           378 494 

Other property, plant and equipment                                                                                                                                        -                7 447                        -               (7 447)                       - 

1 924 862            445 577           (141 998)          (269 548)        1 958 893 

 

The Municipal entity has Office Equipment items that are fully depreciated and still in use.These fully depreciated assets are 

immaterial qualitatively and quantitatively hence no djustments made. 
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5.      Intangible assets 

 

2020                                                                   2019

Cost / Accumulated Carrying value        Cost / Accumulated Carrying value

Valuation amortisation 
and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Valuation amortisation 
and 

accumulated 
impairment

Computer software                                                                                                                               614 883           (517 566)             97 317            540 933           (467 671)             73 26 
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5.      Intangible assets (continued) 

 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020 

Opening 
balance 

Additions      Amortisation          Total

Computer software                                                                                                                                                                                   73 262              73 950             (49 895)             97 317 

 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019 

Opening 
balance 

Additions      Amortisation          Total

Computer software                                                                                                                                                                                   42 414              69 948             (39 100)             73 262
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6.      Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables                                                                                                                                            135 291            870 398 

Leave provision                                                                                                                                           973 241            862 729 

Other creditors                                                                                                                                                         -                2 136 

Sundry creditors                                                                                                                                              2 001                2 001 

Board control                                                                                                                                                   2 905              10 000 

Rent received in advance                                                                                                                                        -              16 000 

1 113 438         1 763 264 

 

7.      Share capital / contributed capital 

 

Authorised 

100 Ordinary shares of R 1 each                                                                                                                       100                   100 

 

Issued 

100 Ordinary shares of R1 each                                                                                                                        100                   100 

 

8.      Interest Received 

 

Interest revenue 

Bank                                                                                                                                                             136 185            115 308 

 

9.      Government grants and subsidies 

 

Operating grants 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality                                                                                                               17 826 087       17 391 304 

Service Seta                                                                                                                                                            -         1 620 691 

17 826 087       19 011 995 
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10.    Total Revenue 

Rental income                                                                                                                                              120 000              83 478 

Sale of tender documents                                                                                                                             31 144                8 043 

Interest received                                                                                                                                          136 185            115 308 

Government grants & subsidies                                                                                                             17 826 087       19 011 995 

Debt Forgiveness                                                                                                                                          89 078                        - 

18 202 494       19 218 824 

 

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services 
are as follows: 

Rental income                                                                                                                                              120 000              83 478 

Sale of tender documents                                                                                                                             31 144                8 043 

Interest received                                                                                                                                          136 185            115 308 

287 329            206 829 

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows: 

Taxation revenue 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies                                                                                                             17 826 087       19 011 995 

Debt Forgiveness                                                                                                                                          89 078                        - 

17 915 165       19 011 995
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11.    Employee related costs 

 

Acting allowances                                                                                                                                        745 145            428 230 

Basic                                                                                                                                                         6 213 281         5 360 999 

Car allowance                                                                                                                                           1 532 391         1 256 521 

Back pay                                                                                                                                                      211 013              91 201 

Pension Fund Allowance                                                                                                                             899 110            694 627 

Leave provision increase                                                                                                                             400 540            285 657 

Medical aid Allowance                                                                                                                                 689 829            704 538 

SDL                                                                                                                                                              108 554              79 659 

UIF                                                                                                                                                                 35 098              33 439 

10 834 961         8 934 871 

 

Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (Started July 2019) 

 

Basic Salary                                                                                                                                                 871 850            664 671 

Car Allowance                                                                                                                                             290 617            199 401 

Medical Aid Allowance                                                                                                                                 145 308            128 509 

Contributions to UIF                                                                                                                                         1 785                1 338 

Subsistence Allowance                                                                                                                                  27 676              33 479 

Acting Allowance                                                                                                                                           12 397                        - 
Backpay                                                                                                                                                         37 917              16 571 

Pension Fund Allowance                                                                                                                             145 308            115 203 

1 532 858         1 159 172 

 

Remuneration of Acting Chief Executive Officer  ( April 2019- June 2019) 

Acting Allowance                                                                                                                                                      -              69 917 

 

Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer 

 

Basic Salary                                                                                                                                                 739 797            704 999 

Car Allowance                                                                                                                                             246 599            235 000 
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Medical Aid Allowance                                                                                                                                 123 299            117 500 

Contributions to UIF                                                                                                                                         1 785                1 785 

Subsistence Allowance                                                                                                                                           -                2 448 

Reimbursive Travel                                                                                                                                                  -                   256 

Back pay                                                                                                                                                        32 174              12 953 

Pension Fund Allowance                                                                                                                             123 299            117 500 

1 266 953         1 192 441 

 

Remuneration of Executive Manager: Programmes (Started October 2019) 

 

Basic Salary                                                                                                                                                 543 322            102 935 

Car Allowance                                                                                                                                             167 402              34 312 

Medical Aid Allowance                                                                                                                                   83 701              17 156 

Contributions to UIF                                                                                                                                         1 338                   297 

Subsistence Allowance                                                                                                                                           -                3 739 

Back pay                                                                                                                                                          6 435                        - 
Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                83 701              17 156 

885 899            175 595 

 

Remuneration of Acting Executive Manager Programmes (July 2019- October 2019) 

 

Acting Allowance                                                                                                                                           56 004            271 856 

56 004            271 856
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11.    Employee related costs (continued) 

Remuneration of Executive Manager: Corporate Services (Started January 2020) 

 

Basic Salary                                                                                                                                                 360 246                        - 
Car Allowance                                                                                                                                             150 103                        - 
Medical Aid Allowance                                                                                                                                   60 041                        - 
Contributions to UIF                                                                                                                                            892                        - 
Pension Fund Allowance                                                                                                                               30 021                        - 

601 303                        - 

 

Remuneration of Acting Executive Manager: Corporate Services (July 2019- November 2019) 

 

Acting Allowance                                                                                                                                           40 517                        - 

 

12.    Depreciation and amortisation 

 

Property, plant and equipment                                                                                                                    295 272            269 548 

Intangible assets                                                                                                                                            49 895              39 100 

345 167            308 648 

 

13.    General expenses 

 

Accomodation                                                                                                                                              115 195            167 317 

Accounting fees                                                                                                                                        1 082 321         1 186 000 

Advertising                                                                                                                                                   125 567              49 019 

Sitting allowances for board and other committees                                                                                    101 500            144 000 

Bank charges                                                                                                                                                 21 235              22 927 

Catering and venue hire expenses                                                                                                                15 359            179 891 

Cleaning                                                                                                                                                         20 500              19 311 

Legal fees                                                                                                                                                      49 268            776 800 

Consulting and professional fees                                                                                                                150 452            247 965 

Interest and penalties                                                                                                                                  419 236            364 988 

Electricity                                                                                                                                                     110 968            123 534 
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Interest and penalties                                                                                                                                              -                1 515 

Fuel and oil                                                                                                                                                         247                        - 
General equipment and minor items                                                                                                               1 071                3 807 

Insurance                                                                                                                                                     117 970              98 772 

Licences                                                                                                                                                      101 590              99 709 

Motor vehicle expenses                                                                                                                                   5 838                8 783 

Office refreshments                                                                                                                                         3 481                2 353 

Other expenses                                                                                                                                                       -                7 959 

Parking                                                                                                                                                                140                        - 
Postage and courier                                                                                                                                           811                   256 

Printing and stationery                                                                                                                                 116 958            121 976 

Promotions                                                                                                                                                      4 370                        - 
S & T Internal                                                                                                                                                      300                        - 
Security fees                                                                                                                                                    6 951                9 617 

Telephone and fax                                                                                                                                       577 660            474 743 

Travel - local                                                                                                                                                299 035            670 951 

3 448 023         4 782 193 

 

14.    Project Expenditure 

 

Anchor Project                                                                                                                                             224 500            165 217 

Fruit and Veg Project                                                                                                                                               -              14 500 

Simanye Project                                                                                                                                                      -              14 676
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14.    Project Expenditure (continued) 

Emfundisweni Skills Development                                                                                                           1 232 694            687 000 

Msukeni Development                                                                                                                                 206 788              19 658 

Umzimvubu Leather Craft                                                                                                                              99 600              99 600 

Grain Production                                                                                                                                            80 229              41 130 

Live Stock & Poultry Product                                                                                                                       175 364              79 015 

Service Seta                                                                                                                                                            -         1 620 691 

2 019 175         2 741 487 

15.    Audit fees 

Fees                                                                                                                                                             810 612         1 257 356 

16.    Repairs and Maintanance 

Buildings                                                                                                                                                         35 920              16 728 

Motor vehicles                                                                                                                                                          -              17 923 

Computer equipments                                                                                                                                         565                        - 
Office equipment                                                                                                                                            20 760                        - 

57 245              34 651 

17.    Cash flows from operating activities 

Surplus                                                                                                                                                         687 310         1 141 256 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation                                                                                                                     345 167            308 648 

Gain (loss) on sale of assets                                                                                                                                   -              (5 463) 
Depreciation adjustment to change in estimates                                                                                          (79 890)                       - 
Other non cash                                                                                                                                                         -            (32085) 
Increase in leave provision                                                                                                                          400 540             285 657 

Debt Forgiveness                                                                                                                                          (89 078)                       - 
Leave gratuity                                                                                                                                             (290 028)          (194 230) 
Other Adjustments                                                                                                                                      (377 638)            (14 698) 
Changes in working capital: 

Receivables from exchange transactions                                                                                                     (28 200)            (42 007) 
Payables from exchange transactions                                                                                                        (646 382)          (118 988) 
Vat Payable                                                                                                                                                  618 982           (648 189) 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts                                                                                                                 -           (380 729) 
VAT Receivables                                                                                                                                            45 683                        - 
SARS payable                                                                                                                                               (79 057)             79 057 

Bank overdraft                                                                                                                                               (24 879)            (24 879) 

482 530            353 350 
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18.    Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

 

Unconditional Grant 

Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

Amount Received                                                                                                                                    17 826 087       17 391 304 

Amount recognised as revenue                                                                                                             (17 826 087)     (17 391 304) 

-                        - 

 

Conditional Grant 

Service Seta 

Opening balance                                                                                                                                          166 002            546 731 

Amount Received                                                                                                                                                     -         1 239 962 

Amount recognised as revenue                                                                                                                               -        (1 620 691) 

 

18.    Unspent conditional grants and receipts (continued)  

166 002            166 002

 

19.    Financial instruments disclosure 

 

Categories of financial instruments 

 

2020 

 

Financial assets 

At amortised 
cost 

Total

Receivables from exchange transactions                                                                                                   202 357            202 357 

Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                                         707 389            707 389 

909 746            909 746 
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Financial liabilities 

At amortised 
cost 

Total
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Payables from exchange transaction                                                                                                       1 107 273         1 107 273 

20.    Related parties 

`  

Relationships 

Controlling entity                                                                                          Alfred Nzo District Municipality 

Members of key management                                                                      Name 

 

Ms. M. Bambeni - Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. L. Bam - Chief Financial Officer 

Ms. N. Maloi -Executive Manager Programmes 

(Started October 2019) 

Ms. V. Honono - Acting Executive Manager 

Programmes ( July 2019 to October 2019) 

Mrs. D. Mrwetyana- Zembe -Executive Manager 

Corporate Services ( Started January 2020) 

Mr. M. Kohli - Acting Executive Manager Corporate 

Services (July 2019 to November 2019)  

Board of Directors                                                                                           Ms. N. Mabude 

Mr. M. Mtimkulu 

Mr. T. Nota 

Mr. L. Mahlaka Ms. 
L. Nonyongo Mr. V. 
Mlokothi 

 

Apart from remuneration, no further transactions occured with key management. Refer to note 11 for a breakdown of amounts 
paid to key management. 

 

Related party balances 

 

Seating allowances due to board of director 

Ms. N. Mabude                                                                                                                                                        -                5 500 
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Mr. M. Mtimkulu                                                                                                                                               2 905                4 500 

 

Ms. N. Mabude and Mr. M. Mtimkulu receive a seating allowance  and the other directors claim S&T allowances. 

Related party transaction 

 

20.    Related parties (continued) 

Seating allowances paid to board of directors 

Ms. N. Mabude                                                                                                                                              93 500              79 500 

Mr. M. Mtimkulu                                                                                                                                             15 095              54 500 

 

Revenue 

Grant received - Alfred Nzo District Municipality (Parent Municipality)                                                  17 826 087       17 391 304 

 

21.    Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

 

Opening balance as previously reported                                                                                                  1 733 739         1 367 010 

Opening balance as restated                                                                                                                1 733 739         1 367 010 

Add: Current year Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure                                                                               419 236            366 729 

Less: Debt Forgiveness ( Auditor General)                                                                                                  (89 078)                       - 

Closing balance                                                                                                                                      2 063 897         1 733 739 

 

Expenditure identified in the current year include those listed below: 

 

Interest on late payments to Eskom                                                                                                                           -                2 558 

Interest and penalties on late payments to SARS                                                                                         413 323            311 645 

Interest on late payments to Auditor General                                                                                                    5 913              50 876 

Interest on travel and car hire                                                                                                                                    -                1 650 

419 236            366 729 
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22.    Irregular expenditure 

 

Opening balance                                                                                                                                    29 785 010       24 846 465 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year                                                                                                 2 715 545         4 938 545 

32 500 555       29 785 010 

Closing balance                                                                                                                                    32 500 555       29 785 010 

 

Irregular expenditure consist of : 

SCM Policy                                                                                                                                                                    -              25 773 

Competetive bidding                                                                                                                                         872 635         3 845 354 

Overpayments                                                                                                                                                     50 000            157 133 

Overspending                                                                                                                                                 1 792 910            747 034 

Conditional grant funds used for other purposes                                                                                                          -            163 251 

2 715 545         4 938 545 

 

23.    Provisions 

 

Reconciliation of leave provisions - 2020 

Opening 

Balance 

Additions  Utilised 
during the 

year 

Total

Leave gratuity                                                                                            862 729            400 540           (290 028)           973 241 

 

 

Reconciliation of leave provisions - 2019
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23.    Provisions (continued)  

Opening 

Balance 

 

Additions  Utilised 
during the 

year 

 

Total

Leave gratuity                                                                                            771 303            285 656           (194 230)           862 729 

 

24.    Other revenue 

 

Rental income - third party                                                                                                                          120 000              83 478 

Sale of tender documents                                                                                                                             31 144                8 043 

151 144              91 521 

 

25.    Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act 

 

PAYE, UIF and SDL 

 

Opening balance                                                                                                                                         154 284                        - 
Current year subscription / fee                                                                                                                 2 871 366         2 358 899 

Amount paid - current year                                                                                                                      (3 025 650)       (2 204 615) 

-            154 284 

 

VAT 

 

VAT receivable                                                                                                                                                        -              45 683 

VAT payable                                                                                                                                                618 982                        - 

618 982              45 683
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26.    Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities 

Pricewaterhouse Coopers Inc : Case 162.2019 

Alfred Nzo Development Agency had a 3 year contract with Pricewaterhouse Coopers Inc (PWC)  for internal audit services 

between February 2014 to February 2017. At the end of the contract there was a dispute over unpaid fees and Pricewaterhouse 

Coopers has instituted a claim of R 1 125 184.37 to Alfred Nzo Development Agency for outstanding  invoices regarding Bid 

Number ANDA 03/2013. 

The estimated fees are R 1 125 184.37 

 

Nyalambisa Financial Service CC 

Nyalambisa Financial Services was appointed for the preparation of annual financial statements for Alfred Nzo Development 
Agency. The appointment was terminated as it did not follow the Supply Chain Management  processes. Nyalambisa Financial 
took the matter to court. 

There is no etsimate of the  fees for the case. 

 

Madikizela 

Mr Madikizela was a Center Manger at Emfundisweni Skills Development centre. He had a disagreement with the community and 
was forced to leave the centre. Emfundisweni Skills Development Centre is under management  and responsibility of ANDA. He 
took the matter to the court and summons were delivered to Alfred Nzo Develoment Agency. The first respondent on the matter 
was Alfred Nzo Development Agency and the second respondent Alfred Nzo District Municipality. 

The estamated of the fees are R 3 000 000. 

 

FBBI Solutions 

Afred Nzo Development Agency had appointed Ikhaya Connect to project manage and secure grant funding for ANDM's 
community based projects. Ikhaaya Connect appointed FBBI Solutions to provide cash backed guarantee equal to 10% of the 
total financed amount. On the 30th of June 2017 Ikaya Connect terminated the appointment of FBBI Solutions and the matter 
was taken to court with Ikhaya Connect the first respondent, Alfred Nzo Development Agency the second respondent and Alfred 
Nzo District Municipality the third respondent. 

The estimated fees are R 762 250 000. 

Judgement Mthatha 

The attorneys representing Alfred Nzo Development Agency were not able to make any investigation in connection with this 
matter and do not believe that any further action will be warranted. 

There is no estimate of the fees for the case. 

27.    Risk management 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents. The municipal entity only deposits cash with major banks with 
high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 
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Market risk 

 

Interest rate risk 

As the municipal entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the municipal entity’s income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. 

 

Price risk 

The municipal entity is not exposed to equity securities price risk as it does not hold commodities on an open market. 

28.    Budget differences 

 

Material differences between budget and actual amounts 

 

1. Rental  Income 

 

The budgeted amount is inclusive of VAT. 

 

2. Interest Received 

 

Services SETA funding budgeted for was not  received which resulted in interest received being lower than expected. 

 

3. Government Grants and Subsidies 

 

The budgeted amount is inclusive of VAT. 

 

4. Depreciation and amortisation 

 

Depreciation and amortisation was not budgeted for. 

 

5. Audit fees 

 

The actual is less than the budgeted amount due to the budget adjustment as the municipal entity is facing  financial 
constraints. 
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6. Repairs and maintenance 

 

The actual amount was lower than the budgeted amount due to the fact that some repairs and maintanance could not done as a 
result of the lockdown. 

 

7. Project  expenditure 

 

The  budgeted amount is more than the actual due to the outbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic which reduced the level of 
operation. 

 

8. General expenses 

 

The  budgeted amount is more than the actual due to the outbreak of the COVID 19 pandemic which reduced the level of 
operation. 

29.    Service in kind 

The municipal entity receives shared services from its mother body Alfred Nzo District Municipalty in the form of internal audit 

and audit committee services . This is not considered to be an intergral part of the municipal entity's operations and will therefore 

will not be recognised in the annual financial statements. 

30.    VAT receivable 

 

VAT receivable                                                                                                                                                        -              45 683 

31.    VAT payable 

VAT payable                                                                                                                                                     618 982               - 

 

32.    Commitments 

Already contracted for but not provided for: 

The municipal entity  entered into a contract for the purchase of office equipment.
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32.    Commitments (continued) 

Property, plant and equipment                                                                                                                      16 000              62 195 

 

33.    COVID 19 Pandemic 

During the year, the Repubilc of South Africa experienced a Covid-19 pandemic which was declared a national disaster by the 

President of the Republic. The municipal entity received a Covid-19 relief grant from the parent municipality, Alfred Nzo District 

Municipality for an amount of R 500 000. The Municipal entity deviated from the Supply Chain Management Policy to appoint a 

service provider, Meridian Hygiene (Pty) Ltd for the supply of Covid-19 supply and services for an amount of R 468 770. The was 

no expenditure incurred as at year end. 

34.    Deviations 

In terms of Section 36 of the Municipal Supply Chain Management  Regulation any deviation from the Supply Chain Management 
Policy needs to be approved/ condoned by the Accounting Officer and noted by the Council. Deviations from the official 
procurement process during the financial year were approved by the Accounting officer and noted by the Board. 

 

Opening balance                                                                                                                                           11 215              11 215 

Current year- Deviations                                                                                                                           1 359 418                        - 

1 370 633              11 215 

 

Deviations consist of 

Exceptional Case-Imani Business Advisory Services                                                                              1 229 910                        - 
Exceptional Case - Camelsa Consulting Group                                                                                            72 008                        - 
Exceptional Case- Munisoft (Pty) Ltd                                                                                                             57 500                        - 
Emergency- Elliot & Walker Attorneys                                                                                                                     -              11 215 

1 359 418              11 215 

 

During the year the year the Municipal entity deviated from Supply Chain Management Policy to appoint Meridian Hygiene (Pty) Ltd 

for the procurement of Covid-19 Supply and Services. The reason for the deviation was emergency and there was no expenditure 

incurred as at year end. 

 

35.    Taxation 

SOUTH AFRICAN NORMAL TAX 

Amounts receivable / (payable) at the beginning of the year                                                                                  -                        - 
Interest earned                                                                                                                                                        -                        - 
Add: paid during the year                                                                                                                                        -                        - 
Less: Tax refund                                                                                                                                                      -                        - 
Current tax                                                                                                                                                               -                        - 

-                        - 
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A estimated cummulative assessed loss of R 139 339 556 is available for set off against future taxable income. The asset is not 

disclosed as there is no future taxable income that is expected to be earned in the next financial year. 

The assessd loss were as follows 2020 - R 16 269 732 and 2019 - R 17 202 354. 

 

36.    Debt Forgiveness 

89 079                        - 

 

The Auditor General waived prior period interest on audit fees payable by the Municipal entity after  the Municipal entity had 

met the payament arrangement conditions. 

37.    Investment property 

 

2020                                                                   2019

Cost / Accumulated Carrying value        Cost / Accumulated Carrying value

Valuation depreciation 
and 

accumulated 
impairment 

Valuation depreciation 
and 

accumulated 
impairment
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Investment property                                                                                                         1 800 000   -     1 800 000 -                        
-                        - 

 

The Municipal entity's mandate is to amongst others acquire, own and manage land and buildings necessary to enable it to 

achieve its stated aims and objectives. This includes managing and developing some of the properties under the ownership 

of the Parent Municipality.Fortdonald site is one of the properties managed by the Municipal entity. 

The Investment property was recognised in the current year when it met the asset definition and the recognition criteria. The 

Municipal entity's mandate to manage and develop properties which gives the entity control over the property.The property 

is leased to a third party, generating economic benefits in form of monthly rental income. 

The Municipal entity will continue to receive the monthly rental income for  the duratiion of the lease agreement. 

38.    SARS Payable 

 

Payroll Taxes Payable                                                                                                                                       -              79 057 

 

39.    Lease rentals on operating lease 

 

Equipment 

Contractual amounts                                                                                                                                         -              23 825 

 

40.    Change in estimate 

 

Property, plant and equipment 

Motor vehicles 

The useful life of motor vehicles was previously estimated to be 5 years. In the current financial  period management have 

revised the useful life estimate to 7  years. The effect of this revision has increased the depreciation charges for the current 

and future periods by R 79 889 
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16. ANNEXURE D: AUDITOR GENERAL AUDIT REPORT 
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17. ANNEXURE E: AUDIT ACTION PLAN 

 

TO BE COMPLETED BY DEPARTMENT 
      

Nr Departm
ent 

Stream Substream Audit finding 
(Add relevant 
Audit 
Communication 
number/s) 

Root Cause Risk Recommend
ation/ 
Mitigation 

Remedial Actions [Separate 
row should be used for 
each action in order to 
provide progress per 
activity in a separate line] 

Progress as at 30 June 
2020 

Finding 
No in 
MR 

        
COMPLIANCE WITH 
LEGISLATIONS 
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Finding 
No 01 

Finance Financial Expenditure In terms of 
Section 95(c)(i) of 
the MFMA, the 
accounting officer 
of a municipal 
entity is 
responsible for 
managing the 
financial 
administration of 
the entity and 
must for this 
purpose take all 
reasonable steps 
to ensure that the 
entity has and 
maintains 
effective, efficient 
and transparent 
systems of 
financial and risk 
management and 
internal control. 
 
Nature 
During the audit of 
the financial 
statements, we 
identified that 
management 
could not prevent 
the following 
expenditures and 
required by the 
MFMA. 
- Fruitless and 
wasteful 

This was caused 
by management 
not 
implementing 
effective internal 
controls to 
prevent incurring 
the 
expenditures. 

This is a 
non-
complianc
e with 
MFMA 
and lead 
to 
material 
misstatem
ent. 

Management 
should 
ensure that 
laws and 
regulations 
are followed 
and all 
instances of 
deviation are 
avoided. 
Management 
should 
ensure that 
they perform 
a proper 
review of 
financial 
information 
and 
implementing 
proper 
internal 
controls to 
avoid the 
material 
compliance 
deviations. 

Prevetative Remedial 
Measures:        
 Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure- VAT and Payroll 
taxes will be submitted and 
paid to SARS before the 
deadline and suppliers paid 
within 30 days to avoid 
interest and penalties. 
Unauthorised expenditure-
Before expenses are 
incurred, the Expenditure 
Office checks if there is an 
approved budget for the 
required purchase and 
approves. 
Irregular Expenditure-  The 
SCM policy will be followed at 
all times when procurring 
goods and services.                                           
Detactive Remedial 
Measures:  
Irregular expenditure-Any 
employee who becomes 
aware of or suspects the 
occurrence of irregular 
expenditure must 
immediately, in writing, report 
such expenditure to the 
accounting officer or 
accounting authority.  The 
accounting officer or 
accounting authority or 
his/her delegate must decide 
on the level of 
enquiry/investigation to be 
undertaken to determine 
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expenditure of 
R419 236 as 
disclosed in the 
AFS. 
- Irregular 
expenditure of R 
922 635 as 
disclosed in the 
AFS. 
- and 
unauthorised 
expenditure of R1 
792 910 as 
disclosed in AFS. 
The non-
prevention of the 
above expenses 
results to a 
material 
compliance 
deviation. 

whether the expenditure in 
question is irregular 
expenditure or not. The 
results of the 
enquiry/investigation will 
determine the appropriate 
action to be taken regarding 
the transgression.   The 
management to review the 
irregular expenditure on a 
monthly basis to determine 
weather there is an irregular 
expenditure incurred.  
Unauthourised Expenditure-
Monitoring of  budget against 
actual amounts monthly                                  
Corrective Measures:     
Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure and Irregular 
expenditure -The municipal 
entity must recover  irregular 
or fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure from the person 
liable for that expenditure, the 
municipal entity must conduct 
an investigation weather the 
expenditure is coverable or 
irrecoverable then submit the 
report to the Audit Committee 
and Board of Directors. The 
Board of Directors reports to 
the council committee to do 
further investigation. 
Unauthourised expenditure -
All instances of unauthorised 
expenditure must be 
recovered from the liable 
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official or political office-
bearer, unless the 
unauthorised expenditure has 
been certified as 
irrecoverable by the council 
after an investigation by a 
council committee in terms of 
section 32(2)(a)(ii) of the 
MFMA. 
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Finding 
No 02 

CEO CEO CEO 1. MFMA 88 (1) 
requires the 
accounting officer 
of a municipal 
entity, by 20 
January of each 
year, to 
assess the 
performance of 
the entity during 
the first half of the 
financial year and 
submit a report on 
such assessment 
to— 
(i) the board of 
directors of the 
entity; and 
(ii) the parent 
municipality of the 
entity. 
(2) A report 
referred to in 
subsection (1) 
must be made 
public. 
2.The Municipal 
Systems Act 
No.32 of 2000 
requires Municipal 
entities to 
establish a 
Performance 
Management 
System. 
Nature 
1.The 

1.The mid-year 
performance 
report was 
presented to the 
board via round 
robin and 
approved in the 
June 2020 
instead of 
January 2020. 
The mid-year 
performance 
report was also 
not made public. 
2.Inadequate 
review of the 
PMS Framework 
Policy. 

1. Non-
complianc
e with 
S88 of the 
MFMA. 
2. Non-
complianc
e with 
chapter 6 
of 
Municipal 
Systems 
Act No.32 
of 2000. 

1.Manageme
nt should 
ensure that 
the mid-year 
performance 
report is 
made public. 
2.Manageme
nt should 
develop a 
performance 
management 
system that 
is in 
accordance 
to chapter 
6 of the 
Municipal 
Systems Act 
No.32 of 
2000. 

Prevetative Remedial 
Measures: The Entity will 
amend its compliance 
calendar to include the 
advertisement of all 
compliance documents  to the 
public with time frames.                                                                                                                                                    
Detactive Remedial 
Measures: The Management 
will sit at the beggining of 
every 3rd quarter to detact 
non compliance including 
advertisment of complaince 
documents                                                                                           
Corrective Measures: In the 
future, the Entity will ensure 
that Midterm Budget and 
Performance Report is 
advertised and meets all the 
minimum requirements as 
stipulated in the Act.                                                                                          
. 
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performance of 
the entity during 
the first half of the 
financial year was 
not made public. 
2.The PMS 
Framework Policy 
is however not 
easy to read as 
the table of 
contents does not 
have 
reference to page 
numbers and 
information is all 
over the 
document and in 
no particular 
order. 
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Finding 
No 03 

Program
mes 

Program
mes 

Programme
s 

In terms of 
paragraph 3.2 of 
the National 
Treasury 
Framework for 
Managing 
Programme 
Performance 
Information,” 
Defining a good 
performance 
indicator requires 
careful 
analysis of what is 
to be measured. 
One needs to 
have a thorough 
understanding of 
the nature of the 
input or output, 
the activities, the 
desired outcomes 
and impacts, and 
all relevant 
definitions and 
standards used in 
the field. “ 
A good 
performance 
indicator should 
be: 
(a) Reliable: the 
indicator should 
be accurate 
enough for its 
intended use and 
respond to 

The cause of the 
above is due to 
management 
and those 
charged with 
governance not 
ensuring that 
indicators are 
formulated 
according to the 
SMART criteria 
as required by 
National 
Treasury 
Framework for 
Managing 
Programme 
Performance 
Information. 

The 
above has 
resulted in 
non-
complianc
e with 
paragraph 
3.2 of the 
National 
Treasury 
Framewor
k 
for 
Managing 
Program
me 
Performa
nce 
Informatio
n. 

Management 
should that 
indicators are 
formulated 
using the 
SMART 
criteria, either 
by being 
explicit in 
their planning 
documents or 
by putting 
together a 
technical 
Indicator 
document 
which 
outlines what 
the terms 
mean and 
how they are 
measured. 
The SDBIP 
should be 
reviewed at 
various levels 
including the 
management 
of the parent 
municipality 
to ensure the 
measurability 
of indicators. 

Preventative Remedial 
Measures:    The Entity will 
amend the SDBIP to ensure 
the measurability of 
indicators.                   
Detactive Remedial 
Measures:   The entity will be 
conducting PMS workshop 
that will assist in 
implementing SMART 
principle when setting targets 
.                                                                                       
Corrective: The Entity has 
utilize the adjustment period 
to correct the challenge of 
application of SMART 
principle in the setting of 
performance targets. 
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changes in the 
level of 
performance. 
(b) Well-defined: 
the indicator 
needs to have a 
clear, 
unambiguous 
definition so that 
data will be 
collected 
consistently, and 
be easy to 
understand and 
use. 
(c) Verifiable: it 
must be possible 
to validate encore 
the processes and 
systems that 
produce the 
indicator. 
(d) Cost-effective: 
the usefulness of 
the indicator must 
justify the cost of 
collecting the 
data. 
e) Appropriate: 
the indicator must 
avoid unintended 
consequences 
and encourage 
service delivery 
improvements, 
and not give 
managers 
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incentives to carry 
out activities 
simply to meet a 
particular target. 
(f) Relevant: the 
indicator must 
relate logically 
and directly to an 
aspect of the 
institution's 
mandate, and the 
realization of 
strategic goals 
and objectives. 
Nature 
During the audit of 
performance 
information, the 
auditor noted that 
the performance 
targets: 
“Participate in the 
implementation of 
Agri-parks 
Programme by 30 
June 2020 by 
participation in 
social facilitation 
of Agri-parks 
Programme" and 
'Participate in the 
implementation of 
Agri-parks 
Programme by 30 
June 2020 
through 
monitoring 
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implementation of 
Agri-parks" are 
not well defined, 
specific and 
measurable as 
they do not 
indicate the 
required level of 
performance or 
how many 
programmes the 
entity intends to 
participate in 
and/or monitor. 
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Finding 
No 04 

Finance Financial Assets Section 95 of the 
MFMA states that 
—The accounting 
officer of a 
municipal entity is 
responsible for 
managing the 
financial 
administration of the 
entity, and must for 
this purpose takes 
all reasonable steps 
to ensure— (c) that 
the entity has and 
maintains effective, 
efficient and 
transparent 
systems— of 
financial and risk 
management and 
internal control. 
 
In terms of GRAP 1 
paragraph 19(b) 
and (c), fair 
presentation also 
requires an entity: 
b) to present 
information, 
including 
accounting policies, 
in a manner which 
provides relevant, 
reliable, comparable 
and understandable 
information; and 
c) to provide 
additional 
disclosures when 
compliance with the 

The cause of the 
above finding is 
that 
management 
does not have 
sufficient 
evidence 
supporting that 
the Fort Donald 
is owned by the 
district 
municipality. 

This may 
result to 
the 
understat
ement of 
the 
financial 
statement
s 

Management 
should take 
reasonable 
steps to 
ensure that 
all assets the 
entity has 
control over 
are also 
recorded in 
the financial 
statements. 

Prevetative Remedial 
Measures:  
An Asset checklist has been 
developed to determine if 
assets meet the definition and 
recognition criteria as per 
GRAP requirements. 
Detactive Remedial 
Measures:  
Annually all assets that are 
not in asset register but the 
Municipal Entity getting 
economic benefits will be 
tested if they meet the asset 
definition and recognition 
criteria as the the checklist. 
Corrective Measures:  
The Investment Property has 
been recognised on the 
Financial system and the 
Fixed Asset Register.The 
method of valuation used due 
to the time constraints was 
value in use.However the 
challenge in the next financial 
year is that the Value of the 
Investment Property can not 
be split between the Land 
and Buildings as Buildings  
need to be depreciated. A 
valuer will be appointed to 
determine the valuation of the 
Land and Buildings separate. 
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specific 
requirements in 
Standards of GRAP 
is insufficient to 
enable users to 
understand the 
impact of particular 
transactions, other 
events and 
conditions on the 
entity’s financial 
position and 
financial 
performance. 
 
Nature 
While performing 
the rental income 
review on the 
financial 
statements, we 
identified the 
following: 
- The entity has a 
contract with Ilima 
since 2016 and the 
agreement was 
signed by the then 
CEO (Mr Diko).  
The contract specify 
that ANDA is 
leasing the property 
for development on 
behalf of the district 
municipality to 
ILima for economic 
development.  
The contract also 
specify that the 
property is owned 
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by the municipality 
and that ANDA is 
only managing it for 
development.  
Followed up, for the 
ownership of the 
rented area and 
confirmed the 
following from the 
entity and 
municipality: 
- The entity 
confirmed that they 
are sub-leasing the 
area on behalf of 
the district 
municipality for 
economic 
development. 
- The municipality 
officials confirmed 
that they are not 
aware of the area 
(rented out building 
and space). 
- We verified the 
area and noted that 
only Lima uses the 
space for office and 
storing their 
vehicles and 
material. 
The said area is not 
recording in either 
the entity nor the 
district municipality. 
GRAP state that the 
control is not only 
limited to the title 
deed.  
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ANDA has access 
to the resource 
because they 
receive monthly 
rentals and also are 
liable for repairs 
and maintenance of 
the area.  
Because the District 
municipality is 
unaware of the 
asset, ANDA has a 
responsibility to 
have the asset in 
their financial 
statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 


